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DIRECTORS

The following persons were Directors of Paladin Energy Ltd
(Company) and were in office for this entire period unless
otherwise indicated:

Mr Rick Wayne Crabb
B. Juris (Hons), LLB, MBA, FAICD

(Non-executive Chairman) Age 54

Mr Crabb holds degrees of Bachelor of Jurisprudence (Honours),
Bachelor of Laws and Master of Business Administration from
the University of Western Australia. He practised as a solicitor
from 1980 to 2004 specialising in mining, corporate and
commercial law. He has advised on all legal aspects, including
financing, marketing, government agreements and construction
contracts, of many resource development projects in Australia
and Africa. Mr Crabb now focuses on his public company
directorships and investments. He has been involved as a
director and strategic shareholder in a number of successful
public companies. He is also the non-executive chairman of
Golden Rim Resources Ltd (since 2001), Ashburton Minerals
Ltd (since 1999) and Otto Energy Ltd (since 2004). Mr Crabb is
a councillor on the Western Australian Division of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

Mr Crabb was appointed to the Paladin Board on 8 February
1994 and as Chairman on 27 March 20083.

Former directorships of listed companies in last three years
Royal Resources Limited from 2004 to 11 August 2009
Port Bouvard Ltd from 1996 to 30 March 2009

Special Responsibilities

Chairman of the Board

Member of Remuneration Committee from 1 June 2005
Member of Nomination Committee from 1 June 2005
Member of Sustainability Committee from 25 November 2010

Mr John Borshoff
B.Sc., F.AusIMM, FAICD

(Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer) Age 66

Mr Borshoffis a geologist who has been involved in the Australian
and African exploration and mining industry for over 30 years.
Mr Borshoff worked for International Nickel and Canadian
Superior Mining before joining a German mining group, Uranerz
from 1976 to 1991. He became Chief Geologist/Exploration
Manager during the period 1981-1986 and served as its chief
executive from 1987 to mid-1991 when the German parent of
Uranerz made the decision to close its Australian operations.
The primary focus of the Uranerz Group was the search and
development of uranium with the company operating extensively
throughout Australia, North America and Africa.

Mr Borshoff has extensive knowledge of the uranium industry
and experience in company management and strategic
planning. He serves on a number of industry organisations
including the Board of the Minerals Council of Australia and
the Board of the Australian Uranium Association of which he is
the chairman of its Code of Practice working committee and a
member of its Executive Committee.

Mr Borshoff founded Paladin and was appointed to the Paladin
Board on 24 September 1993.

Special Responsibilities

Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer

Member of Nomination Committee from 1 June 2005
Member of Sustainability Committee from 25 November 2010

Mr Sean Reveille Llewelyn
LL.B

(Non-executive Director) Age 63

Mr Llewelyn originally qualified, and practised, as a solicitor in
Australia and then re-qualified in England. He has subsequently
worked in the finance and merchant banking industries for
more than 20 years in Australia, the UK, the United States and
South Africa. His considerable finance experience has been
in derivatives (a founder, President and CEO of Capital Market
Technology Inc.), structured finance and early stage investment
relating to the metal markets. He has been involved with the
uranium industry for many years and has a comprehensive
understanding of the uranium market.

Mr Llewelyn was the instigator and driving a force in the formation
of Nufcor International Ltd, a major uranium marketing company,
jointly owned between Anglo Gold and First Rand International.

Mr Llewelyn was appointed to the Paladin Board on 12 April 2005.

Special Responsibilities

Member of Audit Committee from 12 April 2005

Chairman of Remuneration Committee from 26 November 2008
(member from 1 June 2005)

Chairman of Nomination Committee from 26 November 2008
(member from 1 June 2005)

Mr Donald Shumka
B.A., MBA

(Non-executive Director) Age 69

Mr Shumka has more than 40 years’ experience in financial roles.
From 2004 to 2011, he was President and Managing Director of
Walden Management, a consulting firm specialising in natural
resources. From 1989 to 2004, he was Managing Director,
Investment Banking with CIBC World Markets and Raymond
James Ltd. Prior to 1989, Mr Shumka was Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer of West Fraser Timber Co. Ltd., one
of Canada’s largest forest products companies. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of
British Columbia and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from Harvard University.

Mr Shumka was appointed to the Paladin Board on 9 July 2007.

Special Responsibilities

Chairman of Audit Committee from 9 July 2007

Member of Remuneration Committee from 10 August 2007
Member of Nomination Committee from 10 August 2007

Mr Peter Mark Donkin
B.Ec., LLB

(Non-executive Director) Age 54

Mr Donkin has over 30 years’ experience in finance, including
20 years arranging finance in the mining sector. He was the
Managing Director of the Mining Finance Division of Société
Générale in Australia, having worked for that bank for 21 years in
both their Sydney and London offices. Prior to that he was with
the corporate and international banking division of the Royal
Bank of Canada. His experience has involved structuring and
executing transactions for mining companies, both in Australia
and internationally in a wide variety of financial products,
including project finance, corporate finance, acquisition finance,
export finance and early stage investment capital. Mr Donkin
holds a Bachelor of Economics degree and a Bachelor of Law
degree from the University of Sydney. He was previously a
director of Sphere Minerals Ltd.

Mr Donkin was appointed to the Paladin Board on 1 July 2010.

Special Responsibilities
Member of Audit Committee from 25 November 2010
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Mr Philip Baily
B.Sc., MSc

(Non-executive Director) Age 67

Mr Baily is a metallurgist with more than 40 years’ experience
in the mining industry, including some 11 years in the uranium
sector. Throughout his career, he has been involved in the
design, construction, commissioning and operation of mineral
processing plants including two uranium plants. Project
locations have varied from the deserts of Australia to the tropics
of Papua New Guinea and the high altitudes of Argentina. He
has extensive experience, at senior management level, in the
evaluation of projects from grass roots development to the
acquisition of advanced projects and operating companies.
These projects have been located throughout the world, many
in developing countries and environmentally sensitive areas.
Mr Baily holds a Bachelor of Science and a Master of Science
degree in Metallurgy from the University of NSW.

Mr Baily was appointed to the Paladin Board on 1 October 2010.

Special Responsibilities
Chairman of Sustainability Committee from 25 November 2010

Mr lan Urquhart Noble
B.Sc. (Metallurgy), F.AusIMM, ARCST

(Non-executive Director) Age 70 — Retired from the Board 25
November 2010 at the Annual General Meeting

Mr Noble has over 40 years’ experience covering the mining,
chemical and nuclear industries with a strong emphasis in
the mining and mineral processing fields. He held senior
management positions with both Wright Engineers Australia
Ltd and Fluor Australia and took a lead role in the design of
Australia’s two major uranium processing plants.

Board of Audit
Directors Committee

Number Number
Number eligible Number eligible
attended to attend attended to attend

Mr Noble was appointed to the Paladin Board on 29 June 2005
and retired from the Paladin Board with effect from the Annual
General Meeting held on 25 November 2010.

Special Responsibilities
Member of Audit Committee from 29 June 2005
Member of Nomination Committee from 29 June 2005

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms Gillian Swaby
B.Bus., FCIS, FAICD

Age 51

Ms Swaby has been involved in financial and corporate
administration for listed companies, as both Director and
Company Secretary covering a broad range of industry sectors,
for over 25 years. Ms Swaby has extensive experience in the
area of secretarial practice, management accounting and
corporate and financial management.

Ms Swaby is past Chair of the Western Australian Council of
Chartered Secretaries of Australia, a former Director on their
National Board and a lecturer for the Securities Institute of
Australia. Ms Swaby is the principal of a corporate consulting
company and was a member of the Paladin Board for a period
of 10 years.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The number of Directors’ meetings and meetings of committees
held in the period each Director held office during the financial
year, and the number of meetings attended by each Director
were:

Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Sustainability
Committee

Number Number Number
Number eligible Number eligible Number eligible
attended to attend attended to attend attended to attend

Mr Rick Crabb 18 18 - -
Mr John Borshoff 17 18 - -
Mr Sean Llewelyn 18 18 4 4
Mr Donald Shumka 17 18 4 4
Mr lan Noble 9 10 2 2
Mr Peter Donkin 16 18 1 2
Mr Philip Baily 13 13 - ©

3 3 1 1 1 1
- - 1 1 1 1
3 3 1 1 - -
3 3 1 1 - -

Of the above Board meetings, only 4 were face to face with the remainder held via electronic means. The total number of meetings reflects additional activity
with the takeover of NGM Resources Ltd, the issue and buy-back of convertible bonds and the acquisition of the Aurora assets.
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INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the
securities of Paladin Energy Ltd were:

Director Paladin Options Share
Shares (issued Rights
under the (issued

Paladin under the
EXSOP) Paladin

Employee
Plan)

**300,000

Mr John Borshoff 21,877,394 *1,250,000 ***500,000
Mr Rick Crabb 4,881,528 Nil Nil
Mr Sean Llewelyn 100,000 Nil Nil
Mr Donald Shumka 100,000 Nil Nil
Mr Peter Donkin 15,000 Nil Nil
Mr Philip Baily 12,000 Nil Nil

exercisable at A$4.50 on or before 29 January 2013
**due to vest on 26 March 2013 subject to performance conditions
*** due to vest on 5 November 2013 subject to performance conditions

RESIGNATION, ELECTION AND
CONTINUATION IN OFFICE OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Constitution of the Company, Mr lan
Noble retired by rotation at the Annual General Meeting on
25 November 2010 and did not seek re-election. Mr Peter
Donkin and Mr Philip Baily were appointed as Non-executive
Directors by the Board effective 1 July 2010 and 1 October 2010
respectively and were then elected by shareholders at the 2010
Annual General Meeting. Mr Sean Llewelyn will seek re-election
at the 2011 Annual General Meeting, following his retirement by
rotation.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Group was the development and
operation of uranium mines in Africa, together with global
exploration and evaluation activities in Africa, Australia, Canada
and Niger.

REVIEW AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

A detailed operational and financial review of the Group is set
out on pages 14 to 43 of this report under the section entitled
Management Discussion and Analysis.

The Groups’ loss after tax for the year is US$82.3M
(2010:US$45.6M) representing an increase of 80% from the
previous year.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid during the financial year and no
dividend is recommended for the current year.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE
OF AFFAIRS

There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the
Group during the financial year not otherwise dealt with in this
report.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

Since the end of the year, the Directors are not aware of any
other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this
report, that has significantly or may significantly affect the
operations of the Group, the results of those operations or
the state of affairs of the Group in subsequent years with the
exception of the following, the financial effects of which have not
been provided for in the 30 June 2011 Financial Report:

URANIUM SALES AGREEMENT SIGNED

On 22 August 2011, the Company announced the signing of a
series of term uranium sales agreements for output from the
Langer Heinrich Stage 3 expansion. The agreements have
been signed with three new customers in the United States
and further strengthens Paladin’s already significant presence
within the U.S. nuclear market. Production commitments from
the new agreements total more than 2.8Mlb U,O, with deliveries
beginning in 2012 and extending through to 2016. Contractual
pricing provisions incorporate both fixed and base (escalated)
mechanisms ranging from the low-to-mid-$60’s per pound U,0,.

LANGER HEINRICH MINE, NAMIBIA
EXECUTION OF US$141M PROJECT FINANCE FACILITY FOR
STAGE 3 EXPANSION

On 26 August 2011, the Company announced that the financing
documentation required for the Stage 3 expansion had been
finalised and executed. The Stage 3 expansion of LHM in
Namibia will increase production to 5.2Mlb pa from its current
capacity of 3.7Mlb pa.

The initial development funding for the project has been via
Paladin’s existing cash reserves. The Langer Heinrich Stage
3 expansion is now fully financed and is on track to reach
nameplate capacity in the 1%t quarter of 2012.

Paladin and a syndicate of banks executed a US$141M Project
Financing Facility, consisting of a 6 year Project Finance Facility
of US$135M with a Costs Overrun Facility of US$6M. The facility
is being provided without a parent company guarantee from
Paladin. The facilities are being provided by Société Générale
(as Agent), Nedbank Capital, Standard Bank Plc, Barclays
Capital (the investment banking division of Barclays Bank PLC)
and Rand Merchant Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited
(RMB). Drawdown on the financing is subject to fulfiment of
conditions precedent usual for this type of facility.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

Likely developments in the operations of the Group constituted
by the Company and the entities it controls from time to time
are set out under the section entitled Management, Discussion
and Analysis.
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The Group is subject to significant environmental regulation
in respect to its exploration, evaluation, development and
operational activities for uranium projects under the laws of
the countries in which its activities are conducted. The Group
currently has mining and processing operations in Namibia and
Malawi, and exploration projects in Africa, Australia, Niger and
Labrador. The Group’s Policy is to comply with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations in the countries in which it
conducts business.

Specific environmental regulations, approvals and licences
for the exploration, development and operation are applied
to the activities conducted at each site. In addition many
other international and industry standards are also applied to
the Group’s activities, including those specified for the global
uranium industry. These environmental laws, regulations and
standards relate to environmental factors such as radiation,
water, flora, fauna, air quality, noise, waste management and
pollution control.

The Directors are not aware of any environmental matters which
would have a significant adverse effect on the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR THE YEAR AT
A GLANCE

As with last year, disclosure has taken a more holistic approach
to give a greater insight into the remuneration landscape
across the entire organisation and not simply focus on the
Key Management Personnel. Each and every employee is
important and to maintain a successful organisation, policies
for the attraction, motivation and retention of all staff throughout
the Group must be visible and consistent. This is particularly
relevant given the industry in which Paladin operates which
suffers globally from a lack of expertise.

. Managing Director/CEO received a 5% increase in fixed
remuneration together with a short-term incentive cash
bonus representing 12% of fixed remuneration.

] Salary increases across the Group were broadly based on
Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases (3% for Australia,
rounded up from 2.84%). Certain adjustments for parity
were made to ensure individual market competitiveness
was maintained. This philosophy extended throughout
the Group worldwide, with CPI adjustments relative to
the country of operations.

. The bonus pool available for distribution decreased this
year as a result of poor uranium prices and delayed
ramp-up of Kayelekera Mine.

. Short-term incentive cash bonuses were paid to non-
site personnel and senior executives at an average of
6-10% of fixed remuneration. Superior performance and
contribution was rewarded at a higher rate. Site based
employees continued to operate on a quarterly cash
bonus system linked to mine performance criteria.

. A further annual grant of share rights was made under the
long-term incentive plan totalling 2,617,100 share rights
(0.34% of issued capital).

. Employees saw the first tangible benefits of the change in
long-term incentive plan from options to share rights with
the vesting of the first tranche of time based share rights
on 1 September 2010. This totalled 495,580 shares.
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. Non-executive Directors’ remuneration remained at the
same level as for the past three years. It is expected
that an increase will be presented for consideration at
the 2011 AGM, particularly given the additional Non-
executive Director appointed in October 2010.

EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration received by the Managing Director/
CEO and Key Management Personnel prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and accounting standards are
detailed further in the Remuneration Report.

The tables below set out the cash value of earnings realised by
the Managing Director/CEO and Key Management Personnel for
2010 and 2011 and the intrinsic value of share based payments
that vested to the executives during the period. The intrinsic
value of share based payments represents the difference
between the exercise price of the award and the Company’s
share price at vesting date, and does not reflect the accounting
value determined in accordance with the Company’s accounting
policies.

The cash value of earnings realised include cash salary and
fees, superannuation, cash bonuses and other benefits
received in cash during the year and the intrinsic value of long-
term incentives vesting during the 2011 year. The tables do not
include the accounting value for share rights or options granted
in the current and prior years, as this value may or may not be
realised as they are dependent on the achievement of certain
performance hurdles. The accounting value of other long-term
benefits which were not received in cash during the year have
also been excluded.

All cash remuneration is paid in Australian dollars to those parties
listed below (with the exception of D Garrow who is paid in US$)
therefore the tables are presented in both A$ and US$ being the
functional and presentation currency. The detailed schedules
of remuneration presented later in this report are presented in
US$. The table below details only Key Management Personnel
and not other executives.
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CASH VALUE OF EARNINGS REALISED
2011 (A$'000) / (US$'000)

Base Salary & Cash Bonus Other Total Cash LTIP 2008 LTIP 2010@ Total
Superannuation

A$ US$ A$ US$ A$ US$ A$ US$ A$ US$ A$ US$ A$  US$

Mr John Borshoff 2,032 2,002 234 231 = - 2266 2,233 256 252 = - 2622 2,485
Mr Dustin Garrow 661 651 72 71 = - 733 722 55 54 76 75 864 851
Ms Gillian Swaby = = 50 49 5200 5120 570 561 53 52 68 67 691 680
Mr Garry Korte 460 453 55 54 = - 515 507 = = 34 33 549 540
Mr Wyatt Buck 448 442 = - 519 509 499 492 41 40 61 59 601 591
Mr Mark Chalmers 880 870 = = = = 88 87 = = = = 88 87
Total 3,689 3,635 411 405 571 562 4,671 4,602 405 398 239 234 5,315 5,234

(1) Value of long-term incentive options granted on 29 January 2008 and vesting on 29 January 2011 at an exercise price of A$4.50 vs market price at vesting
of A$4.89.

(2) Value of share rights granted on 26 March 2010 and vesting on 1 September 2010 at a market price of A$3.80.
(8) Fees for Company Secretarial services paid to a company of which Ms Gillian Swaby is a director and shareholder.
(4) School fees and accrued leave paid on resignation being 6 May 2011.
(5) Employment commenced 27 April 2011.
(6) Exchange rate used is average for year US$1 = A$1.01512.
'_
(a4
(@]
& CASH VALUE OF EARNINGS REALISED
& 2010 (A$°000) / (US$'000)
V)
g Base Salary & Cash Bonus Other Total Cash
— Superannuation
o AS US$ A$ US$ A$ US$S A$ USS
(a4
= Mr John Borshoff 1,910 1,681 = = = - 1,910 1,681
Mr Dustin Garrow 690 607 66 58 - - 756 665
Ms Gillian Swaby 432 380 44 39 . - 476 419
Mr Garry Korte 2750 2420) - - - - 275 242
Mr Wyatt Buck 549 483 - - 6 5 555 488
Total 3,856 3,393 110 97 6 5 3,972 3,495

(1) Employment commenced 2 November 2009.
(2) Exchange rate used is average for year US$1 = 1.13652.

There were no benefits received from vesting of any LTIP incentives during this year.

/0
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Remuneration
report
(audited)

This Remuneration Report outlines the director and executive
remuneration arrangements of the Company and the Group
in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 (Cth) and its Regulations. For the purposes of this report,
Key Management Personnel of the Group are defined as
those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the major activities of the Company and
the Group, directly or indirectly, including any director whether
executive or otherwise of the parent company, and includes the
five executives in the Parent and the Group receiving the highest
remuneration.

For the purposes of this report, the term ‘Executive’
encompasses the managing director, senior executives,
managers and company secretary of the Parent and the Group.

REMUNERATION APPROVAL PROCESS

The Remuneration Committee is charged with assisting the
Board by reviewing and making appropriate recommendations
on remuneration packages for the Managing Director/CEO,
Non-executive Directors and senior executives. In addition,
it makes recommendations on long-term incentive plans and
associated performance hurdles together with the quantum of
grants made, taking into account both the individual’'s and the
Company’s performance.

The Remuneration Committee, chaired by Mr Sean Llewelyn,
held three meetings during the year. Messrs Crabb and
Shumka are also Committee Members. The Managing Director/
CEO is invited to attend those meetings which consider the
remuneration strategy of the Group and recommendations in
relation to senior executives.

Having regard to the recommendations made by the Managing
Director/CEO, the Committee approves the quantum of the
short-term incentive bonus pool and the total number of the
long-term incentive grants to be made and recommends the
same for approval by the Board. Individual awards are then
determined by the Managing Director/CEO in conjunction with
senior management, as appropriate.
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KEY ELEMENTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL/EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
STRATEGY

The overall focus of Paladin’s remuneration strategy is to:

attract and retain talented, qualified and effective

Executives;
. motivate short and long-term performance and reward
past performance;
. provide competitive and fair reward;
. be flexible and responsive in line with market expectations;
. align Executive interests with those of the Company’s

shareholders; and

. comply with applicable legal requirements and appropriate
standards of governance.

This strategy applies group wide for all employees.

The overall level of compensation takes into account the
Company’s earnings and growth in shareholder wealth of the
Company together with the achievement of strategic goals.
Consideration of the Company’s earnings will be more relevant as
the Company matures from its development and consolidation
phase to profitability. The chart below compares, assuming
an initial investment of A$100, the yearly percentage change
in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s
Ordinary Shares against the cumulative total shareholder return
of the S&P/ASX 200 Index for the Company’s five most recently
completed financial years.

The Board is cognisant of general shareholder concern that
long-term equity-based remuneration be linked to Company
performance and growth in shareholder value. The recent
Share Rights plan addresses this with performance conditions
including reference to Earnings per Share (EPS), Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) and Market Price conditions. These
are considered in more detail further in this report.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

Paladin Energy Limited mmmm S&P/ASX 200 Index
250
s 200
=]
% 150
S
c
- 50
0
June 06 June 07 June 08 June 09 June 10 June 11
30 June 2007 30 June 2008 30 June 2009 30 June 2010 30 June 2011
The Company A$201 A$156 A$120 A$87 A$61
S&P/ASX 200 Index A$124 A$103 A$78 A$85 A$91
EPS* US$(0.07) US$(0.06) US$(0.78) US$(0.08) US$(0.11)

* Restated as a result of the voluntary change in accounting policy (refer to Note 3).

The following graph provides further clarity in respect of the
Company’s performance and, in particular, its peer group in the
uranium sector against the S&P/TSX Composite Index, the second
graph illustrates the performance of Paladin and its peer group
against a base pre the Japanese tsunami through to year end.
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PALADIN ENERGY LTD » ANNUAL REPORT 2011



= UXC spot price Paladin Energy Limited

mm= Uranium One Inc msmm Uranium Participation Corp

mmm Cameco Corp Denison Mines Corp

e ERA
10.0% ‘ $80.00

0.0% § $70.00

10.0% —— N "\_\ $60.00
-20.0% — $50.00

-40.0% —— % $30.00

3

-50.0%

-60.0%
<« Japanese Tsunami

N $20.00
w 51000

-70.0%

The remuneration structure for the Key Management Personnel/
Executives has three elements:

. fixed remuneration;
. short-term variable remuneration; and
. long-term incentives.

These are detailed as follows:

Remuneration Component  Elements

Fixed Remuneration Annual base salary determined
as at 1 January each year

Statutory superannuation
contributions

$0.00

Details

The ‘not at risk’” cash component which may include
certain salary sacrifice packaging.

Statutory % of base salary.

Expatriate benefits

Executives who fulfill their roles as an expatriate may
receive benefits including relocation costs, health
insurance, housing and car allowances, educational fees
and tax advisory services.

Foreign assignment allowance

An additional % of base salary is payable in relation to
foreign assignments being 15% for Malawi and 10% for
Namibia.

Variable Performance Linked Short-term incentive, paid as a
Remuneration cash bonus
(“at risk” remuneration)

Rewards Executives for performance over a short

period, being the year ending 31 December. Bonuses

are awarded at the same time as the salary reviews.
Assessment is based on the individual’s performance and
contribution to team and Company performance.

Long-term incentive, granted
under the Rights Plan

Award determined in the September quarter of each
year, based on individual performance and contribution
to team and Company performance. Vesting dependent
on creation of shareholder value over a three year period,
together with a retention element.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

FIXED REMUNERATION

This is reviewed annually with consideration given to both the
Company and the individual’s performance and effectiveness.
As competition in the global uranium mining industry continues to
grow, a key to maintaining talent is to create relevant and globally
competitive remuneration packages. Market data focused on
the mining industry is analysed with a focus on maintaining
parity or above with companies of similar complexity and size
operating in the resources sector and becoming an employer of
choice. The Company subscribes to a number of remuneration
surveys and reports including Boardroom Remuneration
Review (Connect 4), Resources Sector Remuneration Report
(Godfrey Remuneration Group Pty Ltd), The Top 500 Report
(CRA Plan Managers Pty Ltd) and the AIM National Salary
Survey (Australian Institute of Management). The Company
also takes into consideration the annual Executive and Board
Remuneration Report produced by Ernst & Young.

During the past year, salaries, as a general rule, were increased
in accordance with the movements of the CPI only, other than in
cases where there was a role change or an anomalous situation
relevant to labour market conditions. For Australian employees
this amounted to 3%. For foreign operations, the CPI adjustment
was relative to that country.

By way of comparison, salaries in the mining industry in Australia
increased on average 4.34%. Whilst the level of increase was
below the average, Paladin’s long-term incentive scheme which
operates through all levels provides a generous component of
remuneration. Taking into account performance and industry
parity, senior executives received an average increase of 6.7%.

Mr John Borshoff is referred to as both Managing Director/
CEO to clarify the understanding of his position in both North
America and Australia, given Paladin’s stock exchange listings
in each jurisdiction.

MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO

Fixed remuneration (inclusive of superannuation) increased
by 5% from A$1,946,880 (US$1,713,019) to A$2,044,224
(US$2,013,776), effective from 1 January 2011. This level of
remuneration reflects the extensive knowledge and experience
Mr John Borshoff has in the uranium sector gained over the
past 40 years, as a recognised global authority. Expertise at
this level is in extremely limited supply, particularly given the
period of over 20 years of non activity in the uranium sector
and the very small number of uranium producers worldwide.
His knowledge and expertise of the sector has been key to the
growth and acquisition strategy of the Company and integral to
its development from a junior explorer to a uranium producer
with two operating mines. In addition, his contract provides
for payment of a benefit on retirement or early termination by
the Company, other than for gross misconduct, equal to 2
times base salary for the two years immediately preceding the
termination date. This benefit reflects approximately 18 years of
service to the Company by John Borshoff, being the founder
in 1993. As a comparison to retirement benefits generally seen
in the North American markets (in which the Company is listed
and a market from which executive staff are sourced), this
benefit is not considered excessive by the Board. This benefit
was approved by shareholders on 9 November 2005 at a time
when retirement benefits generally were set at a much higher
threshold.

VARIABLE REMUNERATION
SHORT-TERM INCENTIVES

The Company provides short-term incentives comprising
a cash bonus to Executives of up to 30% of base salary.
The bonus is entirely discretionary with the goal of focusing
attention on short-term strategic and financial objectives. The
amount is dependent on the Company’s performance in its
stated objectives and the individual’s performance, together
with the individual’s position and level of responsibility. As for
2010, bonuses in 2011 were paid to modest levels averaging
6% across the group (2010: 10%) having regard to poor uranium
prices and delays in the ramp-up of Kayelekera Mine. Senior
executive bonuses averaged between 7% and 10%. All cash
bonuses granted have been paid during the year.

This componentis an “at risk” component of overall remuneration
designed to encourage exceptional performance whilst adhering
to the Company values. Specific targets for individuals have not
been set due to the philosophy of achieving a common goal for
the Company, however, the following measures are taken into
account where these are applicable to the Key Management
Personnel and individual Executives and have been selected to
align their interests to those of shareholders:

(@) health, safety and environmental performance;
(
(c) project development performance;

(

(e) performance of the Company in meeting its various

b) production performance;

Q

) additional uranium resources delineated;

other objectives;
) financial performance of the Company; and

(9) such other matters determined by the Remuneration
Committee in its discretion.

MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO

A bonus of up to 100% of base salary can be achieved,
having consideration to outcomes achieved during the year,
to be determined by the Remuneration Committee. For the
calendar year 2010 a 12% bonus was awarded. Matters to be
considered as key outcomes for the calendar year 2011 when
considering payment of a bonus to J Borshoff fall within the
following parameters which the Board considers best capture
the essential elements for increasing shareholder returns:

Factor Indicative
Weighting
1 Production and financial performance 45%
meeting or exceeding expectations.
2 Sustainability matters achieving 20%
expectations.
3 Organic and inorganic growth 15%
progressing in accordance with strategy.
4 Organisational factors meeting 10%
expectations.
5 Other factors at the discretion of the 10%

Remuneration Committee

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

The Company believes that encouraging its employees to
become shareholders is the best way of aligning their interests
with those of its shareholders.
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In 2009, the Directors determined that a share rights plan
was the most appropriate form of long-term incentive plan for
the Group and at the 2009 AGM, shareholders approved the
adoption of the Employee Performance Share Rights Plan (the
Rights Plan).

Approval was also given to implement a share rights plan to
reward a small number of key individual contractors who provide
similar services to employees, the Contractor Performance
Share Rights Plan (the Contractor Rights Plan). These plans are
referred to jointly as the Rights Plans.

As a consequence of adopting the Rights Plans, no further
grants will be made under the previous Executive Share Option
Plan with the last option grant made on 24 June 2009. It was
determined that this plan had a number of limitations and did
not provide an appropriate incentive.

The Rights Plans are long-term incentive plans aimed at
advancing the interests of the Company by creating a stronger
link between employee performance and reward and increasing
shareholder value by enabling participants to have a greater
involvement with, and share in the future growth and profitability
of, the Company. They are an important tool to assist in
attracting and retaining talented people.

Share Rights are granted under the plan for no consideration.
Share Rights are rights to receive fully paid ordinary shares
in the capital of the Company (Shares) in the future if certain
individual and/or corporate performance metrics (Performance
Conditions) are met in the measurement period.

The number of Share Rights able to be issued under the Plans is
limited to 5% of the issued capital. The 5% limit includes incentive
grants under all plans made in the previous 5 years (with certain
exclusions under the Australian corporate legislation).

The Board is cognisant of general shareholder concern
that long-term equity based rewards should be linked to the
achievement by the Company of a performance condition.
Share Rights granted under the Rights Plan are subject to
certain vesting and performance conditions as determined by
the Board from time to time. The Company does not offer any
loan facilities to assist in the purchase of shares by employees.

VESTING AND PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS

The Share Rights issued in November 2010 are subject to a
range of vesting and performance conditions:

Performance measure

Proportion of
Share Rights

to which
performance
hurdle applies
10% Time based — must remain in employ
for 1 year from date of grant
15% Time based — must remain in employ
for 2 years from date of grant
25% Time based — must remain in employ
for 3 years from date of grant
20% Total Shareholder Return (TSR)

relative to mining companies in ASX
S&P 200 Index

30% Market Price Performance (MPP)
measuring the increase in share price
over the period
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MANAGING DIRECTOR/CEO

The Share Rights issued to the Managing Director/CEO have
different vesting hurdles to reflect the “at risk” nature of 100%
of this component of his remuneration and provide a direct
link between Managing Director/CEQ reward and shareholder
return, and provide a clear line of sight between Managing
Director/CEO performance and Company performance.
In November 2010, 500,000 Share Rights were granted to
Mr J Borshoff, as approved by shareholders at the 2009 AGM.
The performance conditions are:

Proportion of Performance measure
Share Rights

to which
performance
hurdle applies
50% Total Shareholder Return (TSR) relative
to mining companies in ASX S&P 200
Index*
50% Earnings Per Share (EPS) Measuring the

increase in earnings over the period

*The initial measurement date of the Share Rights subject to the
relative TSR condition is at the end of year three, calculated from
the date of grant. At the end of year three, Mr John Borshoff
can either:

. accept the vesting outcome achieved; or

. elect to have his Share Rights retested at the end of year
four (in which case the same vesting schedule applies but
the retest period covers the entire four year period from
the date the Share Rights were granted).

He is not permitted to “double dip”, so by electing to have his
Share Rights retested at the end of year four he forfeits any
entitlement to Share Rights which otherwise would have vested
at the end of year three. All Share Rights subject to the relative
TSR condition will expire at the end of year four.

The Remuneration Committee allows one retest to reflect the
volatile nature of the industry. The way in which the retest is
applied maintains alignment with shareholder interests.

WHY WERE THESE TARGETS SELECTED?

The Board considered the measures reflected an appropriate
balance in terms of alignment between comparative shareholder
return and individual reward, a market based performance
measure and the encouragement of long-term retention.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

Details of the various performance conditions follow:

Time-based Vesting

50% of the Share Rights will vest based on the participant continuing to be employed with the Group. These are staggered over
time and this condition is designed to assist in long-term retention of staff. Such benefits also assist in recruitment of suitably
qualified personnel in a market place where both mining, and more particularly uranium experience, are in particularly short
supply. Paladin competes in the global recruitment market and must offer competitive benefits to be successful and attract quality
candidates. The available talent pool with uranium expertise is both small and internationally focussed. Costs for replacement

of personnel and the hidden costs of disruption to the business can be substantial. This vesting criteria does not apply to the
Managing Director/CEO.

TSR

20% of the Share Rights will vest based on the Company’s TSR relative to the TSRs of a peer group of companies. This measure
represents the change in the Company’s share price over the measurement period, plus dividends (if any) notionally reinvested in
the Company’s shares, expressed as a percentage of the opening value. The peer group will comprise of mining companies in
the S&P/ASX 200 Index as at the date of the offer, excluding steel companies and any companies that pay a dividend during any
year of the performance period.

The limited number of uranium development and production companies globally presents difficulties in determining a suitable peer
group. It was therefore decided that, as the primary listing is on ASX and the majority of share trading takes place in that market,
the peer group set out above is the most appropriate. This also reflects the Group’s competitors for capital and talent.

Relative TSR is independent of market conditions and is considered a more relevant measure of management performance in
terms of value delivered to shareholders over the medium to long-term.

50% of the Share Rights granted to the Managing Director/CEO will vest based on the Company’s Relative TSR.

Mining companies are companies under the Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) sub-industries: Oil & Gas — Coal &
Consumable Fuels (10102050), Metals & Mining — Aluminium (15104010), Metals & Mining — Diversified Metals & Mining (15104020),

'Q_: 'D_C Metals & Mining — Gold (15104030), Metals & Mining — Precious Metals & Minerals (15104040) and Metals & Mining — Steel
8 8 (15104050).
ﬁ § The base and stretch targets for the TSR performance condition are as follows:
IQ/:‘ % Relative TSR percentile ranking Percentage of Share Rights that may vest if the relative TSR
o= performance condition is met
<
) e Less than 50" percentile 0% of the Share Rights subject to the TSR condition
o
o % at 50" percentile 50% of the Share Rights subject to the TSR condition
=
= Greater than the 50th percentile but less than the Pro-rated vesting between 51% and 99% of the Share Rights
75" percentile subject to the TSR condition
At 75" percentile or greater 100% of the Share Rights subject to the TSR condition

30% of the Share Rights are subject to MPP vesting condition which measures the increase in share price of the Company. Share
Rights will vest if, at the end of the measurement period, the share price of the Company is 25% above the market price at the
date of the offer. As part of the mix of performance conditions this provides a market based performance measure. The base
price for each grant is detailed in the table on the following page.

This does not apply to the Managing Director/CEO.

Basic Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is determined by dividing the operating profit or loss attributable to members of Paladin Group
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year. In the event that EPS is negative

76 (representing a loss per share) a reduction of the loss per share is, for this purpose, treated as a growth in EPS. Growth in EPS
will be measured by comparing the EPS in the base year (being the full financial year ending prior to the date of grant) and the
measurement year. EPS has been chosen as a performance condition because it provides a clear line of sight between Managing
Director/CEO performance and Company performance. It is also a generally recognised and understood measure of performance.

50% of the Share Rights granted to the Managing Director/CEO will vest based on the Company’s EPS.
The base and stretch targets for the Share Rights subject to the EPS conditions are as follows:

Average compound growth EPS over the performance period Percentage of performance rights that may vest if the EPS
hurdle is met

Less than 10% pa 0% of the Performance Rights subject to the EPS condition
At 10% pa 50% of the Performance Rights subject to the EPS condition
More than 10% pa but less than 20% pa Pro rated vesting between 51% and 99% of the Performance

Rights subject to the EPS condition

At 20% pa or greater 100% of the Performance Rights subject to the EPS condition
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SHARES ACQUIRED UNDER THE RIGHTS PLAN

Shares to be allocated to participants on vesting are currently
issued from equity. No consideration is paid on the vesting of
the Share Rights and resultant shares carry full dividend and
voting rights.

CHANGE OF CONTROL

All Share Rights will vest on a change of control event. The
Remuneration Committee considers that this is appropriate
given that shareholders (or a majority thereof) would have
collectively elected to accept a change of control event.
Moreover the number of Performance Rights relative to total
issued shares is not significant and thus are not considered a
disincentive to a potential bidder.

CESSATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Under the Rights Plan, employees’ Share Rights will be cancelled
on cessation of employment, unless special circumstances
exist such as retirement, total and permanent disability,
redundancy or death. Contractors will have their Share Rights
cancelled, other than on death at which point the contractor’s
legal representative will be entitled to receive them.

The outstanding balance of Share Rights at 30 June 2011 is
represented by:

EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION PLAN (EXSOP)

Prior to the implementation of the Share Rights Plan, the
EXSOP was the basis for the long-term incentive remuneration,
approved by shareholders in November 2006.

Under the EXSOP, the exercise price of the options was set at the
market price of the shares on the date of grant and performance
is measured by comparing the Company’s TSR (share price
appreciation plus dividends reinvested) with a group of peer
companies. The Company has chosen relative TSR, or how a
company performs relative to its peers, as it believes that this
is the most effective measure of the Company’s performance
and long-term shareholder value creation. The Company’s
performance will be measured over three years from the date of
grant. To the extent that maximum performance is not achieved
under the performance condition, performance will be retested
every six months following the first three years until the end of
the fourth year to allow for the effect of market factors beyond
the individual’s control.

In assessing whether the TSR hurdle for each grant has been
met, the Group receives independent data from an external
advisor, who provides both the Group’s TSR growth from the
commencement of each grant and that of the pre-selected peer
group. The peer group chosen for comparison is the mining
companies in the S&P/ASX200 Index at the date of grant. This
peer group reflects the Group’s competitors for capital and talent.

Date rights granted Vesting date Vesting performance conditions Number
26 March 2010 26 March 2013 TSR *150,000
26 March 2010 26 March 2013 EPS *150,000
26 March 2010 1 September 2011 Time based 594,270
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Time based 990,450
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 TSR 792,360
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Market Price (base price A$3.82) 1,188,540
5 November 2010 5 November 2013 TSR *250,000
5 November 2010 5 November 2013 EPS *250,000
5 November 2010 1 September 2011 Time based 202,170
5 November 2010 1 September 2012 Time based 303,255
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Time based 505,425
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 TSR 404,340
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Market price (base price A$3.62) 606,510
15 February 2011 15 February 2012 Time based 155,336
15 February 2011 15 February 2013 Time based 178,838
15 February 2011 15 February 2014 Time based 225,843
Total 6,947,337

* Managing Director/CEO grant
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

The Group’s performance against the hurdle is determined
according to Paladin’s ranking against the peer group TSR
growth over the performance period:

. when Paladin is ranked over the 75" percentile, 100% of
the share options will vest;

. for rankings above the 50" and below the 75" percentile,
the percentage of options to vest will be pro-rata between
50% and 100%;

. when Paladin is ranked at the 50" percentile, 50% of the
share options will vest; and

o when Paladin is ranked below the 50" percentile the
share options will not vest.

When a participant ceases employment prior to the vesting of their
share options, the share options are cancelled unless cessation
of employment is due to termination initiated by the Group other
than for misconduct or death. In the event of a change of control
all the awards will vest and may be exercised by the participant.

HEDGING OF INCENTIVE GRANTS PROHIBITED

The Company’s policy prohibits hedging of equity
compensation grants. Prohibited hedging practices include put/
call arrangements over “in money” options to hedge against a
future drop in share price. The Board considers such hedging to
be against the spirit of such remuneration and inconsistent with
shareholder objectives.

METHOD OF VALUATION OF LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

Refer to Note 25(g) and 25(k) of the financial statements to see
the key inputs used for valuation of the long-term incentives.

A summary of the options remaining on issue under the EXSOP
at 30 June 2011 is represented by:

Number of Exercise  Expiry Date
Options Price A$

Vesting Date

6,706,791 4.50 29/01/2013 29/01/2011*
300,000 5.37 15/02/2013 15/02/2011**
475,000 4.59 18/04/2013 18/04/2011***
750,000 2.54 14/10/2013 14/10/2011

*

Subject to retesting on 29 January 2012
**  Subject to retesting on 15 February 2012
*** Subject to retesting on 18 October 2011

RETENTION PROGRAMME

As a component of the strategy for retention of key personnel,
certain executives and staff participate in a retention bonus
programme. Participation extends to a limited number of
selected individuals that have been identified as possessing the
requisite skills, expertise and experience in the uranium sector
and those with specialist corporate and commercial skills that
the Company requires to achieve its aggressive goals over
coming years. This initiative is driven by a desire to retain the
intellectual properly pool considered necessary to ensure the
continued success of the Company. The programme entitles
the participants to receive a cash award at the end of the
three year retention period ending on 1 July 2013. In the event
employment is terminated for any of retirement, disablement,
redundancy or death, after 1 July 2011 one third will be payable
and after 1 July 2012, two thirds will be payable. The cash award
varies between 50 and 100% of the average annual salary over
the 3 year period.

In addition, from time to time, the Board will make specific
grants of share rights subject only to time vesting as part of the
Company’s retention strategy for key individuals.

KEY ELEMENTS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR REMUNERATION STRATEGY

The focus of the remuneration strategy is to:
. Attract and retain talented and dedicated directors.
. Remunerate appropriately to reflect the:

— size of the Company;

— the nature of its operations;

— the time commitment required; and

— the responsibility the Directors carry.

COMPONENTS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

In accordance with corporate governance principles, Non-
executive Directors are remunerated solely by way of fees and
statutory superannuation. The aggregate annual remuneration
permitted to be paid to Non-executive Directors is A$1.2M
(US$1.2M) as approved by shareholders at the 2008 AGM.
A number of independent surveys looking at companies both
from a market capitalisation, (A$1bn - $3bn) and ASX Top 51-
100 perspective give a range of Non-executive Director’s fees
from A$110,000 (50 percentile) to A$223,000 (90" percentile).
In relation to Non-executive Chairman, the analysis ranges from
A$248,000 (50" percentile) to A$480,000 (75 percentile). The
fee level currently set is mid-range of these.

Remuneration Elements Details
Component (per annum)
Base Fee Must be contained Chairman
within aggregate limit A$325,000
(US$320,159)
Non-executive
Director
A$160,000
(US$157,617)
Committee Paid to the Chairman of A$20,000
Fees* the Audit Committee (US$19,702)

Superannuation Statutory contributions  Statutory % of
are included in the fees fees
set out above

*This is the only fee paid to any committee member. All other duties are
remunerated as part of the base fee.
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The following graph is provided to give a clearer understanding
of the Non-executive Directors’ remuneration.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

REMUNERATION
0 P Baily ** Il D Shumka
I P Donkin | Noble*
I S Llewelyn Chairman

Maximum Fee Cap A$1.2M

per annum A$,000

2009 2010 2011

Includes A$20K in relation to Audit Committee Chair fees
Part year

*k

OTHER FEES/BENEFITS

In addition, the Company’s Constitution provides for additional
compensation to be paid if any of the Directors are called upon
to perform extra services or make any special exertions on
behalf of the Company or the business of the Company. The
Company may compensate such Director in accordance with
such services or exertions, and such compensation may be
either in addition to or in substitution for the Directors’ fees
referred to above. No additional fees were paid during the year,
other than the Directors’ fees disclosed.

Non-executive Directors are also entitled to be reimbursed for
reasonable expenses incurred whilst engaged on Company
business. There is no entitement to compensation on
termination of non-executive directorships. Non-executive
Directors do not earn retirement benefits (other than the
statutory superannuation) and are not entitled to any form of
performance linked remuneration.

BOARD CHANGES

Mr Peter Donkin and Mr Phil Baily were appointed Non-
executive Directors on 1 July and 1 October 2010 respectively.
Both Director appointments were approved by shareholders on
25 November 2010 at the Annual General Meeting. Mr lan Noble
retired from the Board on 25 November 2010 at the Annual
General Meeting.

Mr Sean Llewelyn will retire by rotation and seek re-election on
24 November 2011 at the Annual General Meeting.

PALADIN ENERGY LTD » ANNUAL REPORT 2011

REMUNERATION ACROSS THE GROUP

The strategies outlined for Executive remuneration apply across
the Group. This extends to the provision of relevant short-term
and long-term incentives. Site bonuses at Langer Heinrich are
determined on a quarterly basis with reference to production,
safety, environmental performance and attendance. The full
bonus was only paid out in one quarter. At Kayelekera, the
bonus scheme will not be fully established until consistent
nameplate production is achieved, however, in recognition of a
significant LTI free period of 180 days, a small bonus was paid
in March 2011. Employees, regardless of their level or position in
the organisation, are paid the same bonus amount. This assists
in aligning Paladin values with its employees on the remote
operating sites.

In addition, permanent employees at the Langer Heinrich Mine
participated in the allocation of Share Rights during the year.
The vesting of 10% of this allocation on 1 September 2010 was
extremely well received and further cements the concept of
broad employee share ownership, assisted by the Company’s
listing on the Namibian Stock Exchange. This is seen by
employees as an extremely valuable benefit, particularly by
the local national employees, and enables them to build up a
shareholding in the Company over time. Whilst the workforce
had previously participated in the EXSOP, the issues associated
with the granting of options were exacerbated at the local level
and were not perceived as a tangible benefit.

At the Kayelekera Mine in Malawi, the allocation of Share Rights
was limited to a small number of employees because of delays
in ramp-up. Due to difficulties associated with local share
ownership of Paladin shares, an alternative reward system will
be established for local nationals in that country once the mine
reaches consistent design production levels. Senior employees
will participate in the Rights Plan to a greater extent as mine
production progresses.

As discussed earlier, CPI increases were implemented at all
Paladin operations and head office, the percentage varying
based on the individual country index.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EXECUTIVES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 OF THE GROUP

Short-Term Benefits Post Employment |Long-Term Benefits| Share Based Total® Total Total Total
Payment* Performance Performance
Related Related

Salary & Cash Other  Other | Super- Retirement| Long- Long | Options Share

fees bonus Company annuation Benefits | Term  Service Rights
Benefits Incentive Leave
Plan

US$’000 US$°000 US$’'000 USS$’000 | US$'000 US$’000 |US$°000 US$000 |US$’000 US$’000|US$000 A$°000 | USS$’000

Directors

Mr Rick Crabb 305 - - - 15 - - - - - 320 325 - -
Mr John Borshoff 1,987 231 - - 15 58400 - 99 688 655 4,259 4,324 1574 37.0
Mr Sean Llewelyn 145 - - - 13 - - - - - 158 160 - -
Mr lan Noble® 59 = = = 5 = = = = - 64 65 - =
Mr Donald Shumka 177 = = = = = = = = - 177 180 = =
Mr Philip Baily® 108 - - - 10 - - - - - 118 120 - -
Mr Peter Donkin® 145 - = = 13 - - = - - 158 160 - -
Subtotal 2,926 231 - - 71 584 - 99 688 655 5254 5334 1,574

Executives

Ms Gillian Swaby - 49 - 51200 - - 114 - 131 718 1,524 1,547 289 18.9
Mr Garry Korte 438 54 - - 15 - 95 - - 186 788 799 115 14.6
Mr Wyatt Buck® 427 - 50 - 15 - = - 102 (35)™ 559 567 80 14.3
Mr Dustin Garrow 651 7 - - - - 146 - 134 376 1,378 1,399 330 23.9
Mr Mark Chalmers®” 83 - = = 4 = = - - - 87 88 - -
Mr Mark Barnaba'® 478 - 296® - 15 - - - - 1955 2744 2784 - -
Mr Simon Solomons® 455 30 = > 15 ° = - 303 204 1,007 1,022 402 39.9
Mr Jim Morgan® 566 39 - - 15 - 109 - 119 284 1132 1,150 254 224
Subtotal 3,098 243 346 512 79 = 464 - 789 3,688 9219 9356 1470

Total 6,024 474 346 512 150 584 464 99 1,477 4,343 14,473 14,690 3,044

Notes to the Compensation Table

Presentation Currency

The compensation table has been presented in US$, the Company’s functional and presentation currency. The A$ value has also been shown as this is considered
to be the most relevant comparator between years, given that in 2011 more than 90% of KMP's contracts for services were denominated in A$ and this eliminates the
effects of fluctuations in the US$ and A$ exchange rate.

(1
2)
)
)

XIS TEBD

)
)
)
)
)

Other represents fees paid for company secretarial services to a company of which Ms Gillian Swaby is a director and shareholder.

Exchange rate used is average for year US$ 1 = A$1.01512

Mr lan Noble - retired 25 November 2010.

Mr Philip Baily — appointed 1 October 2010.

Mr Peter Donkin — appointed 1 July 2010.

Mr Wyatt Buck — resigned 6 May 2011.

Mr Mark Chalmers - appointed 27 April 2011.

Commencement fee and deferred remuneration.

Mr Simon Solomons, Mr Jim Morgan and Mr Mark Barnaba are included as they are among the five highest paid executives, but are not determined to be
Key Management Personnel.

(10) This is the present value of the amount required to be accrued in 2011 for the payment at a future date (as yet undetermined) of a retirement benefit to Mr

Borshoff under the terms of his Services Contract.

(11) Includes a credit of US$58,000 relating to Share Rights lapsing upon resignation.

* A reconciliation of this figure in A$ follows to enable a clearer understanding of how this number is calculated.
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RECONCILIATION OF SHARE BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EXECUTIVES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011 (CONSOLIDATED
AND COMPANY).

A$4.50 Options Share Rights Share Rights Share Rights Share Rights | Total Share Based | % of Total
(expiring granted granted granted granted Payment Remuneration
29/1/2013) 26 March 2010 8 July 2010 5 November 2010 | 15 February 2011 Consisting of
(vesting 2010 (vested August (vesting 2011 (vesting 2012 Options
to 2013) 2010) to 2013) to 2014)
A$’000 US$’000 | A$’000 USS$’000 | A$’000 US$’000 | A$°000 US$’000| A$°000 US$000 | A$°000 US$000
Directors
Mr John Borshoff 698 688 292 287 = = 374 368 = - 1,364 1,343 16.2
Subtotal 698 688 292 287 = - 374 368 - - 1,364 1,343 16.2
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 133 131 257 253 = = 72 71 4000 3940 862 849 8.6
Mr Garry Korte = - 128 126 = = 60 59 = - 188 185 0
Mr Wyatt Buck 103 102 (35)®  (35)@ - - - - - - 68 67 17.0
Mr Dustin Garrow 136 134 285 281 = = 96 95 = = 517 510 9.8
Mr Mark Barnaba = ° o - 1,984@  1955@ ° ° o - 1,984 1,955 0
Mr Simon Solomons 307 303 171 168 - - 36 36 - - 514 507 3041
Mr Jim Morgan 121 119 229 226 - - 60 59 - - 410 404 10.5
Subtotal 800 789 1,035 1,019 1984 1,955 324 320 400 394 4543 4477
Total 1,498 1,477 1,327 1,306 1,984 1,955 698 688 400 394 5907 5,820

When a long-term incentive is granted to an employee, it is valued at the grant date and that value is allocated as an expense over the financial years up to the
date of vesting. The A$4.50 options were expensed up to 29/1/2011 and therefore no expense will be recognised for these in future years. All of the A$8.77
options lapsed during the year as the vesting conditions were not met. At the date of lapse these options had an intrinsic value of A$nil.

It should be noted that performance vesting conditions attach to all of the Options and Share Rights referred to above. These are detailed elsewhere in this
report, however for Options, to the extent that maximum performance is not achieved under the performance condition, performance will be retested every six
months following the first three years until the end of the fourth year. If performance conditions are still not met then the Options will lapse.

(1) Issued pursuant to retention programme, vesting time based only.

(2) Grant of 625,000 rights which vested into shares on 1 August 2010. Resulting shares then held in trust vesting January 2011 to January 2012. Once vested,
the shares are then subject to a disposal restriction which expires on 1 January 2014. The services from M Barnaba are of a high level strategic nature and
alleviates payment for such services from an investment bank or other advisor. The shares are both a sign-on bonus and part pre-payment for 3 years
service.

Includes a credit of A$59,000 relating to Share Rights lapsing upon resignation.

(4) Exchange rate used as the average for year US$1 = A$1.01512
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EXECUTIVES FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 OF THE GROUP

Short-Term Benefits Post Employment |Long-Term Share Based Total® Total Total Total
Benefits Payment* Performance Performance
Related Related

Salary & Cash (11 Other Super- Retirement| Long Options Share
fees bonus Company annuation Benefits | Service Rights
Benefits Leave

US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 | US$'000 US$'000 | US$'000 | US$'000 US$'000 | US$’000  A$'000

Directors

Mr Rick Crabb 275 - - - 12 - - - - 287 326 - -
Mr John Borshoff 1,669 = = = 12 5100 476 2,416 74 5157 5861 2,490 48.3
Mr Sean Llewelyn 129 - - - 12 - - - - 141 160 - -
Mr lan Noble 129 - - - 12 - - - - 14 160 - -
Mr Donald Shumka 158 = = = = = = = = 158 180 = =
Subtotal 2,360 = = = 48 510 476 2,416 74 5884 6,687 2490

Executives

Ms Gillian Swaby = 39 - 3800 = = = 270 99 788 896 888 42.3
Mr Garry Korte™ 232 - - - 10 - - - 49 291 331 12 4.2
Mr Wyatt Buck 445 - G - 38 - - 276 88 852 968 298 34.9
Mr Dustin Garrow 607 58 = = = = = 270 110 1,045 1188 855 34.0
Mr Simon Solomons 392 = = - 12 = = 468 66 938 1,066 484 51.6
Mr Justin Reid®© 388 20 1159 - 12 - - 353 44 932 1,059 384 4.2
Mr Jim Morgan®© 459 - - - 12 - - 303 88 862 980 325 377
Mr Mark Bolton®©® 132 22 - - 6 - - - = 160 182 22 13.8
Subtotal 2,655 139 120 380 90 - - 1,940 544 5868 6,670 2,213

Total 5,015 139 120 380 138 510 476 4,356 618 11,752 13,357 4,703

Notes to the Compensation Table

(1) Other represents fees paid for company secretarial services to a company of which Ms Gillian Swaby is a director and shareholder.

Exchange rate used is average for year US$ 1 = A$ 1.13652.

Acting Chief Financial Officer — resigned 13 November 2009.

Relocation expenses.

This is the present value of the amount required to be accrued in 2010 for the payment at a future date (as yet undetermined) of a retirement benefit to Mr
Borshoff under the terms of his Services Contract.

Mr Justin Reid and Mr Jim Morgan are included as they are among the five highest paid executives, but are not determined to be Key Management
Personnel.

Mr Garry Korte — appointed 2 November 2009.

2 SELR

(7
* A reconciliation of this figure in A$ follows to enable a clearer understanding of how this number is calculated.
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RECONCILIATION OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EXECUTIVES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONSOLIDATED
AND COMPANY)

A$8.77 Options A$4.50 Options A$4.48 Options Share Rights Total Share % of Total
(expiring 1/12/2012) | (expiring 29/1/2013) | (expiring 24/6/2014) | (vesting 2010/2011/ Based Payment Remuneration
2012/2013) Consisting of
Options
A$000 US$’000 | A$°000 US$'000 | A$'000  US$’000 | A$°000 US$'000 | A$000  US$’000
Directors
Mr John Borshoff 1,537 1,352 1,208 1,063 = = 84 74 2,829 2,489 48.6
Subtotal 1,637 1,352 1,208 1,063 = - 84 74 2,829 2,489
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 7”7 68 229 201 = = 112 99 418 368 34.2
Mr Garry Korte - - - - - - 56 49 56 49 -
Mr Wyatt Buck 136 120 179 157 - - 100 88 415 365 324
Mr Dustin Garrow 71 62 236 208 = = 125 110 432 380 25.8
Mr Simon Solomons = = 532 468 = = 75 66 607 534 49.9
Mr Justin Reid - - - - 401 353 50 44 451 397 37.9
Mr Jim Morgan 136 120 209 184 - - 100 88 445 392 351
Subtotal 420 370 1,385 1,218 401 858 618 544 2,824 2,485
Total 1,957 1,722 2,593 2,281 401 353 702 618 5,653 4,974

When a long-term incentive is granted to an employese, it is valued at the grant date and that value is allocated as an expense over the financial years up to the
date of vesting. The A$8.77 options were expensed up to 1/2/2010 and therefore no expense will be recognised for these in future years.

It should be noted that performance vesting conditions attach to all of the Options and Share Rights referred to above. These are detailed elsewhere in this
report, however for Options, to the extent that maximum performance is not achieved under the performance condition, performance will be retested every six
months following the first three years until the end of the fourth year. If performance conditions are still not met then the Options will lapse.

(1) Exchange rate used is the average for year US$1 = A$1.13652

CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Key
Management Personnel are normally formalised in contracts for
services.

All contracts with Key Management Personnel may be terminated
early by either party providing between 3 to 6 months written
notice or providing payments in lieu of the notice period (based
on fixed component of remuneration). On termination notice by
the Company, any options or rights that have vested, or that will
vest during the notice period, will be released. Options or rights
that have not yet vested will be forfeited.

Mr John Borshoff,
Managing Director/CEO

Term of agreement — 4 years commencing 27 November 2009.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation, A$1,946,880 increased
to A$2,044,244 effective 1 January 2011. 3 months long service
leave after 5 years continual service.

Payment of a benefit on retirement or early termination by the
Company, other than for gross misconduct, equal to 2 times
base salary for the two years immediately preceding the
termination date. This benefit was approved by the Company
shareholders on 9 November 2005.
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Ms Gillian Swaby
Company Secretary

Fees are paid in the ordinary course of business for company
secretarial services to a company of which Ms Gillian Swaby is
a director and shareholder.

Consultancy agreement with no fixed term.

Annual fee A$540,000.

Notice period 3 months.

83

No termination benefit is specified in the agreement.
Retention bonus — 100%.

Mr Dustin Garrow
Executive General Manager - Marketing
Term of agreement — no fixed term.

Base salary, of US$632,500 increased to US$664,125 effective
1 January 2011.

No termination benefit is specified in the agreement.
Notice period 6 months.

Retention bonus — 100%.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

Mr Simon Solomons
Executive General Manager - Operations Development
Term of agreement — no fixed term.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation of A$470,000,
increased to A$484,100 effective 1 January 2011.

No termination benefit is specified in the agreement.

Notice period 6 months.

Mr Garry Korte
Chief Financial Officer
Term of agreement — no fixed term.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation of A$416,000,
increased to A$503,500 effective 1 January 2011.

No termination benefit is specified in the agreement.
Notice period 3 months.
Retention bonus — 100%.

Mr Mark Barnaba

Strategic Advisor

(Commenced 1 July 2070)

Term of Agreement — 3 years.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation A$500,000.
Notice period — 3 months.

Mr Jim Morgan
Executive General Manager
Term of Agreement — no fixed term.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation of A$480,000,
increased to A$504,000 effective 1 January 2011.

20% foreign assignment allowance.
No termination benefit is specified in the agreement.
Notice period 2 months.

Retention bonus — 100%

Mr Mark Chalmers

Executive General Manager — Production
(Commenced 27 April 2011)

Term of Agreement — no fixed term.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation of A$490,000,
together with relocation expenses to Perth from South
Australia.

Notice period 3 months

No termination benefit is specified.

Mr Wyatt Buck

Executive General Manager — Production

(Resigned 6 May 2011)

Term of agreement — no fixed term.

Base salary, inclusive of superannuation A$525,000.

No termination benefit is specified in the agreement.

Notice period 6 months.

Retention bonus — 100%.

Remuneration for all parties referred to above includes provision
of an annual discretionary bonus and initial and ongoing

discretionary participation in the Company’s long-term incentive
plans.

GRANTS AND VESTING OF LONG-TERM
INCENTIVES

During the financial years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010, no
options were granted as equity compensation benefits under
the long-term incentive plan to Key Management Personnel.
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one fully paid
ordinary share in the entity at the exercise price. The contractual
life of each option granted is five years. There are no cash
settlement alternatives.

OPTIONS VESTED DURING THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2011:

Options @ A$4.50 expiring
29 January 2013

Vested Unvested
John Borshoff 657,000 593,000
Gillian Swaby 136,018 122,767
Wyatt Buck 105,926* 95,607*
Dustin Garrow 139,915 126,284
Jim Morgan 123,672 111,624
Simon Solomons 315,360 284,640

* forfeited on 6 June 2011.
** forfeited on 6 May 2011.
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Share Rights awarded to Key Management Personnel and the five highest paid executives during the year ended 30 June 2011
(Consolidated and Company) are set out below:

30 June 2011 Grant Grant date Fair value per share right Vesting date
Number at award date
()] (Us$)
Directors
Mr John Borshoff 500,000 5 November 2010 3.82 3.85 5 November 2013
Executive
Ms Gillian Swaby 60,000 5 November 2010 878 3.76 1 Sept 2011 to 1 Sept 2013
Ms Gillian Swaby 325,000 15 February 2011 5.41 5.43 15 Feb 2012 to 15 Feb 3014
Mr Garry Korte 50,000 5 November 2010 3.73 3.76 1 Sept 2011 to 1 Sept 2013
Mr Wyatt Buck 50,000 5 November 2010 3.73 3.76 1 Sept 2011 to 1 Sept 2013
Mr Dustin Garrow 80,000 5 November 2010 3.73 3.76 1 Sept 2011 to 1 Sept 2013
Mr Mark Barnaba 625,000 8 July 2010 3.56 3.04 1 Jan 2011 to 1 Jan 2012
Mr Jim Morgan 50,000 5 November 2010 3.73 3.76 1 Sept 2011 to 1 Sept 2013
Mr Simon Solomons 30,000 5 November 2010 3.73 3.76 1 Sept 2011 to 1 Sept 2013
Total 1,770,000
=
@ o
oo
&0
Shares Rights vested to Key Management Personnel and the five highest paid executives during the year ended 30 June 2011 X o
(Consolidated and Company) are set out below: Ec@ %
oF
Yo
LSI.:J w
30 June 2011 Grant Grant date Fair value per share Vesting date Vested o %
Number right at award date =
w
(A$) (Us$) o
Directors
Mr John Borshoff 300,000 26 March 2010 3.32 3.02 26 March 2013 - -
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 180,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 18,000 10%
Mr Garry Korte 90,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 9,000 10%
Mr Wyatt Buck 160,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 16,000 10%
Mr Dustin Garrow 200,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 20,000 10%
Mr Simon Solomons 120,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 12,000 10%
Mr Justin Reid 80,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 8,000 10% 85
Mr Jim Morgan 160,000 26 March 2010 3.16 2.88 1 Sept 2010 to 1 Sept 2012 16,000 10%
Mr Mark Barnaba 625,000 8 July 2010 3.56 3.04 1 Jan 2011 to 1 Jan 2012 625,000 100%
Total 1,915,000 724,000 38%

Grant of 625,000 rights which vested into shares on 1 August 2010. Resulting shares then held in trust vesting January 2011 to January 2012. Once vested,
the shares are then subject to a disposal restriction which expires on 1 January 2014. 375,000 rights have vested to employee as at 30 June 2011.

=

END OF AUDITED REMUNERATION REPORT

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
960 shares were issued on the exercise of options. The fair value at exercise date was A$518 and the amount paid was A$4,320.

1,300,580 shares were issued on the vesting of Share Rights during the year ended 30 June 2011. 2,694,270 options at an exercise
price of A$8.77 lapsed. At the date of lapse, these options had zero value.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

SHARES UNDER OPTION

Unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option at the
date of this report are as follows:

Date options granted Date of Performance Expiry date Exercise price of Number under option
Condition Test options(A$)
29 January 2008 29 January 2011 29 January 2013 4.50 6,606,187
15 February 2008 15 February 2011 15 February 2013 5.37 300,000
18 April 2008 18 April 2011 18 April 2013 4.59 475,000
14 October 2008 14 October 2011 14 October 2013 2.54 750,000
Total 8,131,187

Since the end of the financial year, 95,444 options were forfeited
due to the cessation of employment.

No option holder has any right under the options to participate
in any other share issue of the Company or of any other entity.

The outstanding balance of Performance Share Rights at the
date of this report are as follows:

&
2
w
?C Date rights granted Vesting date Vesting performance conditions Number
g 26 March 2010 26 March 2013 TSR *150,000
B 26 March 2010 26 March 2013 EPS *150,000
E 26 March 2010 1 September 2011 Time based 575,025
= 26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Time based 958,375
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 TSR 766,700
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Market Price (base price A$3.82) 1,150,050
5 November 2010 5 November 2013 TSR *250,000
5 November 2010 5 November 2013 EPS *250,000
5 November 2010 1 September 2011 Time based 197,110
5 November 2010 1 September 2012 Time based 295,665
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Time based 492,775
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 TSR 394,220
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Market price (base price A$3.62) 591,330
86 15 February 2011 15 February 2012 Time based 155,336
15 February 2011 15 February 2013 Time based 178,838
15 February 2011 15 February 2014 Time based 225,843
Total 6,781,267

Managing Director/CEO grant
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DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

During the year the Company has incurred premiums to insure
the Directors and/or officers for liabilities incurred as costs and
expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal
proceedings that may be brought against the officers in their
capacity as officers of the Company and or its controlled entities.
Under the terms and conditions of the insurance contract, the
nature of liabilities insured against and the premium paid cannot
be disclosed.

ROUNDING

The amounts contained in this report, the Financial Report and
the Management, Discussion and Analysis have been rounded to
the nearest US$100,000 (where rounding is applicable) under the
option available to the Company under ASIC Class Order 98/0100.
The Company is an entity to which the Class Order applies.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young were appointed auditors for the Company on 21
June 2005, which was approved by shareholders at the 2005
Annual General Meeting on 9 November 2005.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The following non-audit and assurance services were provided
by the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young. The Directors are
satisfied that the provision of non-audit and assurance services
is compatible with the general standard of independence for
auditors imposed by the Corporations Act. The nature and
scope of each type of non-audit and assurance service provided
means that auditor independence was not compromised.

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE
DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS

OF PALADIN ENERGY LTD

In relation to our review of the financial report of Paladin
Energy Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2011, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the

auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

ook«

Ernst & Young

G H Meyerowitz
Partner

Perth

31 August 2011

PALADIN ENERGY LTD » ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Ernst & Young received or are due to receive the following
amounts for the provision of non-audit services:

US$’000
Tax compliance services 101
International tax consulting 165
Tax advice on mergers and acquisitions 232
Other tax advice 51
Total 549

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

s

Mr John Borshoff
Managing Director/CEO
Perth, Western Australia
31 August 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

CONSOLIDATED
Notes 2011 2010
Ussm Us$M
. ____________________________'_______|
Revenue
Revenue 5(a) 268.9 204.3
Cost of sales (170.9) (131.6)
98.0 72.7
Depreciation and amortisation (36.1) (14.3)
Product distribution costs 9.2) (3.4)
Royalties (6.0) 4.0
Gross profit 46.7 51.0
Other income 5(b) 1.9 9.5
Exploration and evaluation expenses i3 (3.0) 9.4
Administration, marketing and non-production costs 5(c) (54.0) (38.6)
Other expenses 5(d) (35.2) ©.1)
'_
o
(Loss)/earnings before interest and tax (43.6) 3.4 2
Finance costs 5(e) (61.5) (21.4) o
—J
Net loss before income tax (105.1) (18.0) <
o
=2
Income tax benefit/(expense) 6(a) 16.6 (28.5) <Zt
Net loss after tax (88.5) (46.5) -
Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests (6.2) 0.9
Members of the parent (82.3) (45.6)
Loss per share (US cents)
Loss after tax from operations attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company
— basic and diluted (US cents) 30 (11.1) 6.5)

The above Consolidated Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Net loss after tax from operations (88.5) (46.5)

Other comprehensive income

Net gain/(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets 10.8 (87.0)
Transfer of available-for-sale reserve on acquisition of entity (3.2 -

Foreign currency translation 1411 31.7
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income (3.7) 8.0
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 145.0 2.7
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 56.5 (43.8)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:

Non-controlling interests 9.2 3.1
Members of the parent 47.3 (46.9)
56.5 (43.8)

The above Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

CONSOLIDATED
Notes 2011 2010 2009
US$M US$M US$M
' ___________________________________________________'______|
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 117.4 347.9 66.1
Trade and other receivables 8 20.5 8.2 26.4
Prepayments 13.8 11355 2.7
Inventories 9 177.7 109.3 85.8
Financial assets held for trading - - 1.0
Non current assets held for sale 11(b) - 12.0 -
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 329.4 515.9 182.0
Non current assets
Trade and other receivables 8 1.5 0.3 2.2
Inventories 9 73.6 40.8 24.9
Other financial assets 10 41.8 35.7 69.2
Deferred borrowing costs - - 8.2 >
Property, plant and equipment 11(a) 630.1 5411 457.8 8
w
Mine development 12 106.6 119.2 54.2 o
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 13 1,177.9 695.1 642.9 =
Deferred tax asset 6(d) 19.7 4.0 10.8 =
Intangible assets 14 23.1 24.6 25.6 <zt
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 2,074.3 1,460.8 1,295.8 -
TOTAL ASSETS 2,403.7 1,976.7 1,477.8
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 69.7 63.4 67.1
Unearned revenue - - 0.2
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 43.9 47.9 14.2
Provisions 17 5.3 10.1 9.8
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 118.9 121.4 91.3
Non current liabilities
Unearned revenue - - 0.2 9]
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 16 675.8 682.2 572.0
Deferred tax liabilities 6(d) 217.5 168.7 143.4
Provisions 17 36.3 33.5 32.3
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 929.6 884.4 747.9
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,048.5 1,005.8 839.2
NET ASSETS 1,355.2 970.9 638.6
EQUITY
Contributed equity 18(a) 1,768.1 1,474.6 1,111.6
Reserves 18(c) 205.2 42.6 32.0
Accumulated losses (701.8) (619.5) (5673.9)
Parent interests 1,271.5 897.7 569.7
Non-controlling interests 83.7 73.2 68.9
TOTAL EQUITY 1,355.2 970.9 638.6

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The comparative statement for the year ended 30 June 2009 has been restated to show the effect of the voluntary
change in accounting policy (refer to page 110).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Share- Convertible

Available Based Bond Non-

Contributed -for-Sale Payments  Distributable

Notes Equity Reserve Reserve Reserve
US$M US$Mm US$M US$M

CONSOLIDATED

Balance at 1 July 2009 as
previously stated 1,111.6 B285 26.0 38.9

Effect of accounting policy change & - - - -

Balance at 1 July 2009 - restated 1,111.6 32.5 26.0 38.9

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year net tax - (24.8) - -

Share-based payment - - 12.0 -

Contributions of equity, net of transactions
costs 363.0 - - -

Balance at 30 June 2010 1,474.6 7.7 38.0 38.9

Balance at 1 July 2010 as
previously stated 1,474.6 7.7 38.0 38.9

Effect of accounting policy change 3 - - - -

Balance at 1 July 2010 - restated 1,474.6 7.7 38.0 38.9
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the

year net tax - 4.0 - -
Share-based payment = - 14.6 _
Vesting performance rights 3.1 - 8.1) -
Contributions of equity, net of

transaction costs 290.4 - - -
Convertible bonds — equity component,

net of tax and transaction costs - - - 28.1
Convertible bonds — buyback - - - (6.6)

—
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Balance at 30 June 2011 1,768.1 11.7 49.5 60.4

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

9¢
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Foreign Attributable
Currency  Premium on Option to Owners Non-
Revaluation Acquisition Application Consolidated Accumulated of the Controlling
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Losses Parent Interests Total
US$Mm US$M US$M US$M US$M US$Mm US$M US$M

(80.3) 14.9 0.1 (0.2) (581.2) 562.3 68.9 631.2
- - - - 7.3 7.3 0.1 7.4
(80.3) 14.9 0.1 (0.2) (573.9) 569.6 69.0 638.6
235 - - - (45.6) (46.9) 3.1 (43.8)
- - - - - 12.0 - 12.0
- - - - - 363.0 1.1 364.1
(56.8) 14.9 0.1 (0.2) (619.5) 897.7 73.2 970.9 =
=
(56.8) 14.9 0.1 0.2) (634.0) 883.2 73.2 956.4 2
=
- - - - 14.5 14.5 - 14.5 =
=2
(56.8) 14.9 0.1 (0.2) (619.5) 897.7 73.2 970.9 =
w
125.6 - - - (82.3) 473 9.2 56.5
- - - - - 14.6 - 14.6
- - - - - 290.4 1.3 291.7
- - - - - 28.1 - 28.1
B _ - . = (6.6) = (6.6)
68.8 14.9 0.1 (0.2) (701.8) 1,271.5 83.7 1,355.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

CONSOLIDATED
Notes 2011 2010
US$M US$M

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers 281.0 201.0
Payments to suppliers and employees (348.6) (202.8)
Interest received 1.6 1.8
Interest paid (33.2) (83.0)
Exploration and evaluation expenditure (3.0) 9.2)
Other income 0.2 7.7
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7(a) (102.0) (34.5)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capitalised exploration expenditure (17.6) (7.4)
Payments for property, plant and equipment (129.4) (170.4)
Payments for available-for-sale financial assets - (1.8

b Payments for controlled entities net of cash acquired 27 (3.5) -

8 Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 11.7 -

w

[ Proceeds from sale of tenements 3.0 -

= Proceeds from sale of investments 3.3 -

()

<ZE NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (132.5) (179.6)

=

w CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from convertible bonds 300.0 -
Repayment of convertible bonds (253.3) -
Share placement - 374.2
Rights issue 1.3 1.1
Equity fundraising costs (6.9) (11.2)
Project finance facility establishment costs - (7.2)
Repayment of borrowings (51.8) (6.6)
Proceeds from borrowings 12.0 145.0
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1.3 495.3
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (233.2) 281.2

94

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 347.9 65.3
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2.7 1.4
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 7 117.4 347.9

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.
(a)

(b)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Financial Report of Paladin for the year ended 30 June 2011 was authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Directors on 30 August 2011.

Paladin is a company limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in Australia whose shares are publicly
traded on the ASX with additional listings on the Toronto Stock Exchange in Canada as well as Munich,
Berlin, Stuttgart and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges in Europe; and the Namibian Stock Exchange in Africa.

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are described in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 43.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

The Financial Report is a general purpose Financial Report, which has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Report complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The Financial Report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale
investments and financial assets held for trading, which have been measured at fair value. Where necessary,
comparatives have been reclassified and repositioned for consistency with current year disclosures.

In addition to these Australian requirements further information has been included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011 in order to comply with applicable Canadian
securities law, as the Company is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.

The Financial Report is presented in US dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand
dollars (US$100,000) unless otherwise stated under the option available to the Company under Australian
Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC) Class Order 98/100. The Company is an entity to which the
class order applies.
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Apart from changes in accounting policies noted below, the accounting policies adopted are consistent with
those disclosed in the Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2010. Certain comparative information
has been reclassified to be presented on a consistent basis with the current year’s presentation.

New accounting Standards and Interpretations

() Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

During the year the Group adopted a voluntary change in accounting policy (refer to Note 3).

The Group has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB
interpretations effective from 1 July 1010 as follows:

Reference Title

|

AASB Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual 95
2009-5 Improvements Project — The subject of amendments to the standards are set out below:

e AASB 5 - Disclosures in relation to non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as
held for sale or discontinued operations.

e AASB 8 - Disclosure of information about segment assets.

e AASB 101 - Current/non-current classification of convertible instruments.

e AASB 117 - Classification of leases of land.

e AASB 118 - Determining whether an entity is acting as a principle or an agent.

e AASB 136 - Clarifying the unit of account for goodwill impairment test is not larger than
an operating segment before aggregation.

e AASB 139 - Treating loan prepayment penalties as closely related embedded
derivatives, and revising the scope exemption for forward contracts to enter into a
business combination contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
(i)  Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)

Reference Title
. ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

AASB Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Group Cash-settled Share-based
2009-8 Payment Transactions [AASB 2].

AASB Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Classification of Rights Issues [AASB
2009-10 132].

AASB Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements
2010-3 Project [AASB 3, AASB 7, AASB 121, AASB 128, AASB 131, AASB 132 & AASB 139].

Interpretation Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments.
19

The new and amended Standards and Interpretations had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

(i) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet
effective and have not been applied by the Group for the annual reporting period ending 30 June 2011,
outlined in the table below:

Application  Application

Date of Date for
Reference Title Summary Standard*  Group*
. ! ' ______________________________________________________! |
AASB 9 Financial Instruments ~ AASB 9 includes requirements for the 1 January 1 July 2013
classification and measurement of 2013

financial assets resulting from the first
part of Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (AASB
139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement).

AASB Amendments to These amendments arise from 1 January 1 July 2013
2009-11 Australian Accounting  the issuance of AASB 9 Financial 2013

Standards Arising Instruments that sets out requirements

from AASB 9 [AASB for the classification and measurement

1,8,4,5, 7,101, of financial assets.

102, 108, 112,

This Standard shall be applied when

118, 121,127,128, \agg g s applied.

131, 132, 136, 139,
1023 & 1038 and
Interpretations 10 &

12].
AASB 124 Related Party The revised AASB 124 simplifies the 1 January 1 July 2011
(Revised) Disclosures definition of a related party, clarifying 2011

(December 2009) its intended meaning and eliminating

inconsistencies from the definition.

A partial exemption is also provided
from the disclosure requirements

for government-related entities.
Changes to the revised standard apply
retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
(i) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

Application  Application

Date of Date for
Reference Title Summary Standard*  Group*
. _______________________________________________________________________________________________________|
AASB Amendments to This amendment makes numerous 1 January 1 July 2011
2009-12 Australian Accounting  editorial changes made by the 2011
Standards [AASBs IASB and AASB to a range of

5, 8, 108, 110, 112, Australian Accounting Standards and
119, 133, 137, 139, Interpretations.

1023 & 1031 and

Interpretations 2, 4,

16, 1039 & 1052]

AASB Australian Additional This standard is as a consequence 1 July 2011 1 July 2011
1054 Disclosures of phase 1 of the joint Trans-Tasman
Convergence project of the AASB
and FRSB, and relocates all Australian b~
specific disclosures from other 8
standards to one place and revises w
certain other disclosures. »
<
AASB Further Amendments  This standard makes amendments to 1 January 1 July 2011 @]
2010-4 to Australian several Australian Accounting Standards 2011 <Z:
Accounting Standards and Interpretations. These amendments E
arising from the are a consequence of the Annual

Annual Improvements  Improvements Project.
Project [AASB 1,

AASB 7, AASB

101, AASB 134 and

Interpretation 13].

AASB Amendments to This Standard makes numerous 1 January 1 July 2011
2010-5 Australian Accounting  editorial amendments to a range of 2011

Standards [AASB Australian Accounting Standards and

1, 3, 4,5, 101, Interpretations, including amendments

107, 112, 118, to reflect changes made to the text of

119, 121, 132, 133, IFRS by the IASB.
134, 137, 139, 140,

1023 & 1038 and

Interpretations 112,

115, 127, 132 &

97

1042].
AASB Amendments to The amendments increase the 1 July 2011 1 July 2011
2010-6 Australian Standards  disclosure requirements for transactions

— Disclosures on involving transfers of financial assets.

Transfers of Financial
Assets [AASB 1 &
AASB 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)

(i) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

Reference

Title

Application  Application
Date of Date for

Summary Standard*  Group*

AASB
2010-7

AASB
2011-1

*k

*k

*k

Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards arising
from AASB 9
(December 2010)
[AASB 1, 3, 4, 5,
7,101, 102, 108,
112, 118, 120, 121,
127,128, 131,

132, 136, 137, 139,
1023, & 1038 and
interpretations 2, 5,
10, 12, 19 & 127]

Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards Arising
from the Trans-
Tasman Convergence
project [AASB 1,
AASB 5, AASB 101,
AASB 107, AASB
108, AASB 121,
AASB 128, AASB
132, AASB 134,
Interpretation 2,
Interpretation 112,
Interpretation 113]

Consolidated
Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests
In Other Entities.

This standard makes amendments to 1 January
several Australian Accounting Standards 2013

and Interpretations. These amendments

arise from the issuance of AASB 9

Financial Instruments as issued in

December 2009.

1 July 2013

This Standard amends many Australian 1 July 2011 1 July 2011
Accounting Standards, removing the

disclosures which have been relocated

to AASB 1054.

IFRS 10 establishes a new control 1 January
model that applies to all entities. It 2013
replaces parts of IAS 27 Consolidated

and Separate Financial Statements

dealing with the accounting for

consolidated financial statements.

1 July 2013

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in 1 January
Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly- 2013
controlled Entities — Non-monetary

Contributions by Ventures. IFRS 11

uses the principle of control in IFRS 10

to define joint control, and therefore the
determination of whether joint control

exists may change.

1 July 2013

New disclosures have been 1 January
introduced about the judgements 2013
made by management to determine

whether control exists, and to require

summarised information about

joint arrangements, associates and

structured entities and subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests.

1 July 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New accounting Standards and Interpretations (continued)
(i) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)

Application  Application

Date of Date for
Reference Title Summary Standard*  Group*
S
. Fair Value IFRS 13 provides guidance on how to 1 January 1 July 2013
Measurement determine fair value under IFRS when 2013

fair value is required or permitted by
IFRS. Application of this definition
may result in different fair values being
determined for the relevant assets.

IFRS 13 also expands the disclosure
requirements for all assets or liabilities
carried at fair value.

*

Designates the beginning of the applicable annual reporting period unless otherwise stated.

** The AASB has not issued this standard, which was finalised by the IASB in May 2011.

The potential effect of these Standards is yet to be fully determined. However, it is not expected that the
new Standards will significantly affect the Group’s financial position.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Paladin Energy Ltd and its
subsidiaries as at and for the period ended 30 June each year (the Group). Interests in associates are equity
accounted and are not part of the consolidated Group.
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Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether a group controls another
entity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all
intercompany balances and transactions, income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions have been eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to be
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. The acquisition
method of accounting involves recognising at acquisition date, separately from goodwill, the identifiable 9q
assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The identifiable

assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition date fair values (refer to Note

2()).

The difference between the above items and the fair value of the consideration (including the fair value of

any pre-existing investment in the acquiree) is goodwill or a discount on acquisition.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

Non-controlling interests are allocated their share of net profit after tax in the statement of comprehensive
income and are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from
the equity of the owners of the parent.

Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(c)

(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

e Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity;

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and

e Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income to
profit or loss.

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often determined based on estimates and
assumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting
period are:

(i) Net realisable Value of Inventories

The Group reviews the carrying value of inventories regularly to ensure that their cost does not exceed net
realisable value. In determining net realisable value various factors are taken into account including sales
prices and costs to complete inventories to their final form.

(i) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment,; Mine Development and Intangibles

Property, plant and equipment; mine development and intangibles are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The Group conducts an annual internal review of asset values, which is used as a source of information
to assess for any indicators of impairment. Factors, such as changes in uranium prices, production
performance and mining and processing costs are monitored to assess for indicators of impairment. If any
indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units).

(i) Available-for-Sale Financial Assets and Financial Assets Held for Trading

The Group measures the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which they are valued. The fair value of the unlisted securities is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions, net
asset values and by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes model.

(iv) Carrying Value of Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

The Group reviews the carrying value of exploration and evaluation expenditure at least on a quarterly basis.
This requires judgement as to the status of the individual projects and their future economic value.

(v) Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The Group is subject to income taxes in Australia and jurisdictions where it has foreign operations.
Significant judgement is required in determining deferred tax assets and liabilities. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(d)

(e)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)
(vi) Rehabilitation Provision

The value of this provision represents the discounted value of the present obligation to rehabilitate the mine
and to restore, dismantle and close the mine. The discounted value reflects a combination of management’s
assessment of the cost of performing the work required, the timing of the cash flows and the discount rate.
A change in any, or a combination, of the three key assumptions (estimated cash flows, discount rates or
inflation rates), used to determine the provision could have a material impact to the carrying value of the
provision.

(vii) Share-Based Payment Transactions

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using either the Black-Scholes model, Monte-Carlo simulation model or Asset or Nothing Digital
Option valuation model as appropriate, using assumptions detailed in Note 25.

(viii) Proved and Probable Reserves

The Group uses the concept of a life of mine as an accounting value to determine such things as

depreciation rates and the appropriate period to discount mine closure provisions. In determining life of mine
the proved and probable reserves measured in accordance with the 2004 edition of the JORC Code specific
to a mine are taken into account which by their very nature require judgements, estimates and assumptions.

(ix) Production Start Date

The Group assesses the stage of each mine under construction to determine when a mine moves into the
production stage. The criteria used to assess the start date are determined based on the unique nature of
each mine construction project, such as the complexity of a plant and its location. The Group considers
various relevant criteria to assess when the mine and the processing plant is substantially complete, ready
for its intended use. At this time, any costs capitalised to ‘construction work in progress’ are reclassified
to ‘mine development’ and ‘property, plant and equipment’. Some of the criteria will include, but are not
limited, to the following:
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e availability of the plant

e completion of a reasonable period of testing of the mine plant and equipment
e ability to produce metal in saleable form (within specifications)

e ability to sustain ongoing production of metal at commercial rates of production

When a mine construction project moves into the production stage, the capitalisation of certain mine
construction costs ceases and costs are either regarded as inventory or expensed, except for costs that
qualify for capitalisation relating to mine asset additions or improvements, mine development or mineable
reserve development. It is also at this point that depreciation/amortisation commences.

Segment Reporting 107

An operating segment is a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenue and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other
components of the same entity), whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s executive
management team (the chief operating decision makers) to make decisions about resources to be allocated
to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. This
includes start-up operations which are yet to earn revenues. Management will also consider other factors

in determining operating segments such as the existence of a line manager and the level of segment
information presented to the executive management team.

Operating segments have been identified based on the information provided to the chief operating decision
makers, being the executive management team.

Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately.
However, an operating segment that does not meet the quantitative criteria is still reported separately where
information about the segment would be useful to users of the financial statements.

The Company has identified its operating segments to be Exploration, Namibia and Malawi on the basis of
the nature of activity and geographical location and different regulatory environments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
U]

(9)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign Currency Translation
(i)  Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the Financial Statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in United States dollars (US dollars), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are converted into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement. Translation differences on
available-for-sale financial assets are included in the available-for-sale reserve.

(i)  Group Companies

Some Group entities have a functional currency of US dollars which is consistent with the Group’s
presentational currency. For all other group entities the functional currency has been translated into US
dollars for presentation purposes. Assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date; revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange rates prevailing for the
income statement year; and equity transactions are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions. The resulting difference from translation is recognised in a foreign currency translation reserve.
Foreign currency translation reserves upon the sale of a subsidiary is recycled to the Income Statement.

The following material operating subsidiaries have a US dollar functional currency:

e Paladin Finance Pty Ltd

e Paladin (Africa) Ltd

e Langer Heinrich Uranium (Pty) Ltd

e Paladin Nuclear Ltd

e Indo Energy Ltd

The following material operating subsidiaries have an Australian dollar functional currency:
e Northern Territory Uranium Pty Ltd

e Mount Isa Uranium Pty Ltd

e Paladin Energy Minerals NL

e  Summit Resources (Aust) Pty Ltd

e Fusion Resources Pty Ltd

The following material operating subsidiaries have a Canadian dollar functional currency:
e  Aurora Energy Ltd

e Michelin Uranium Ltd

e Paladin Canada Holdings (NL) Ltd

e Paladin Canada Investments (NL) Ltd

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of duties and taxes paid. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
()  Sale of Uranium

Revenue from sale of uranium is recognised when risk and reward of ownership pass which is when title of
the product passes from the Group pursuant to an enforceable contract, when selling prices are known or
can be reasonably estimated and when the product is in a form that requires no further treatment by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(9)

(h)

0

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue Recognition (continued)
(i) Interest Revenue

Interest revenue from investments in cash is recognised in the Income Statement as interest accrues using
the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

(i) Database Licence Revenue

Licence revenue generated from granting third parties access to proprietary database information on mineral
property regions is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the licence term.

Income Tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the Financial Statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to
apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted
or substantively enacted for each jurisdiction. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts
of deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception
is made for certain temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No
deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not affect either
accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in controlled entities where the Parent Entity is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised
directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Paladin and all its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consolidated group under
Australian tax law.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.

Incentives received on entering into operating leases are recognised as liabilities. Lease payments are
allocated between rental expense and reduction of the lease incentive liability on a straight line basis over
the period of the lease.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. Prior to 1 July 2009 the purchase
method of accounting was used to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred

in a business combination shall be measured at fair value, which shall be calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by the acquirer to
former owners of the acquiree and the equity issued by the acquirer, and the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(1)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business Combinations (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions, the Group’s
operating or accounting policies and other pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at fair value as at the acquisition date through profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with AASB 139 either in profit or loss or in other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall not be remeasured.

Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss

is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 day terms, are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible
are written off when identified. An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is objective evidence
that the group will not be able to collect the debt. Financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or
debts more than 60 days overdue are considered objective evidence of impairment.

Inventories

Consumable stores inventory are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the weighted
average cost method, after appropriate allowances for redundant and slow moving items.

Finished goods and work in progress inventory are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using
the weighted average cost method. Cost is derived on an absorption costing basis including both fixed and
variable production costs and attributable overheads incurred up to the delivery point where legal title to

the product passes. No accounting value is attributed to stockpiles containing ore at less than the cut-off
grade.

Any inventory produced during the development phase is initially recognised at its deemed cost, being net
realisable value and deducted from capitalised development costs.

The costs of production include labour costs, materials and contractor expenses which are directly
attributable to the extraction and processing of ore (including any recognised expense of stripping costs);
the depreciation of property, plant and equipment used in the extraction and processing of ore; and
production overheads.

Inventory held for trading by Paladin Nuclear Ltd, the Group’s marketing entity, is valued at the lower of
actual cost and net realisable value, using a blend of spot and long-term prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(o)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and Other Financial Assets

The Group classifies its investments and other financial assets in the following categories: loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets held for
trading. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each
reporting date.

Classification
() Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a
debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for those with
maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non current assets.
Loans and receivables are included in receivables in the Balance Sheet. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(i) Held-to-Maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(i) Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
in non current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.
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Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date which is the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs. Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses which
arise from changes in the fair value of non monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,

the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the Income Statement as gains and losses from
investment securities.

(iv) Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are derivative instruments or acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the
Income Statement.

(v) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset

or liability is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include reference to the fair values of recent arm’s length transactions, involving the same
instruments or other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

The nominal value less estimated adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

(vi) Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant

or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered in determining whether

the security is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative

loss which is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit and loss is removed from equity and
recognised in the Income Statement. Any subsequent increase in value is recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(p)

(a)

()

(s)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in Jointly Controlled Assets

The Group has interests in joint ventures that are jointly controlled assets. A joint venture is a contractual
arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control. A
jointly controlled asset involves use of assets and other resources of the venturers rather than establishment
of a separate entity. The Group recognises its interest in jointly controlled assets by recognising its interest in
the assets and the liabilities of the joint venture. The Group also recognises the expenses that it incurs and
its share of the income that it earns from the sale of goods or services by jointly controlled assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment costs include both the costs associated with construction of equipment
associated with establishment of an operating mine, and the estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using either the unit of production basis
or the straight line method to allocate their cost amount, net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

e Buildings 20 years
e Databases 10 years
e Plant and equipment 2-6 years
e | easehold improvements 7 years

e Mine plant and equipment lesser of life of asset and unit of production basis

During the year the depreciation basis for mine plant and equipment was changed from straight-line to
a unit of production basis as management believe this better reflects the consumption of the economic
benefits. The amount of the effect in future periods is not disclosed because estimating it is impracticable.
The amount relating to the year ended 30 June 2011 is a reduction in depreciation expense of US$1.1M.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are
included in the Income Statement. When revalued assets are sold, it is Group policy to transfer the amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

Mine Development

Pre-production costs are deferred as development costs until such time as the asset is capable of being
operated in a manner intended by management. Post-production costs are recognised as a cost of
production.

Overburden cost is capitalised and depreciated on a units of production basis. Stripping costs are
recognised as a production cost as incurred.
Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure

The Company has made a voluntary change to its accounting policy for exploration and evaluation
expenditure. Refer to Note 3 for disclosure regarding the change.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure related to areas of interest is capitalised and carried forward to the
extent that:

(i) rights to tenure of the area of interest are current; and

(i) costs are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of
interest or alternatively by its sale.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure is allocated separately to specific areas of interest. Such expenditure
comprises net direct costs and an appropriate portion of related overhead expenditure directly related to
activities in the area of interest.
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NOTE 2.
(s)

®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Exploration and Evaluation Expenditure (continued)

Costs related to the acquisition of properties that contain Mineral Resources are allocated separately to
specific areas of interest.

If costs are not expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of
interest or alternatively by sale, costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure that is capitalised is included as part of cash flows from investing
activities whereas exploration and evaluation expenditure that is expensed is included as part of cash flows
from operating activities.

When a decision to proceed to development is made the exploration and evaluation capitalised to that area
is transferred to mine development within property, plant and equipment. All costs subsequently incurred to
develop a mine prior to the start of mining operations within the area of interest are capitalised and carried
at cost. These costs include expenditure incurred to develop new ore bodies within the area of interest, to
define further mineralisation in existing areas of interest, to expand the capacity of a mine and to maintain
production.

Capitalised amounts for an area of interest may be written down to its recoverable amount if the area of
interest’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Intangibles

Intangible assets acquired separately or in a business combination are initially measured at cost. The cost
of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Income Statement in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful life and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset

are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which

is a change in accounting estimate. The amortisation expense on the intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed each reporting period to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate and is thus accounted for on a prospective basis.

A summary of the policies applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows:

Right to use water and power supply

Useful lives Life of mine
Amortisation method used Amortised over the life of the mine on a unit of production basis
Impairment testing Annually and more frequently when an indication of impairment exists.

The amortisation method is reviewed at each financial year-end.

The rights to use water and power supply have been granted for a minimum of 17 years from April 2007 by
the relevant utilities with the option of renewal without significant cost at the end of this period.

Kayelekera Mining Lease

Useful lives Finite

Amortisation method used Amortised over the life of the mine on a straight-line basis Impairment
testing Annually and more frequently when an indication of impairment
exists. The amortisation method is reviewed at each financial year-end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Income Statement
when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the
Group becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Bank loan borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank loan
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Income Statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of debt is recognised as a liability in the
Statement of Financial Position, net of transaction costs. On issue of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond and this
amount is carried as a liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The increase in the liability due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the equity component and is recognised in shareholders’ equity. The carrying
amount of the equity component is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed as incurred including the unwinding of discounts related to mine closure provisions.
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the entity’s outstanding borrowings during the year.

Employee Benefits
(i)  Wages and Salaries, Annual Leave and Sick Leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave
due to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised as a current liability in respect of
employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken
and measured at the rates paid or payable.

(i) Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the
reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(i) - Long-Term Incentive Plan

The liability for the retention programme is recognised in the provision for employee benefits as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of the retention bonus programme. Consideration
is given to expected future salary levels and experience of employee departures. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms of
maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Projected unit
credit method has been used to calculate the provision.

(iv) Share-Based Payments

Share-based compensation benefits were provided to employees via the Paladin Executive Share Option
Plan (EXSOP). Following the implementation of the Employee Performance Share Rights Plan and the
Contractor Performance Share Rights Plan (Rights Plans) detailed in Note 25, no further options will be
granted pursuant to the EXSOP.
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NOTE 2.
()

v)

(2)

(aa)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee Benefits (continued)
(iv) Share-Based Payments (continued)

The fair value of options granted under both the EXSOP and rights under the Rights Plans are recognised
as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date and recognised over the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the
options or rights.

The fair value of options at grant date is independently determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model
that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option or right, the vesting and performance
criteria, the impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the option or right, the share price at grant date
and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest
rate for the term of the option. The Monte-Carlo model is used to model the future value of the Company’s
shares and the movement of the comparator companies’ Total Shareholder Return (TSR) on the various
vesting dates associated with vesting requirements of the options.

The rights with a non-market based performance condition (time based and EPS) were valued using a
Black-Scholes model. The rights that contained relative TSR performance condition are modelled using a
Monte-Carlo simulation model. The rights subject to the market price condition were valued using an Asset
or Nothing Digital Option valuation model.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options or rights that are
expected to become exercisable or granted. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimate of

the number of options and rights that are expected to become exercisable. The employee benefit expense
recognised each period takes into account the most recent estimate.

Upon the exercise of options or the grant of rights, the balance of the share-based payments reserve
relating to those options is transferred to share capital.
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The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with other parties by reference to the fair
value of the goods or services received. Where the fair value of the goods or services cannot be reliably
determined, or where the goods or services cannot be identified, the Group measures the cost of the
transaction by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.

Mine Closure and Rehabilitation

Mine closure and restoration costs include the costs of dismantling and demolition of infrastructure or
decommissioning, the removal of residual material and the remediation of disturbed areas specific to the
infrastructure. Mine closure costs are provided for in the accounting period when the obligation arising from
the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the mine development or during the production
phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

As the value of the provision for mine closure represents the discounted value of the present obligation
to restore, dismantle and close the mine, the increase in this provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Provision is made for rehabilitation work when the obligation arises and this is recognised as a cost of
production or development. The rehabilitation costs, provided for are the present value of the estimated
costs to restore operating locations. The value of the provision represents the discounted value of the
current estimate to restore and the discount rate used is the pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Onerous Contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract. The
provision is stated at the present value of the future net cash outflows expected to be incurred in respect of
the contract.

Contributed Equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 2.
(ab)

NOTE 3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Earnings Per Share
(i)  Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

(i) Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after income tax effect associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted

average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

VOLUNTARY CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of a retrospective application of a voluntary change in
accounting policy relating to exploration and evaluation expenditure.

The new exploration and evaluation expenditure accounting policy is to capitalise and carry forward
exploration and evaluation expenditure as an asset when rights to tenure of the area of interest are current
and costs are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of
interest or alternatively by its sale. Refer to Note 2(s) for the full detail of the new accounting policy.

The previous accounting policy was to charge exploration and evaluation expenditure against profit and
loss as incurred; except for acquisition costs and for expenditure incurred after a decision to proceed to
development was made, in which case the expenditure was capitalised as an asset.

The new accounting policy was adopted on 31 March 2011 and has been applied retrospectively.
Management judges that the change in policy will result in the financial report providing more relevant and
no less reliable information because it leads to a more transparent treatment of exploration and evaluation
expenditure that meets the definition of an asset and is consistent with the treatment of other assets
controlled by the Group when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
asset has a cost that can be measured reliably. AASB 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
allows both the previous and new accounting policies of the Group.

Given the significance of the exploration programmes that are being undertaken by the Company following
the acquisition of Summit Resources Limited, the recent acquisition of the uranium assets of Aurora Energy
Resources Inc. and the takeover of NGM Resources Ltd, it was considered appropriate to change the
accounting policy.

The impact of the change in accounting policy on the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows is set out below:

Consolidated Income Statement

Exploration and evaluation expenditure related to qualifying areas of interest has been capitalised in
accordance with the accounting policy subject to an impairment review. This has resulted in a decrease
in exploration and evaluation expenditure of US$17.1M and a net decrease in non-controlling interests of
US$1.1M (2010: Nil) for the year to 30 June 2011.

Net loss before and after tax before non-controlling interests has decreased by US$17.1M for the year to 30
June 2011 (2010:US$7.3M).

Basic and diluted loss per share has also been restated. This has resulted in a reduction of 2.3 US cents in
the loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010: reduction of 1.1 US cents per share).
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The carried forward exploration and evaluation asset at 30 June 2011 has increased by US$35.5M. This
adjustment represents a decrease in accumulated losses of US$32.5M, an increase in the Functional
Currency Translation Reserve of US$4.0M and a decrease in non-controlling interests of US$1.0M.

The carried forward exploration and evaluation asset at 30 June 2010 has increased by US$15.1M. This
adjustment represents a decrease in accumulated losses of US$14.5M and a net movement in deferred tax
assets and liabilities of US$0.6M.

Cumulative capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure at 1 July 2009 has increased by US$7.4M.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

VOLUNTARY CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Exploration and evaluation expenditure that is capitalised is included as part of cash flows from investing
activities whereas exploration and evaluation expenditure that is expensed is included as part of cash flows
from operating activities. This has resulted in additional cash outflows from investing activities being reflected
for capitalised exploration expenditure of US$17.6M for the year to 30 June 2011 (2010:US$7.4M). This has
also resulted in a corresponding reduction being reflected in the net cash outflow from operating activities
for the equivalent periods.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of Reportable Segments

The Company has identified its operating segments to be Exploration, Namibia and Malawi, on the basis

of the nature of the activity and geographical location and different regulatory environments. The main
segment activity in Namibia and Malawi is the production and sale of uranium from the mines located in
these geographic regions. The Exploration segment is focused on developing exploration and evaluation
projects in Australia, Niger and Canada. Previously exploration was disclosed within the Australia segment.
Unallocated portion covers the Company’s sales and marketing, treasury, corporate and administration. The
prior year comparatives have been restated due to the change in operating segments.

Discrete financial information about each of these operating segments is reported to the Group’s executive
management team (chief operating decision makers) on at least a monthly basis.

The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting segments internally are the same as those contained
in Note 2 to the accounts and in the prior period.

Inter-entity sales are priced with reference to the spot rate.

Corporate charges comprise hon-segmental expenses such as corporate office expenses. A proportion of
the corporate charges are allocated to Namibia and Malawi on the basis of timesheet allocations with the
balance remaining in Unallocated.
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The following items are not allocated to segments as they are not considered part of the core operations of
any segment:

e Interest revenue
e Non project finance interest and borrowing expense
e Unallocated corporate and labour costs

The Group’s customers are major utilities and other entities located mainly in USA, Australia, China,
Taiwan and UK. These revenues are attributed to the geographic location of the mines being the reporting
segments Namibia and Malawi.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following tables present revenue, expenditure and asset information regarding operating segments for
the years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010.

Exploration Namibia Malawi  Unallocated Consolidated
Year ended 30 June 2011 US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M
' '/ ________________________]
Sales to external customers - 166.5 100.3 - 266.8
Other revenue - - - 2.1 2.1
Inter segment sales - 26.9 - - 26.9
Total segment revenue - 193.4 100.3 2.1 295.8
Elimination of inter segment
sales - (26.9) - - (26.9)
Total consolidated revenue - 166.5 100.3 2.1 268.9
Segment (loss)/profit before
income tax and finance costs (1.4) 44.9 (37.4) (49.7) (43.6)
Finance costs - (3.6) (8.8) (49.1) (61.5)
— Loss before income tax (105.1)
(a4
8 Income tax benefit/(expense) 0.5 (15.7) 22.3 9.5 16.6
S I
[a 4
2 Loss after income tax (88.5)
= Segment assets/total assets 1,184.0 498.4 576.7 144.6 2,403.7
<
=
w Consol-
Australia Canada Malawi Namibia Other idated
US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M
. ! ! ___________ _________]
Non current assets
by country* 891.4 270.2 427.9 385.7 36.1 2,011.3

In 2011, the three most significant customers equated on a proportionate basis to 14% (US$37.4M Namibia
and Malawi), 14% (US$36.5M Malawi) and 9% of the Group’s total sales revenue.

*

Excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Exploration Namibia Malawi ~ Unallocated Consolidated
Year ended 30 June 2010 US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M
. '/ ' ' _________________|
Sales to external customers - 133.5 68.5 - 202.0
Other revenue - - - 23 2.3
Inter segment sales - 7.9 - - 7.9
Total segment revenue - 141.4 68.5 2.3 212.2
Elimination of inter segment
sales - (7.9) - - (7.9)
Total consolidated revenue - 133.5 68.5 2.3 204.3
Segment (loss)/profit before
income tax and finance costs (8.3 40.0 7.9 (86.2) 3.4
Finance costs - 4.4) - (17.0) (21.4)
Loss before income tax (18.0)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 2.5 (24.0) (2.6) 4.4) (28.5)
'_
Loss after income tax (46.5) %
- [a
w
Segment assets/total assets 698.0 367.4 528.3 383.1 1,976.8 o
=
Consol- =
Australia Canada Malawi Namibia Other idated <ZE
US$M US$Mm US$Mm US$M US$M US$M o
. ! ' ! ! |
Non current assets
by country* 71645 - 451.0 268.3 - 1,432.8

In 2010, the three most significant customers equated on a proportionate basis to 38% (US$76.8M Namibia
and Malawi), 13% (US$26.7M Namibia) and 12% (US$23.4M Namibia) of the Group’s total sales revenue.

*

Excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 5. REVENUES AND EXPENSES

(a) Revenue

Sale of uranium

Interest income from non-related parties
Database licence revenue

Other revenue

Total revenue
(b) Other Income

Gain on disposal of investment

Insurance recovery relating to heat exchangers

Gain on disposal of available for sale investments

Gain on re-estimation of cash flows attributable to a financial liability

Total other income
(c) Administration, Marketing and Non-Production Costs

Corporate and marketing

LHM and KM

Canada

Non-cash - share-based payments
Non-cash - depreciation

Royalties

LHM Stage 4 expansion project

Total administration and marketing
(d) Other Expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of inventory

Foreign exchange loss (net)

Loss on disposal of financial assets held for trading
Movement in financial assets held for trading
Impairment of asset

Slope remediation

Total other expenses
(e) Finance Costs

Interest expense

Accretion relating to convertible bonds (non-cash)
Loss on convertible bond buyback

Mine closure provision discount interest expense
Facility costs

Total finance costs

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

266.8 202.0
1.4 2.0
0.2 0.2
0.5 0.1

268.9 204.3
0.8 -

- 7.7
1.1 -

g 1.8

1.9 9.5

(26.5) (23.5)

(9.3) (3.9)
(1.3) -

(11.6) (10.3)

(1.0) (0.9)
2.2) -
(2.1) -

(54.0) (38.6)
(0.9) -
(26.4) -

(6.0) (5.2)

= 0.8

- 0.2

= (2.9)
(1.9) -

(35.2) 9.1)

(36.4) (4.0)

(11.9) (11.1)

(4.6)

(2.0) (2.9)

(6.6) (4.0)
(61.5) (21.4)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense for the year included in the Consolidated Income Statement is

US$37.1M (2010: US$15.2M).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 6. INCOME TAX

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

(a) Income Tax Benefit

Current income tax
Current income tax expense/(credit) 0.1 (33.9)

Deferred income tax

Related to the origination and reversal of temporary differences 20.3 32.6
Tax benefits not brought to account as future income tax benefits - 22.6
Tax benefits previously not recognised, now recognised (37.0) -
Adjustments relating to prior period - 7.2
Income tax (benefit)/expense reported in the Income Statement (16.6) 28.5
(b) Amounts Charged or Credited Directly to Equity —
(a4
Deferred income tax related to items charged or credited directly to equity: g
Unrealised gain on available-for-sale investments 2.8 6.0 o
Convertible bonds 10.7 - Z_c’
Changes in foreign currency rates 35.3 16.6 =
<
Other 1.1 8.1) =
w
Income tax expense reported in equity 49.9 19.5
(c) Numerical Reconciliation of Income Tax Benefit to Prima Facie
Tax Payable
Loss before income tax expense (105.1) (18.0)
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2010 — 30%) (31.5) 5.4)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/
(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Share-based payments 3:5 3.1
Convertible bonds (1.0) -
Permanent foreign exchange differences 4.6 -
Other expenditure not allowable 1.1 0.2
(23.3) 2.1)
Difference in overseas tax rates 3.8 2.1
Prior year adjustment - 7.2
Losses not recognised 14.4 22.6
Temporary foreign exchange differences (5.2) (1.7)
Other (6.3) 0.4
Income tax (benefit)/expense reported in the Income Statement (16.6) 28.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 6. INCOME TAX (continued)

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

(d) Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated prepayment deduction for tax purposes (0.4) (1.2)
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (155.1) (141.3)
Exploration expenditure (21.2) (12.5)
Recognition of acquired exploration expenditure (180.8) (145.5)
Foreign currency balances (17.5) 1.8
Capitalised interest (10.8) (11.7)
Recognition of convertible bond for accounting purposes (12.6) (12.2)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (398.4) (8322.6)
Set off of deferred tax assets 180.9 153.9

g Net deferred tax liabilities (217.5) (168.7)

[a

= Deferred tax assets

= Revenue losses available for offset against future

@ taxable income 167.1 151.0

<Zc Equity raising costs 2.7 815

E Provisions for employee benefits 0.8 0.5
Inventory 10.1 6.1)
Available for sale securities 14 4.4
Accruals 4.3 1.9
Foreign currency balances 8.2 -
Interest bearing liabilities 5.7 (0.8)
Other 0.3 2.3
Gross deferred tax assets 200.6 157.9
Set off against deferred tax liabilities (180.9) (153.9)
Net deferred tax assets recognised 19.7 4.0

The net deferred tax assets recognised are in respect of revenue losses expected to be offset against future
taxable income.

(e) Tax Losses

Australian unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been

recognised 206.5 124.7
Other unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been

recognised 4.6 -
Total unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 2111 124.7
Potential tax benefit at the Australian tax rate of 30% 63.3 37.4

This benefit for tax losses will only be obtained if:

(i) the Consolidated Entities derive future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to
enable the benefit from the deductions for the losses to be realised;

(i) the Consolidated Entities continue to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by tax
legislation; and

(i) no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the Consolidated Entities in realising the benefit from the
deductions for the losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
USs$m US$M
. _____|
Cash at bank and in hand 27.6 11815
Short-term bank deposits 89.8 334.4
Total cash and cash equivalents 1174 347.9

Total cash and cash equivalents includes US$19.5M restricted for use in respect of the LHM and KM
project finance facilities (refer to Note 16).

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are
made for varying periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short-term deposit rates.

(a) Reconciliation of Net Loss After Tax to Net Cash Flows Used in
Operating Activities

Net loss (88.5) (46.5) =
o

Adjustments for 5

Depreciation and amortisation 37.1 20.9 f

Loss recognised on re-measurement to fair value 4.6 0.2 <

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of investments (1.8) 0.8 %

Database licence revenue (0.2) (0.2) =

Net exchange differences 6.0 5.2 &

Share-based payments 11.6 10.3

Non-cash financing costs 20.2 16.7

Inventory impairment 26.4 =

Asset impairment - 2.9

Interest capitalised as property, plant and equipment - (29.4)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.9 -

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments 0.2 (2.0)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 9.5 4.0
Decrease in trade and other payables (11.3) (82.7)
Increase in provisions 0.5 3.4
Increase in inventories (106.9) (11.4)
Increase in deferred tax liabilities 5.3 32.5
Increase in deferred tax assets (15.6) 0.2)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (102.0) (34.5)
(b) Disclosure of Financing Facilities - Refer to Note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 8.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Note UsS$M Us$m
. __________________________]
Current
Trade receivables (@) - 14.2

Less provision for doubtful debts - -

Net trade receivables - 14.2
Interest receivable - 0.2
GST and VAT (o) 11.9 111
Sundry debtors 8.6 7.7
Total current receivables 20.5 33.2

(@ Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms. Carrying value
approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of the receivables. An allowance for doubtful
debts is made when there is objective evidence that a trade receivable is impaired. No expense has
been recognised for the current year or the previous year.

(b) GST and VAT debtor relates to Australia, Namibia, Malawi and Canada.

Non Current

Sundry debtors 15 0.3

Total non current receivables 1.5 0.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 9. INVENTORIES

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010

USs$m US$M
. _________________'_________|]
Current
Stores and spares (at cost) 30.3 17.9
Stockpiles (at cost) 25 8.4
Stockpiles (at net realisable value) 7.3 -
Work-in-progress (at cost) 3.1 4.7
Work-in-progress (at net realisable value) 4.6 -
Finished goods (at cost) 78.5 58.4
Finished goods (at net realisable value) 51.4 19.9*
Total current inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 177.7 109.3

*

Inventory transferred out of mine development at net realisable value

(a) Inventory Expense

Inventories sold recognised as an expense for the year ended 30 June 2011 totalled US$222.2M (2010:
US$153.3M) for the Group as part of cost of goods sold.

(b) Impairment of Inventory Expense

During 2011 inventory held at the Kayelekera Mine was reduced to net realisable value resulting in an
impairment loss of US$26.4M for the year, recognised in other expenses (refer to Note 5(d)).

Non Current

Stockpiles (at cost) 71.2 40.8
Stockpiles (at net realisable value) 24 -
Total non current inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 73.6 40.8

Stockpiles at LHM and KM that are unlikely to be processed within 12 months of the balance date.

NOTE 10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Non Current

Available-for-sale financial assets 41.8 35.7

Total non current other financial assets 41.8 35.7

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets
The Group has an investment in DYL and at 30 June 2011 held 224,934,461 (2010: 220,258,461) fully paid
ordinary shares.

The holding of these fully paid ordinary shares represents a 19.9% interest at 30 June 2011 (2010: 19.56%)
of the ordinary shares of DYL, a uranium explorer listed on ASX. The market value of the shares in DYL

at 30 June 2011 is A$33.7M (US$35.7M) (2010: A$28.6M / US$24.5M) based on a share price of 15.0
Australian cents per share (2010: 13.0 Australian cents).

The Group had an investment in NGM at 30 June 2010 of 40,373,574 fully paid ordinary shares. The
takeover was completed on 10 December 2010 with the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital
(refer to Note 27).

The Group also holds minor investments in other companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 11(a). PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M Us$m
' ________]
Plant and equipment — at cost 566.6 535.4
Less accumulated depreciation (80.6) (39.6)
Total plant and equipment 486.0 495.8
Land and buildings - at cost 11.4 9.7
Less accumulated depreciation (1.5) (1.0)
Total land and buildings 9.9 8.7
Construction work in progress — at cost 134.2 36.6
Total property, plant and equipment 630.1 5411
— Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities
g Refer to Note 16 for information on property, plant and equipment pledged as security.
[a
= Reconciliations
= Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning
g and end of the year are set out below:
%c Construction
w Plant and Land and Work in
Total Equipment Buildings Progress
US$M US$M US$M Us$m

Consolidated - 2011

Carrying amount at start of year 5411 495.8 8.7 36.6
Additions 132.6 25.0 - 107.6
Depreciation and amortisation expense (44.4) (43.9) (0.5)

Reclassification of assets - 9.0 0.8 9.8
Reclassification to mine development 0.2) - - 0.2)
Foreign currency translation 1.0 0.1 0.9

Carrying amount at end of year 630.1 486.0 9.9 134.2

Consolidated - 2010

Carrying amount at start of year 457.8 147.0 5.8 305.0
Additions 184.5 47 1 0.2 137.2
Transfers to assets held for sale (12.0) (12.0) - -
Depreciation and amortisation expense (19.2) (18.8) 0.4) -
Impairment of assets @ (2.9) (2.9 - -
Reclassification of assets - S5 2.9 (838.2)
Reclassification to mine development (67.4) - - (67.4)
Foreign currency translation 0.3 0.1 0.2 -
Carrying amount at end of year 5411 495.8 8.7 36.6

O Includes US$29.4M of capitalised interest (effective weighted interest rate 8.52% for general
borrowings and LIBOR + 3.5% for specific borrowings).

@ Impairment of assets. Refer to Note 11(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 11(b). NON CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

NOTE 12.

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M
e O
Current
At net realisable value
Plant and equipment - 12.0

Plant and equipment no longer suitable which will be sold within the next twelve months and replaced.

MINE DEVELOPMENT

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M
' _______|
Mine development 122.4 124.8
Less accumulated depreciation (15.8) (5.6) -
o
Total mine development 106.6 119.2 8
w
[a 4
Carrying amount at start of year 119.2 54.2 _
Additions 1.4 - =
Depreciation and amortisation expense (10.2) (2.4) <ZE
Effects of changes in discount rates (5.5) = =
w
Reclassification from exploration 1.5 -
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment 0.2 67.4
Carrying amount at end of year 106.6 119.2

Canadian securities law requires the following description of the Group’s interests in mineral property
tenements:

Langer Heinrich Mine (Namibia) - Paladin 100%

LHM consists of one mining licence — ML 140 - covering 4,375 hectares in the Namib Naukluft Desert
180km west of Windhoek, the capital of Namibia, and 80km east of the major seaport of Walvis Bay. The
licence was granted on 26 July 2005 for a 25 year term expiring on 25 August 2030. Rights conferred by
the licence include the right to mine and sell base and rare metals and nuclear fuel groups of minerals and
to carry out prospecting operations. The project was purchased from Acclaim Uranium NL (now Mount
Gibson Iron Limited) in August 2002. LHM is owned through a wholly owned Namibian entity, LHUPL. 121

Construction of the processing plant was commenced in late 2005 with staged commissioning being
completed in December 2006. Following an extended ramp-up phase the plant and mine achieved
nameplate production in 2007. Work has now been completed on the Stage 2 plant upgrade and a further
Stage 3 upgrade is nearing completion with construction expected to be completed in the September
2011 quarter with ramp-up to nameplate late 2011/early 2012. Planning for the Stage 4 upgrade is in
progress and an updated mineral resource estimation prior to ore reserve estimation for Stage 4 has been
completed. It is expected that the update to the ore reserve will be undertaken once all cost and recovery
parameter have been finalised for Stage 4.

LHUPL also holds an exclusive prospecting licence, EPL 3500, covering 30km? to the west of the mining
licence.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

MINE DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Kayelekera Mine (Malawi) - Paladin 85%

KM consists of one mining licence - ML 152 - covering 5,550 hectares in northern Malawi 650km north

of Lilongwe, the capital of Malawi, and 52km west of the provincial town of Karonga on the shore of Lake
Malawi. The licence was granted on 2 April 2007 for a 15 year term expiring on 1 April 2022. Rights
conferred by the licence include the exclusive right to mine and sell uranium and associated minerals. The
Group acquired its interest in the Kayelekera project in February 1998 when it entered into a joint venture
with Balmain Resources Pty Ltd, a private company based in Perth, Western Australia. In 2000 the Group
increased its interest in the Kayelekera project to 90% and in July 2005 acquired the remaining 10% interest
held by Balmain Resources Pty Ltd. Paladin’s interest in KM is held through a Malawian entity, PAL, in which
the Government of Malawi has a 15% interest.

A Development Agreement has been entered into between the Government of Malawi and PAL in which

the Government of Malawi received a 15% interest in PAL. Subsequent to the Development Agreement and
the acceptance of the project’s Environmental Impact Assessment the Government of Malawi granted the
mining licence covering the project area to PAL. Construction of the plant was commenced in 2007 and the
mine was officially opened in April 2009. The processing facility achieved commercial production at the end
of June 2010. Additional resource definition drilling has been carried out to the west of the current pit design
to confirm the final pit limits with an updated mineral resource and ore reserve expected during the second
half of 2011.

PAL also holds four exclusive prospecting licences in northern Malawi covering 1,298km? surrounding and to
the south of the KM mining licence and these are being actively explored.

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE

Canadian securities law requires the following description of the Group’s interests in mineral property
tenements:

Labrador Project (Canada) - Paladin 100%

On 1 February 2011 the Company completed the acquisition of the uranium assets of Aurora Energy
Resources Inc. (Aurora) from Fronteer Gold Inc. The project covers approximately 81,200ha. Included in the
total are 28 map staked licences and 6 quarry licences. An additional 4 map staked licences were staked
along a proposed infrastructure corridor from the settlement of North West River. All licences are held in the
name of Aurora. All licences are in good standing.

The Labrador Inuit Land Claims agreement was ratified by the Inuit in May 2004 leading to the formation of
the Inuit Government on 1 December 2005. The agreement created two categories of land: the Labrador
Inuit Settlement Area (LISA) and Labrador Inuit Lands (LIL). A significant portion of the project area is
covered by LISA lands. During 2008 the Nunatsiavut government imposed a 3 year moratorium on mining
uranium on properties located within the LISA, effective initially until the 31st March 2011. The Nunatisiavut
government is currently working towards a mechanism to address the moratorium.

The project area has a 2% net sales royalty from uranium production and a 2% net smelter return (NSR) on
base and precious metals payable to Altius Resources Inc.

Exploration commenced in the project area in the mid 1950’s. By 1980, British Newfoundland Exploration
Limited (Brinex) had completed geological mapping, 290 core holes at the Michelin deposit, a decline of
approximately 580m in length and a mineral resource estimation. Brinex ceded its exploration concession in
1980 but held mining leases over a number of deposits in the area until 1994. Work undertaken in 2003-
2005 by the Fronteer — Altius Alliance commenced with a re-evaluation of the area for Cu-Au-U targets. The
Alliance subsequently acquired a number of mineral licences. The uranium interests in the licences were
transferred to Aurora in 2005. Fronteer completed a number of exploration programmes between 2005 and
2008 which culminated with mineral resource estimations in 2007 with an update in 2008.

Niger Project (Niger) - Paladin 100%

Following the completion of the takeover of NGM Resources Ltd (NGM) in December 2010 the Company
took possession of the wholly owned British Virgin Islands company, Indo Energy Ltd. Indo Energy Ltd holds
3 exploration concessions in the Tim Mersoi basin, Tagait 4 (TAG4), Tolouk 1 (TOU1) and Terzemazour 1
(TER1), covering an area of 1,480km?2. The concessions are located approximately 30km to the north and
north west of the township of Agadez in northern Niger. Prior to acquisition, NGM had completed a mineral
resource estimation conforming to the JORC (2004) guidelines for the Takardeit deposit in the central portion
of concession TER1. The concessions were originally granted on the 21st May 2007 for a period of 3

years, however in view of the political and security situation then prevailing in the country, in June 2010 the
concessions were given a 27 month extension of the permits until December 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE (continued)

Niger Project (Niger) - Paladin 100% (continued)

The concessions are located in the Tim Mersoi Basin and are prospective for sandstone type uranium
mineralisation in Carboniferous, Permian and Jurassic sediments. The basin has historically produced in
excess of 280MIb U,O, from two Areva mines (Somair and Cominak) and a third mine Imouraren is under
construction.

Due to the security situation caused by Al-Qaeda activities, especially in the northern desert region where
the project is located, no experienced expatriate personnel from the company are able to visit the project
site or directly supervise the exploration effort. On-ground exploration was carried out during 2011, with
guidance from Perth head office, by local personnel.

Manyingee Uranium Project (Australia) - Paladin 100%

The Manyingee Uranium Project consists of three granted mining leases — M08/86, M08/87 and M08/88 -
covering 1,307 hectares in the north-west of Western Australia, 1,100km north of Perth, the State capital
and 90km south of the township of Onslow on the north-west coast. The Group purchased the Manyingee
Uranium Project in 1998 from Afmeco Mining and Exploration Pty Ltd (AFMEX), a subsidiary company of
Cogema of France. Under the terms (as amended) of the purchase agreement a final payment of A$0.75M
is payable to AFMEX when all development approvals have been obtained. Royalties of 2.5% for the first
2,000t of uranium oxide and 1.5% for the following 2,000t of uranium oxide are also payable to AFMEX and
associated companies which formerly held interests in the project. The three mining leases were granted on
18 May 1989 for a 21-year term to 17 May 2010. The leases have now been renewed for a further 21-year
term to 17 May 2031. Rights conferred by the three mining leases include the exclusive right to explore
and mine minerals, subject to environmental and other approvals. The interest in Manyingee is held through
the wholly owned entity, Paladin Energy Minerals NL. Following the lifting of the ban on uranium mining in
Western Australia in late 2008 exploration planning has been undertaken with the intention of undertaking a
drilling programme. Ground access difficulties have so far precluded the commencement of drilling and it is
hoped this issue will be dealt with in the near future.
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Oobagooma Uranium Project (Australia) - Paladin 100%

The Oobagooma Uranium Project consists of four applications for exploration licences covering 452km?

in the West Kimberley region of northern Western Australia, 1,900km north-north-east of Perth, the State
capital and 70km north-east of the regional town of Derby. The four applications for exploration licences

are 04/145 and 04/146 lodged on 28 December 1983 and 04/776 and 04/777 lodged on 28 November
1991 which largely overlie the earlier applications. The Group purchased the Oobagooma Project in 1998
from AFMEX. Under the terms of the purchase agreement a final payment of A$0.75M is payable to AFMEX
when the tenements are granted. A gross royalty of 1.0% on production is also payable to AFMEX. The
applications for exploration licences remain in the name of Afmeco Pty Ltd (a company associated with
AFMEX) until the date that they are granted after which title will be transferred. The interest in Oobagooma
is held through the wholly owned entity, Paladin Energy Minerals NL. Following the change of government in
Western Australia in late 2008 the granting of the lease applications are being actively pursued with both the
Federal and State governments.

Valhalla North Uranium Project (Australia) - Paladin 100%

The Valhalla North Uranium Project consists of two granted exploration permits — Exploration Permit for
Minerals 12572 (EPM 12572) and EPM 16006 - covering 457km? to the north of Mount Isa in north-western
Queensland. The Group acquired the Valhalla North Uranium Project following the successful takeover of
Fusion in February 2009. EPM 12572 was granted on 11 January 2006 and EPM 16006 was granted on
26 March 2008, each for a period of five years with the potential to be renewed for further five year periods.
The renewal of EPM 12572 for a further period of five years has been lodged and is awaiting grant. The
area was investigated during the 1950’s and resulted in the discovery of the Duke and Batman deposits,
with limited mining of surface high grade mineralisation being undertaken with subsequent treatment at the
Mary Kathleen mine. During the 1970’s the area was explored by both Queensland Mines Limited and Agip
Australia Pty Ltd. Prior to the completion of the takeover, Fusion announced Mineral Resources conforming
to the JORC guidelines on two deposits, Duke Batman and Honeypot. Driling at the Duke Batman deposit
did not extend the mineralisation but identified a high grade core to the mineralisation and significantly
added to the geological understanding of the deposit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE (continued)

Bigrlyi Uranium Project (Australia) - Paladin 41.71%

The Bigrlyi Uranium Project lies in the Northern Territory of Australia approximately 320km north-west of
Alice Springs and is comprised of ten exploration retention licences (ERLs 46-55) covering 1,214 hectares.
These tenements were originally granted in 1983 and have been subject to five yearly renewals since 1988.
The project is now a joint venture between Energy Metals Limited 53.29%, Southern Cross Exploration NL
5.00% and Northern Territory Uranium Pty Ltd 41.71% (100% owned by Paladin) with Energy Metals Limited
being operator and manager.

The Bigrlyi uranium deposit was originally discovered by Agip Australia Pty Ltd in the mid 1970’s before
being transferred to Central Pacific Minerals NL in the early 1980’s. The deposit was subject to extensive
drilling between 1974 and 1982 with Ore Reserve studies carried out during the 1980’s and 1990’s. During
2005/2006 a driling campaign was undertaken by the Joint Venture partners which resulted in an initial
JORC Resource. Resource definition drilling is ongoing at the project and an Initial Scoping Study was
released in November 2007 and an Updated Scoping Study released in July 2008. Resource updates were
released in April and July 2009 with additional drilling completed in late 2009 and 2010. In June 2011 an
increased Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resource totalling 21.1MIb U,O, at a cut-off grade of 500ppm was
announced.

Isa Uranium Joint Venture (Australia) - Paladin 91.04%

The IUJV in Northern Queensland is a 50:50 joint venture between Summit Resources (Aust) Pty Ltd (SRA)
(Paladin 82.08% effective ownership) and Mt Isa Uranium Pty Ltd (MIU) (Paladin 100% ownership) with SRA
being the operator and manager. The IUJV covers two defined blocks of land totalling 27km? containing

the Valhalla and Skal uranium deposits. Paladin’s effective equity in the IUJV was increased from 50% to
90.95% following the acquisition of 81.9% of Summit in 2007.

Valhalla Uranium Deposit (Australia) - Paladin 91.04%

The Valhalla Uranium Deposit is situated on EPM 17514 granted in January 2010 for a five year term to

5 January 2015. The Valhalla Uranium Deposit is located approximately 40km north of Mount Isa and
straddles the Barkly Highway. The ground was previously worked on by Mount Isa Mines Limited and
Queensland Mines Limited from the mid 1950’s to the early 1970’s. Queensland Mines Limited, in particular,
conducted extensive exploration over the Valhalla ground between 1968 and 1972 including the estimation
of resources and reserves. Queensland Mines Limited allowed the tenement to lapse in 1991 and the
ground was subsequently acquired by SRA in 1992, with EPM 9221 being granted in 1993. During 2008
resource definition drilling was commenced to enable completion of a detailed scoping study. As a result

of the scoping study additional resource drilling was undertaken with the updating of the Mineral Resource
being announced in October 2010. Geotechnical and metallurgical studies are ongoing.
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Skal Uranium Deposit (Australia) - Paladin 91.04%

The Skal Uranium Deposit is situated on EPM 17519, granted in January 2010 for a five year term to 5
January 2015. The Skal Uranium Deposit is located approximately 8km south-east of the Valhalla Uranium
Deposit and 32km north of Mount Isa. The ground was previously held by SRA as EPM 14048 granted

in 2005. Skal was originally discovered by Mount Isa Mines Limited in the mid 1950’s and was subject

to mapping and drilling at that time. Queensland Mines Limited acquired the project in the 1960’s and
conducted further drilling resulting in an estimation of a resource for the project. The deposit is situated on
EPM 14048 and the IUJV re-commenced drilling in 2005. An initial JORC compliant resource estimate was
completed in mid 2008, with an updated resource reported in early 2009. Additional resource definition
drilling was undertaken in 2009 and followed up with a resource update in October 2009. Resource
definition and metallurgical drilling commenced in 2010 and delayed due to the extended wet season has
been planned for completion in late 2011.

Summit Resources Ltd (Australia) - Paladin 82.08%

Paladin acquired an 81.9% interest in Summit as a result of a takeover bid which closed on 1 June 2007.
SRA, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Summit, holds a large number of exploration tenements
surrounding and to the north of Mount Isa in Northern Queensland. Other than the Andersons, Bikini

and Watta Projects, for which JORC Inferred Mineral Resource estimates have been completed, limited
exploration activities have taken place on these tenements in recent years and as such they are not
considered material to Paladin at this point in time. Additional driling was undertaken at Bikini in late 2010
with the Mineral Resource being updated in April 2011.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE (continued)

Angela and Pamela Projects (Australia) - Paladin 50%

In early 2008, the Northern Territory Government advised that the Angela Project Joint Venture (Paladin 50%
and Cameco Australia Pty Ltd 50%) had been selected to explore the Angela and Pamela uranium deposits
located near Alice Springs in the Northern Territory. Exploration Licence 25758 covering 3,767 hectares

was granted on 3 October 2008 for a six year term with the potential for further renewal. Exploration and
resource definition drilling was planned. Drilling programmes were completed in 2009 and 2010 and these
are being evaluated to determine the future direction of the project. A successful mud rotary drilling trial was
undertaken in early 2011 which is now expected to reduce overall drilling costs and improve drilling rates.
An initial Mineral Resource estimate has now been completed and reported.

Other Mineral Property Interests

The Group holds various other mineral property interests, however, these are not considered material and as
a result no further disclosure of mineral property tenement information has been included in the consolidated
financial statements.

Environmental Contingency

The Group’s exploration, evaluation, development and operation activities are subject to various national,
federal, provincial and local laws and regulations governing the protection of the environment. These laws
and regulations are continually changing and generally becoming more restrictive. The Group has made, and
expects to make in the future, expenditures to comply with such laws and regulations. The impact, if any, of
future legislative or regulatory changes cannot be determined.

—
(a4
(@)
o
w
o
-
=
(@)
=
<
=
w

PALADIN ENERGY LTD » ANNUAL REPORT 2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION EXPENDITURE (continued)

The following table details the expenditures on interests in mineral properties by area of interest
for the year ended 30 June 2011:

Valhalla/ Angela/
Areas of interest Skal @ Isa North Fusion Pamela
US$M US$M Us$m US$M
./ ' ______________________________|
Balance 30 June 2010 as previously stated 529.1 126.0 8.5 -
Effect of accounting policy change (Note 3) - - 1.0 4.5
Balance 30 June 2010 - restated 529.1 126.0 9.5 4.5
Acquisition property payments - - - -
Project exploration and evaluation
expenditure
Labour 0.9 1.2 0.2 0.2
Qutside services 2.5 1.7 0.2 0.7
Other expenses 2.0 0.8 0.2 0.4
— Total expenditure 5.4 3.7 0.6 1.3
= Expenditure expensed - - 0.1) -
[a
= Expenditure capitalised 5.4 3.7 0.5 1.3
= Foreign exchange differences 128.6 26.8 2.3 1.1
O Transferred to Mine Development - - - -
=2
<ZE Balance 30 June 2011 663.1 156.5 12.3 6.9
o

M Summit has a 50% interest in the Valhalla/Skal Projects with the other 50% interest held by the Paladin
Group. As a consequence of the takeover of the Summit Group, the above table now reflects 100% of
the Valhalla/Skal Projects with the non-controlling interest reflected on the face of the Balance Sheet.

The following table details the expenditures on interests in mineral properties by area of interest for the
year ended 30 June 2010:

Valhalla/ Angela/

Areas of interest Skal Isa North Fusion Pamela
US$M US$M US$M US$Mm

. ' ________________________]
Balance 30 June 2009 as previously stated 494.4 117.7 8.0 -
Effect of accounting policy change (Note 3) - - - 1.1
Balance 30 June 2009 - restated 494.4 117.7 8.0 1.1
Acquisition property payments 2.9 0.7 - -
Project exploration and evaluation
expenditure
Labour 1.1 1.0 0.3 0.8
Outside services 1.0 2.0 0.6 1.9
Other expenses 1.6 0.8 0.2 0.7
Total expenditure & 3.8 1.1 3.4
Expenditure expensed 8.7) (8.8) 0.1) -
Expenditure capitalised - - 1.0 3.4
Foreign exchange differences 31.8 7.6 0.5 -
Balance 30 June 2010 529.1 126.0 9.5 4.5

M Summit has a 50% interest in the Valhalla/Skal Projects with the other 50% interest held by the Paladin
Group. As a consequence of the takeover of the Summit Group, the above table now reflects 100% of
the Valhalla/Skal Projects with the non-controlling interest reflected on the face of the Balance Sheet.
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Other Uranium

Bigrlyi Niger KM LHM Canada Projects Total
US$M US$Mm US$M US$M US$Mm US$Mm US$M
e

15.2 - - - - 1.2 680.0
6.3 - - 1.5 : 1.8 15.1
21.5 - - 1.5 - 3.0 695.1
- 34.0 - - 261.8 - 295.8
0.4 0.2 0.2 - 0.5 1.7 5.5
1.4 1.4 0.3 0.2 - 0.3 8.7
0.7 0.4 0.4 - 0.3 0.7 5.9

25 2.0 0.9 0.2 0.8 2.7 20.1 —

- - 0.9 - - (2.0) (3.0 S

[a

25 2.0 - 0.2 0.8 0.7 17.1 o

5.4 - - - 6.5 0.9 171.6 2

- - - 1.7) - - 1.7) S

=2

29.4 36.0 - - 269.1 4.6 1,177.9 =

T

Other Uranium

Bigrlyi KM LHM Projects Total
US$M US$Mm US$M US$M US$M
. __________________________|
14.3 - - 1.1 635.5
52 - 0.2 0.9 7.4
19.5 - 0.2 2.0 642.9
- - - - 3.6
0.2 0.2 - 0.7 4.3
0.4 0.6 1.3 0.3 8.1
0.5 0.3 - 0.6 4.7
1.1 1.1 1.3 1.6 17.1
- (1.1) - 0.7) (9.4)
1.1 - 1.3 0.9 7.7
0.9 - - 0.1 40.9

215 - 15 3.0 695.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Us$Mm UsS$M
. ________________________]
(a) Reconciliation of Carrying Amount at the Beginning and End
of the Period
Beginning of year - Net of accumulated amortisation 24.6 25.6
Amortisation (1.5) (1.0)
End of year - Net of accumulated amortisation 23.1 24.6
At 30 June
Cost 27.8 27.8
Accumulated amortisation (4.7) (8.2)
Net carrying amount of non current intangible assets 23.1 24.6

Amortisation of US$1.5M (2010: US$1.0M) is included in costs of sales in the Income Statement.

—
g (b) Movements in Intangible Assets

[a

= Movements in each group of intangible asset during the financial year are set out below:

= Right to Rightto  Kayelekera

= Supply of Supply of Mining

<ZE Power Water Lease Total
o US$M US$M US$M US$M

./ ' ______________________________|
Consolidated - 2011

Carrying amount at 1 July 2010 4.3 10.3 10.0 24.6
Amortisation expense 0.2) (0.5) 0.8) (1.5)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2011 4.1 9.8 9.2 23.1

Consolidated - 2010

Carrying amount at 1 July 2009 4.5 111 10.0 25.6

Amortisation expense 0.2) 0.8) - (1.0)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2010 4.3 10.3 10.0 24.6
(c) Description of the Group’s Intangible Assets

(i)  Right to supply of power

LHUPL has entered into a contract with NamPower in Namibia for the right to access power at LHM. In
order to obtain this right, the power line connection to the mine was funded by LHM. However, ownership of
the power line rests with NamPower. The amount funded is being amortised on a unit of production basis.

(i) Right to supply of water

LHUPL has entered into a contract with NamWater in Namibia for the right to access water at LHM. In order
to obtain this right, the water pipeline connection to the mine was funded by LHM. However, ownership of
the pipeline rests with NamWater. The amount funded is being amortised on a unit of production basis.

(i) Kayelekera Mining Lease

In exchange for the Mining Lease, Paladin Energy Minerals NL and PAL have entered into a Development
Agreement with the Government of Malawi for the development of the Garnet Halliday Karonga Water
Supply Project and other social development projects. In terms of the Development Agreement PAL has
spent US$10M on agreed community infrastructure projects. This amount has been recognised as an
intangible asset and is being amortised over the life of the mine estimated to be 9 years on a straight-line
basis (refer to Note 17(b)(iv)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Us$m US$M
I R —
Current
Trade and other payables 69.7 63.4
Total current payables 69.7 63.4

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Maturity US$M US$M
e )
&
Current =
[a
Secured bank loans 43.9 479 =
-
Non Current =
o
=2
Unsecured convertible bonds! 2011 - 236.7 <zt
Unsecured convertible bonds® 2013 315.6 310.1 w
Unsecured convertible bonds® 2015 258.6 -
Secured bank loan 2012 8.1 24.0
Secured bank loan 2015 93.5 111.4
Total non current interest bearing loans and borrowings 675.8 682.2

The above figures include transaction costs which offset the balance in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards.

Fair value disclosures
Details of the fair value of the Group’s interest bearing liabilities are set out in Note 19(g).
Unsecured convertible bonds

M On the 17 December 2010, the Company announced that pursuant to its tender offer for the
repurchase of the US$250M December 2011 unsecured convertible bonds it had repurchased and
cancelled US$229.6M bonds. The remaining US$20.4M bonds were redeesmed on 18 January 2011.

@ On 11 March 2008, the Company issued US$325M in convertible bonds with an underlying coupon
rate of 5.0% (underlying effective interest rate of 7.13%), maturity 11 March 2013 and a conversion
price of US$6.59 for Company shares.

®  On the 5 November 2010, the Company issued US$300M in convertible bonds with an underlying
coupon rate of 3.625%, (underlying effective interest rate of 7.47%) maturing on 5 November 2015
with a conversion price of US$5.67, for Company shares

In disclosing the convertible bonds in the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company has accounted
for them in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Under these standards the convertible bonds
consist of both a liability (underlying debt) and equity component (conversion rights into Company shares).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 16.

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)
Secured bank loans

On 26th May 2006 the Company entered into a project financing facility amounting to US$71M for the
construction of the Langer Heinrich Mine. The financing is provided by Société Générale Australia Branch (as
lead arranger), Nedbank Capital and Standard Bank Limited and consists of a seven year Project Finance
Facility of US$65M and a Standby Cost Overrun Facility of US$6M. The Project Finance Facility bears
interest at a margin over the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and is repayable on a six monthly basis
over the term of the loan. No requirement for political risk insurance exists under the terms of the Project
Finance Facility. The facilities are secured with fixed and floating charges over the assets of LHUPL and its
immediate holding companies. Paladin had provided a project completion guarantee as part of the facilities.
The guarantee has since been released when the project satisfied the Completion Tests mid 2009.

At 30 June 2011 US$24.8M (2010: US$47.5M) was outstanding under the LHM project finance facilities.

On 30th March 2009, the Company entered into a project financing facility amounting to US$167M for the
construction of the Kayelekera Mine. The project finance consists of a six year Project Finance Facility of
US$145M, a Standby Cost Overrun Facility of US$12M and a Performance Bond Facility of US$10M. The
facilities are being provided by Société Générale Corporate and Investment Banking (as inter-creditor agent
and commercial lender), Nedbank Capital a division of Nedbank Limited (ECIC lender) and Standard Bank
Limited (as ECIC facility agent and lender). The facilities are secured over the assets of PAL. The Project
Finance Facility bears interest at a margin over the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and is repayable
on a four monthly basis over the term of the loan. Paladin has provided a project completion guarantee as
part of the facilities.

At 30 June 2011 US$127.9M (2010: US$145M) was outstanding under the KM project finance facilities.

Deferred Borrowing costs relating to the establishment of the facilities have been included as part of interest
bearing loans and borrowings.

Financing facilities available

At reporting date, the following financing facilities had been negotiated and were available:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Total facilities:

Unsecured convertible bonds 625.0 575.0
Secured bank loans 152.7 204.5
777.7 779.5

Facilities used at reporting date:

Unsecured convertible bonds 625.0 575.0
Secured bank loans 152.7 192.5
777.7 767.5

Facilities unused at reporting date:
Unsecured convertible bonds = S
Secured bank loans - 12.0

- 12.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 16. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non current interest bearing liabilities

(secured bank loans) are:

Current

Floating charge

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Total current assets pledged as security
Non Current

Inventories

Property, plant and equipment
Mine development

Deferred tax asset

Intangible assets

Total non current assets pledged as security
Total assets pledged as security

Assets pledged include both LHM and KM.

NOTE 17. PROVISIONS

Current

Social responsibility
Other provision
Employee benefits

Total current provisions
Non Current

Social responsibility
Employee benefits
Rehabilitation provision
Demobilisation provision

Total non current provisions

Note

23

23

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

65.3 47.3
31.4 41.5
149.8 102.5
246.5 191.3
73.6 40.8
573.5 533.2
106.6 119.2
19.7 =
23.1 24.6
796.5 717.8
1,043.0 909.1
CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

- 1.3

- 5.9
5.3 2.9
5.3 10.1
- 0.2
3.3 0.1
30.6 31.3
2.4 1.9
36.3 33.5

For a description of the nature and timing of cash flows associated with the above provisions, refer to

section (b) of this note.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 17. PROVISIONS

(a)

(b)

Movements in Provisions

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, excluding provisions relating to employee
benefits, are set out below:

Social
Demob- Respons- Rehab-
Other ilisation ibility ilitation Total
US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M

Consolidated

At 1 July 2010 5.9 1.9 15 31.3 40.6
Arising during the year - 0.5 - 1.7 2.2
Utilised 6.9) - (1.5) - (8.4
Effects of changes in discount rates - - - (5.5) (5.5)
Foreign currency movements 1.0 - - 3.1 41
At 30 June 2011 - 2.4 - 30.6 33.0
2011
Current - - - - -
Non current - 2.4 - 30.6 33.0
- 2.4 - 30.6 33.0
2010
Current 5.9 - 1.3 - 7.2
Non current - 1.9 0.2 S)IES 334
5.9 1.9 1.5 1.8 40.6

Nature and Timing of Provisions

(i)  Rehabilitation

A provision for rehabilitation and mine closure has been recorded in relation to LHM and KM. A provision

is made for rehabilitation work when the obligation arises and this is recognised as a cost of production or
development as appropriate. Additionally the provision includes the costs of dismantling and demolition of
infrastructure or decommissioning, the removal of residual material and the remediation of disturbed areas
specific to the infrastructure to a state acceptable to various authorities. The provision is estimated using the
assumption that remediation will not take place until 10 to 20 years’ time.

(i) Employee benefits

Refer to Note 23.

(i) - Demobilisation

A provision for demobilisation has been recorded in relation to LHM for the costs of demobilising the mining
contractor.

(iv) Social responsibility

In 2010 a provision for social responsibility was recorded in relation to KM for the costs of social
responsibility projects to be incurred under the Development Agreement (refer to Note 14(c)(iii)). During 2011
the whole of this provision was utilised.

(v) Other

In 2010 a provision for an expected litigation settlement amount was recorded (refer to Note 22(f)). During
2011 the whole of this provision was settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 18. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY AND RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Issued and Paid Up Capital

Number of Shares CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010 2011 2010
Ordinary shares US$M US$M
'/ ' ' _______________|
Issued and fully paid 777,698,217 717,142,802 1,768.1 1,474.6

Effective 1 July 1998, the Corporations legislation in place abolished the concepts of authorised capital and
par value shares. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its
issued shares.

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.

Movements in Ordinary Shares On Issue

Number Issue  Exchange
Date of Shares Price Rate Total
A$ Us$ : A$ Us$M
. ______________________________________|
Balance 30 June 2009 623,692,802 1,111.6
September 2009  Share placement 93,450,000 4.60 1.14890 374.2
Transaction costs (11.2)
Balance 30 June 2010 717,142,802 1,474.6
August 2010 Rights vested 750,000 - - -
September 2010  Rights vested 530,580 - - -
November 2010  NGM acquisition 7,155,938 4.28 1.01557 30.1
January 2011 Option conversions 960 4.50 1.00415 -
February 2011 Aurora acquisition 52,097,937 5.04 1.00670 260.6
February 2011 Rights vested 20,000 - - -
Transfer from reserves 3.1
Transaction costs (0.3)
Balance 30 June 2011 777,698,217 1,768.1
Shares held in trust 375,000 -
Adjusted Balance
30 June 2011 777,323,217 1,768.1

M 250,000 shares held in trust, vesting variously over time up to 1 January 2012 subject to conditions;
125,000 shares held by Paladin Employee Plan Pty Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 18. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves
Consol- Listed Share-  Available- Foreign Convertible  Premium Total
idation option based for-sale currency bond non- on
reserve application  payments reserve translation  distributable acquisition
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve
US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M
S O N
CONSOLIDATED
At 1 July 2009 0.2) 0.1 26.0 32.5 (80.3) 38.9 14.9 31.9
Net unrealised
movement on
available-for-sale
investments - - - (87.0) - - - (87.0)
Share-based
payments - - 12.0 - - - - 12.0
Foreign currency
o translation - - - 4.2 23.5 - - 27.7
(a4
8 Income tax - - - 8.0 - - - 8.0
w
f At 30 June 2010 (0.2) 0.1 38.0 7.7 (56.8) 38.9 149 426
<
g At 1 July 2010 0.2) 0.1 38.0 7.7 (56.8) 38.9 149 426
%t Net unrealised
w movement on
available-for-sale
investments - - - 10.9 - - - 10.9
Share-based
payments - = 11.5 - - = - 11.5
Foreign currency
translation - - - - 125.6 - - 1256
Income tax - - - 8.7) - - - 8.7)
Transfer to statement
of financial position - - - (8.2 - - - (8.2)
Convertible bonds,
equity component net
of tax and transaction
costs - - - - - 28.1 - 28.1
Convertible bonds,
buy back - - - - - (6.6) - (6.6)
At 30 June 2011 (0.2) 0.1 49.5 11.7 68.8 60.4 14.9 205.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 18.
(c)

NOTE 19.
(a)

(b)

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY AND RESERVES (continued)
Nature and Purpose of Reserves
Listed option application reserve

This reserve consists of proceeds from the issue of listed options, net of expenses of issue. These listed
options expired unexercised and no restriction exists for the distribution of this reserve.

Share-based payments reserve

This reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to Directors, employees and consultants
as part of their remuneration. Refer to Note 25 for further details on share-based payments.

Available-for-sale reserve
This reserve records the fair value changes on the available-for-sale financial assets as set out in Note 10.
Foreign currency translation reserve

This reserve is used to record exchange differences arising on translation of the group entities that do not
have a functional currency of US dollars and have been translated into US dollars for presentation purposes,
as described in Note 2(f).

Convertible bond non-distributable reserve

This reserve records the equity portion of the convertible bonds issued on 15 December 2006 and on 11
March 2008, as described in Note 16.

Acquisition reserve
This reserve represents the premium paid on the acquisition of a non-controlling interest in Summit.
Consolidation reserve

This reserve recognises the difference between the fair value of the 15% interest in PAL allotted to the
Government of Malawi, at the net present value of the Kayelekera Project on the date the Development
Agreement was signed (22 February 2007), and the non-controlling interest share of the net assets of PAL.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s management of financial risk is aimed at ensuring net cash flows are sufficient to:
e meet all its financial commitments; and

e maintain the capacity to fund corporate growth activities

The Group monitors its forecast financial position on a regular basis.

Market, liquidity and credit risk (including foreign exchange, commodity price and interest rate risk) arise
in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are managed under Board approved directives
which underpin treasury practices and processes. The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest bearing debt, cash and short-term deposits and available for sale financial assets. Other financial
instruments include trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from operations.

The Group’s forecast financial risk position with respect to key financial objectives and compliance with
treasury practice is regularly reported to the Board.

Market Risk

(i)  Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commitments, assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the relevant Group company.

The Group’s borrowings and deposits are largely denominated in US dollars. Currently there are no foreign
exchange hedge programmes in place. However, the Group treasury function manages the purchase of
foreign currency to meet operational requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Market Risk (continued)
(i)  Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)

The financial instruments exposed to movements in the Australian dollar are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3.8 0.6
Trade and other receivables 3.2 2.0
Available-for-sale financial assets 26.0 20.7

33.0 23.3

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (9.3) (9.0)

Net exposure 23.7 14.3

The financial instruments exposed to movements in the Namibian dollar are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Ussm US$M

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1 6.2
Trade and other receivables 17.2 13.2
23.3 19.4

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (31.8) (27.9)

Net exposure (8.5) (8.5)

The following table summarises the sensitivity of financial instruments held at balance date to movements in
the exchange rate of the Australian dollar to the US dollar and the Namibian dollar to the US dollar, with all

other variables held constant. The 5% sensitivity is based on reasonably possible changes, over a financial

year, using the observed range of actual historical rates for the preceding five year period.

IMPACT ON PROFIT/LOSS IMPACT ON EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010 2011 2010
US$M UsSsMm US$M US$M

Post-Tax Gain/(Loss)

AUD/USD +5% (2010: +5%) (0.1) 0.2) 0.9 0.7
AUD/USD -5% (2010: -5%) 0.1 0.2 (1.0) 0.8)
NAD/USD +5% (2010: +5%) (0.3) 0.9) - -
NAD/USD -5% (2010: -5%) 0.3 0.3 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Market Risk (continued)

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group’s financial position will be adversely affected by movements in
interest rates that will increase the cost of floating rate debt or opportunity losses that may arise on fixed

rate borrowings in a falling interest rate environment. Interest rate risk on cash and short-term deposits is
not considered to be a material risk due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term debt. Floating rate debt exposes the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fixed rate debt exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All other
financial assets and liabilities in the form of receivables, investments in shares, payables and provisions, are
non interest bearing.

The Group currently does not engage in any hedging or derivative transactions to manage interest rate risk.

The floating rate financial instruments exposed to interest rates movements are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 117.4 347.9

117.4 347.9

Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities (152.7) (192.5)

Net exposure (35.3) 155.4

The following table summarises the cash flow sensitivity of cash and cash equivalent financial instruments
held at balance sheet date following a movement in LIBOR, with all other variables held constant. The
sensitivity is based on reasonably possible changes over a financial year, using the observed range of
actual historical rates for the preceding five year period. The sensitivity analysis below excludes impact on
borrowing costs arising from interest bearing liabilities as these are capitalised as part of long-term qualifying
development projects.

IMPACT ON PROFIT/LOSS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

. _____|
Post-Tax Gain/(Loss)

LIBOR +1% (2010: +1%) (0.2) 1.0
LIBOR -0.1% (2010: -0.3%) - 0.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Market Risk (continued)
(i) Market Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the Group’s financial position will be adversely affected by movements in the market
value of its available-for-sale financial assets.

The financial instruments exposed to movements in market value are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Ussm US$M

Financial assets
Other financial assets 41.8 35.7

The following table summarises the sensitivity of financial instruments held at balance date to movements in
the market price of available-for-sale financial instruments, with all other variables held constant. The 25%
sensitivity is based on reasonable possible changes, over a financial year, using the observed range of actual
historical prices for 2011 and 2010.

IMPACT ON EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Post-tax impact on reserve

Market price +25% (2010: +25%) 7.3 6.2
Market price -25% (2010: -25%) (7.3) 6.2
Liquidity Risk

The liquidity position of the Group is managed to ensure sufficient liquid funds are available to meet the
Group’s financial commitments in a timely and cost effective manner.

The Group treasury function continually reviews the Group’s liquidity position including cash flow forecasts

to determine the forecast liquidity position and maintain appropriate liquidity levels. Sensitivity analysis is
conducted on a range of pricing and market assumptions to ensure the Group has the ability to meet
repayment commitments. This enables the Group to manage cash flows on a long-term basis and provides
the flexibility to pursue a range of funding alternatives if necessary. Note 16 details the repayment obligations
in respect of the amount of the facilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Liquidity Risk (continued)
The maturity analysis of payables at the reporting date was as follows:

Payables maturity analysis

Total <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years

2011 US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M
| |

Consolidated

Trade and other payables 69.7 69.7 - - -
Loans and borrowings 7777 46.1 363.5 29.9 338.2
Interest payable 85.5 31.4 258 12.9 15.7
Total payables 932.9 147.2 389.0 42.8 353.9
2010

Consolidated

Trade and other payables 63.4 63.4 - - -

Loans and borrowings 759.9 156.2 320.9 360.9 62.9

Interest payable 84.6 34.9 26.9 19.6 3.2

Total payables 907.9 113.5 347.8 380.5 66.1
(d) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligation under a financial instrument that
will result in a financial loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure. The Group trades only with recognised, credit worthy third parties. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M
e O
Current
Cash and cash equivalents* 117.4 347.9
Trade receivables - 14.2
Other receivables — other entities 20.5 19.0
137.9 381.1
Non Current
Other receivables — other entities 1.5 0.3
Total 139.4 381.4

*  The Group’s maximum deposit with a single financial institution represents 25% of cash and cash
equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit Risk (continued)
The ageing of receivables at the reporting date was as follows:

Receivables ageing analysis

Total Current <1 year 1-2 years >2 years
2011 Us$m US$M Us$m US$M US$M
' ' !/ |
Consolidated
Trade receivables - - - - -

Other receivables 22.0 20.5 15 - -
Total receivables 22.0 20.5 1.5 - -
2010

Consolidated

Trade receivables 14.2 14.2 - - -
Other receivables 19.3 19.0 0.3 - -
Total receivables &85 33.2 0.3 - -

No receivables are past due or impaired.

(e) Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value

The Group uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods
comprise:
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Level 1 — the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.

Level 2 — the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 — the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data.

The fair value of the financial instruments as well as the methods used to estimate the fair value are
summarised in the table below:

Year ended 30 June 2011 Year ended 30 June 2010

Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation

technique-  technique- technique-  technique-

Quoted market non market Quoted market non market

market observable observable market observable observable

price inputs inputs price inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
US$Mm US$Mm US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M US$M

Consolidated
Financial assets

Available-for-sale

investments

Listed investments 40.8 - - 40.8 32.2 - - 32.2
Unlisted

investments - - 1.0 1.0 - - & 315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair Value of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value (continued)

Quoted market price represents the fair value determined based on quoted prices on active markets as at
the reporting date without any deduction for transaction costs. The fair value of the listed equity investments
are based on quoted market prices.

For financial instruments not quoted in active markets, the Group uses valuation techniques such as
present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and
other relevant models used by market participants. These valuation techniques use both observable and
unobservable market inputs.

The fair value of unlisted debt and equity securities, as well as other investments that do not have an active
market, are based on latest private share placement price before 30 June 2011.

Reconciliation for Level 3 Fair Value Movements

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Opening balance 3.5 3.9 _

(a4
Other comprehensive income - 0.4 =
Additions 0.5 - =
Disposals (3.0) (0.8) 2
Closing balance 1.0 85 %
Total gain or loss stated in the table above for assets held at the end E

of the period - -

(f) Capital Management

When managing capital, management’s objective is to ensure adequate cash resources to meet the
Company’s commitments are maintained, as well as to maintain optimal returns to shareholders through
ensuring the lowest cost of capital available to the entity.

The Company utilises a combination of debt, equity and convertible bonds to provide the cash resources
required. Management review the capital structure from time to time as appropriate.

The Group treasury function is responsible for the Group’s capital management, including management of
the long-term debt and cash as part of the capital structure. This involves the use of corporate forecasting
models which enable analysis of the Group’s financial position including cash flow forecasts to determine the
future capital management requirements. To ensure sufficient funding for operational expenditure and growth 141
activities, a range of assumptions are modelled so as to provide the flexibility in determining the Group’s

optimal future capital structure.

Group treasury monitors gearing and compliances with various contractual financial covenants. The
Company’s project finance facility is subject to various financial undertakings including a negative pledge,
debt service coverage ratio, loan life coverage ratio and project life coverage ratio. At the time of reporting,
the Company was in compliance with all of the facility’s financial undertakings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

U]

(9)

(h)

Capital Management (continued)

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010

Us$m US$M
I N E—
Total borrowings 719.7 730.1
Less cash and cash equivalents (117.4) (847.9)
Net debt 602.3 382.2
Total equity 1,768.1 1,474.6
Total capital 2,370.4 1,856.8
Gearing Ratio 25% 21%

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

The fair value representing the mark to market of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount at
which the asset could be exchanged or liability settled in a current transaction between willing parties after
allowing for transaction costs.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
approximate to their carrying values, as a result of their short maturity or because they carry floating rates of
interest.

The fair value of the debt component of the convertible bonds has been determined using a valuation
technique based on the quoted market price of the convertible bonds.

All financial assets and liabilities where the fair value does not approximate to the carrying value are as
follows:

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
. __________ ]
Convertible bonds — debt component 583.1 566.1 554.3 538.7

Commodity Price Risk

Uranium is not traded in any significant volume on global commodity exchanges. The Group has customer
sales contracts in place for delivery over the period 2011 to 2020.

The contracted selling price is determined by a formula which references common industry published prices
for spot and term contracts and is subject to an escalating floor price and also escalating ceiling prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

(a) Details of Key Management Personnel
() Directors

Mr Rick Crabb Chairman (Non-executive)

Mr John Borshoff Managing Director/CEO

Mr Sean Llewelyn Director (Non-executive)

Mr Donald Shumka Director (Non-executive)

Mr Peter Donkin Director (Non-executive) (appointed 1 July 2010)

Mr Philip Baily Director (Non-executive) (appointed 1 October 2010)
( )

Mr lan Noble Director (Non-executive) (retired 25 November 2010)

(i) Executives

Ms Gillian Swaby Company Secretary
Mr Garry Korte Chief Financial Officer
Mr Wyatt Buck Executive General Manager — Production (resigned 6 May 2011)
Mr Dustin Garrow Executive General Manager — Marketing
Mr Mark Chalmers Executive General manager — Production (appointed 28 April 2011)
(b) Compensation of Key Management Personnel: Compensation by Category
CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$’000 US$'000
. _______________'______|
Short-term employee benefits 5,492 4,672
Post employment benefits 689 624
Long-term benefits 454 476
Share-based payment 2,955 4,186
9,590 9,958

Average exchange rate used for year to 30 June 2011, US$1 = A$1.01512 (2010 US$1 = A$1.13652).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (continued)

(c) Option Holdings of Key Management Personnel (Consolidated and Parent Entity)
Granted as Not
remune- Options Net change Vested/  vested/ not

30 June 2011 01 Jul 10 ration  exercised other 30Jun 11 exercisable  exercisable
. |
Directors
Mr John Borshoff 2,750,000 - - (1,500,000)@ 1,250,000 657,000 598,000
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 333,785 = = (75,0002 258,785 136,018 122,767
Mr Wyatt Buck 351,533 - - (351,533)" = = =

Mr Dustin Garrow 344,769 -

(78,570)® 266,199 139,915 126,284

Total 3,780,087 = - (2,005103) 1,774,984 932,933 842,051

No other Key Management Personnel held options during the year ended 30 June 2011.

M Mr Wyatt Buck resigned on 6 May 2011. 105,926 options lapsed on 6 June 2011 and 95,607 were
forfeited on 6 May 2011. 150,000 lapsed during the year as the vesting conditions were not met.

= @ Lapsed during the year as the vesting conditions were not met.
8 Granted as Not
E remune- Options Net change Vested/  vested/ not
3 30 June 2010 01 Jul 09 ration  exercised other ~ 30Jun 10  exercisable  exercisable
<< . ! ___________ _____]
@
<Zc Directors
= Mr John Borshoff 2,750,000 - - - 2,750,000 - 2,750,000
w
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 333,785 - - - 333,785 - 333,785
Mr Wyatt Buck 351,533 - - - 351,533 - 351,533
Mr Dustin Garrow 344,769 - - - 344,769 - 344,769
Mr Simon Solomons 600,000 - - - 600,000 - 600,000
Total 4,380,087 - - - 4,380,087 - 4,380,087
No other Key Management Personnel held options during the year ended 30 June 2010.
(d) Share Rights Holdings of Key Management Personnel (Consolidated and Parent Entity)
Granted as Vested as
30 June 2011 01 Jul 10 remuneration shares Forfeited 30 Jun 11

Directors

Mr John Borshoff 300,000 500,000 - - 800,000
Executives

Ms Gillian Swaby 180,000 385,000 (18,000) - 547,000
Mr Garry Korte 90,000 50,000 (9,000) - 131,000
Mr Dustin Garrow 200,000 80,000 (20,000) - 260,000
Mr Wyatt Buck 160,000 50,000 (16,000) (194,000)" -
Total 930,000 1,065,000 (63,000) (194,000) 1,738,000

No other Key Management Personnel held share rights during the year ended 30 June 2011.
M Mr Wyatt Buck resigned on 6 May 2011 and his outstanding share rights were forfeited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (continued)

(d) Share Rights Holdings of Key Management Personnel (Consolidated and Parent Entity) (continued)
Granted as Vested as

30 June 2010 01 Jul 10 remuneration shares Forfeited 30 Jun 11
. '/ ' ' _________________|
Directors
Mr John Borshoff - 300,000 - - 300,000
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby - 180,000 - - 180,000
Mr Garry Korte - 90,000 - - 90,000
Mr Dustin Garrow - 200,000 - - 200,000
Mr Wyatt Buck - 160,000 - - 160,000
Mr Simon Solomons - 120,000 - - 120,000
Total - 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000

No other Key Management Personnel held share rights during the year ended 30 June 2010.

—
(e) Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel (Consolidated and Parent Entity) g
Shares held in Paladin Energy Ltd (number) g
Balance On Exercise On Vesting Net Change Balance :(’
30 June 2011 01 Jul 10 of Options of Rights Other 30 June 11 T
' ' ________________'_____| <ZE
Directors E
Mr Rick Crabb 4,881,528 - - - 4,881,528
Mr John Borshoff 21,877,394 - - - 21,877,394
Mr lan Noble® 21,000 - - (21,000) -
Mr Sean Llewelyn 100,000 - - - 100,000
Mr Donald Shumka 50,000 - - 50,000 100,000
Mr Peter Donkin - - - 15,000 15,000
Mr Philip Baily - - - 12,000 12,000
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 5,036,655 - 18,000 (1,468,000) 3,586,655
Mr Wyatt Buck® 110,000 - 16,000 (126,000) -
Mr Garry Korte - - 9,000 - 9,000
Mr Dustin Garrow - - 20,000 (20,000) -
Mr Mark Chalmers - - - - -
Total 32,076,577 - 63,000  (1,558,000) 30,581,577

No other Key Management Personnel held shares during the year ended 30 June 2011.

M Mr lan Noble retired on 25 November 2010. No longer required to disclose shareholdings.

@ Mr Wyatt Buck resigned on 6 May 2011. No longer required to disclosure shareholdings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (continued)

(e) Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel (Consolidated and Parent Entity) (continued)
Balance On Exercise Net Change Balance
30 June 2010 01 Jul 09 of Options Other 30 June 10
. ' '/ ' _____________]
Directors
Mr Rick Crabb 4,581,528 - 300,000 4,881,528
Mr John Borshoff 21,591,394 - 286,000 21,877,394
Mr lan Noble 21,000 - - 21,000
Mr Sean Llewelyn 100,000 - - 100,000
Mr Donald Shumka 50,000 - - 50,000
Executives
Ms Gillian Swaby 5,036,655 - - 5,036,655
Mr Wyatt Buck 96,350 - 13,650 110,000
Mr Simon Solomons 3,000 - - 3,000
Total 31,479,927 - 599,650 32,079,577

All equity transactions with Key Management Personnel other than those arising from the exercise of
remuneration options have been entered into under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the
Group would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length.

(f) Other Transactions and Balances with Key Management Personnel
Fees paid in the normal course of business in 2011 for company secretarial services totalling US$561,000
(2010: US$419,000) were paid/payable (balance outstanding at 30 June 2011 and included in trade
creditors US$NIl (2010: US$NIl) to a company of which Ms Gillian Swaby is a director and shareholder. All
amounts are excluding GST.
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NOTE 21. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The auditor of the Paladin Energy Ltd Group is Ernst & Young.

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$’000 US$'000

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young (Australia) for:

e Audit or review of the financial report of the consolidated Group and
audit related services 1,068 776

e Taxation services:

Tax compliance services 97 97
International tax consulting 165 205
Tax advice on mergers and acquisitions 232 2
Other tax advice 51 58
Sub-total 1,613 1,138

Amounts received or due and receivable by related practices of Ernst &
Young (Australia) for:

e Audit or review of the financial report of subsidiaries 389 209

e  Other assurance services:
Malawi Development Agreement - 58

e Taxation services:
Tax compliance services 4 5

Sub-total 393 272

i $97,794 relates to services performed in relation to the issue of Convertible Bonds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 21.

NOTE 22.

(a)

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

The level of non-audit related fees that the Company paid to its independent auditor, Ernst & Young relative
to the audit/audit related fees reduced from 2010 to 2011, with non-audit fees reasonably lower than the
audit/audited related fees.

The level of non-audit related fees was driven by the tax compliance requirements of multiple jurisdictions,
establishing new operations and by the specialist advice requirements of potential acquisitions.

Whilst always striving to meet the highest corporate governance standards, Paladin is also cognisant of the
need to retain the value of the best available specialist advice. The establishment of the Kayelekera mining
operation in Malawi necessitated setting up robust internal controls and processes and systems. After a
thorough search Paladin engaged Ernst & Young because of their specialised experience in both Africa and
the mining sector and Ernst & Young’s detailed understanding of the Paladin Group. These costs included
under other assurance services in 2010 are considered to be set up costs and are not anticipated to be
incurred in future periods.

In terms of the Company’s Corporate Governance Policy all non-audit services are reviewed and approved
by the audit committee prior to commencement to ensure that they do not adversely affect the integrity and
objectivity of the auditor and that the nature of the services provided does not compromise the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants APES 110 issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board.

All non-audit services provided by Ernst & Young were allowable services that received the sign off of the

'_
audit partner confirming that, in his professional opinion, they do not in any way impair the independence of g
the firm. Where any service might be perceived to be subjective, Ernst & Young policy requires approval by o
the Oceania Independence and Conflicts Leader. o
—J
<
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES g
There were no outstanding commitments or contingencies, which are not disclosed in the Financial Report <zt
of the Group as at 30 June 2011 other than: w
CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
us$m US$M

Tenements
Commitments for tenements contracted for at the reporting date but not
recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one year 19.0 2.1
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 17.0 20.4
More than 5 years 28.4 0.1
Total tenements commitment 64.4 22.6

These include commitments relating to tenement lease rentals and the minimum expenditure requirements of
the Namibian, Malawian, Nigerian, Canadian, Western Australian, South Australian, Northern Territorian and
Queensland Mines Departments attaching to the tenements and are subject to re-negotiation upon expiry of
the exploration leases or when application for a mining licence is made.

These are necessary in order to maintain the tenements in which the Group and other parties are involved.
All parties are committed to meet the conditions under which the tenements were granted in accordance
with the relevant mining legislation in Namibia, Malawi, Australia, Canada and Niger.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Mine Construction Commitments

Commitments for mine construction contracted for at the reporting date but

not recognised as liabilities, payable:

Within one year 18.8 35.7
Later than one year but not later than 5 years - =
More than 5 years - -

Total mine construction 18.8 35.7

These commitments in 2011 relate to construction of Stage 3 at LHM (2010: construction of Stage 3 at
LHM).
Operating Lease Commitments

The Group has entered into various property leases relating to rental of offices and residential
accommodation.

These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 1 month and 10 years. All leases include
a clause to enable upward revision of rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market
conditions.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010

US$M US$M
. _________________________]
Within one year 15 1.3
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 5.3 4.5
More than 5 years 0.1 0.9
Total operating lease commitment 6.9 6.7

Acquisition Costs

The Group acquired a call option on 19 June 1998 in relation to the purchase of the Oobagooma Uranium
Project and, in turn, granted a put option to the original holder of the project. Both the call and put
options have an exercise price of A$0.75M (US$0.8M) (2010:A$0.75M (US$0.6M)) and are subject to the
Department of Minerals & Energy granting tenements comprising two exploration licence applications. The
A$0.75M is payable by the Group within 10 business days of the later of the grant of the tenements or the
exercise of either the call or put option. The options will expire three months after the date the tenements
are granted.

In relation to the Manyingee Uranium Project, the re-negotiated acquisition terms provide for a payment of
A$0.75M (US$0.8M) (2010:A$0.75M (US$0.6M)) by the Group to the vendors when all project development
approvals are obtained.

Bank Guarantees

As at 30 June 2011 the Group has outstanding US$911,837 (A$860,619) (2010: US$731,144 / A$853,801)
as a current guarantee provided by a bank for the corporate office lease and a US$289,700 (A$273,428)
(2010: US$30,828 / A$36,000) guarantee for tenements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 22.
0

NOTE 23.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Legal Actions
Isa Uranium Joint Venture

On 3 August 2007, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Mt Isa Uranium Pty Ltd (MIU) entered into a
settlement agreement with respect to proceedings which had been commenced by Summit Resources
(Aust) Pty Ltd (SRA) (which had, by the time of the settlement, become ultimately 82.0% owned by the
Company) against MIU and the unrelated entity, Resolute Pty Ltd (Summit Proceedings). The Summit
Proceedings related to alleged breaches of confidentiality provisions in the Mount Isa Uranium Project joint
venture agreement. If successful in the Summit Proceedings, SRA would have been entitled to the transfer
of MIU’s 50% interest in the Mount Isa Uranium Project joint venture for 85% of its market value.

Areva NC (Australia) Pty Ltd (Areva), being a 10.01% shareholder of the parent company of SRA,
subsequently applied to the Supreme Court of Western Australia for, relevantly, orders under Section 237
of the Corporations Act 2001, to be granted leave to intervene in and effectively re-open the Summit
Proceedings, notwithstanding the settlement (Areva intervention proceedings). The trial of the Areva
intervention proceedings was heard over the period from 18 May 2009 to 3 June 2009 and the Court
reserved its decision.

Early in 2011 the Company finalised the settlement of the Areva intervention proceedings. Although the
effect of the settlement is that the Summit Proceedings remain on foot, as previously announced, the
Company is confident that, if pursued, those proceedings will be able to be successfully defended and,
in any event, the Company has the benefit of an indemnity from Resolute. Further, the Company has an
ultimate 82.1% interest in SRA. As a consequence, a change in the ownership of the 50% interest in the
Isa Uranium joint venture from MIU to SRA would not be of significance to the Company.

SRA has now made application to the Supreme Court of Western Australia for orders which would allow it
to settle the Summit Proceedings, essentially on the terms contemplated by the 2007 settlement agreement.
That application is ongoing.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Provision for annual leave and long service leave aggregate employment
benefit liabilities 8.6 3.0

Employee Benefits Expense

Wages and salaries 62.7 2585
Defined contribution superannuation 3.9 2.6
Share-based payments 14.3 11.3
Other employee benefits 5.1 1.9
Total employee benefits expense 86.0 41.3

Superannuation

The Company contributes to employees’ superannuation plans in accordance with the requirements of
Occupational Superannuation Legislation. Contributions by the Company represent a defined percentage of
each employee’s salary. Employee contributions are voluntary.

Employee Share Incentive Option Plan

Details of the Employee Share Incentive Option Plan for the Company are disclosed in Note 25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 24.

NOTE 25.

(a)

RELATED PARTIES

Key Management Personnel
Details relating to Key Management Personnel can be found at Note 20.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M

Share based payment expense 11.9 10.4

The share-based payment plans are described below.

Types of Share-Based Payment Plans

Executive Share Option Plan (EXSOP)

On 21 November 2006, the EXSOP was approved by shareholders at the Company’s Annual General
Meeting. The number of shares that may be issued under the EXSOP must not exceed 5% of the total
number of shares on issue.

Share options are granted to employees under the EXSOP which is designed to create a stronger link
between increasing shareholder value and employee reward. Under the EXSOP, the exercise price of

the options is set at the market price of the shares on the date of grant and performance is measured

by comparing the Company’s Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR’) (share price appreciation plus dividends
reinvested) with a group of peer companies. The Company’s performance will be measured over three years
from the date of grant. To the extent that maximum performance is not achieved under the performance
condition, performance will be retested every six months following the first three years until the end of the
fourth year.

In assessing whether the TSR hurdle for each grant has been met, the Group receives independent data
from an external advisor, who provides both the Group’s TSR growth from the commencement of each
grant and that of the pre-selected peer group. The peer group chosen for comparison is the resource
companies in the S&P/ASX200 Index at the date of grant. This peer group reflects the Group’s competitors
for capital and talent.

The Group’s performance against the hurdle is determined according to Paladin’s ranking against the peer
group TSR growth over the performance period:

e when Paladin is ranked over the 75th percentile, 100% of the share options will vest;

e for rankings above the 50th and below the 75th percentile, the percentage of options to vest will be
pro-rata between 50% and 100%;

e when Paladin is ranked at the 50th percentile, 50% of the share options will vest; and
e when Paladin is ranked below the 50th percentile the share options will not vest.

When a participant ceases employment prior to the vesting of their share options, the share options

are forfeited unless cessation of employment is due to termination initiated by the Group other than for
misconduct or death. In the event of a change of control all the awards will vest and may be exercised by
the participant.

The contractual life of each option granted is five years. There are no cash settlement alternatives.

Following the adoption of the Rights Plan referred to below, no further grants will be made under the
EXSOP. The last grant under this Plan was made on 24 June 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS (continued)

(a)

Types of Share-Based Payment Plans (continued)

Employee Performance Share Rights Plan

The Employee Performance Share Rights Plan (Rights Plan) was approved by shareholders on 25 November
2009. The Rights Plan replaces the EXSOP and no further options will be granted under the EXSOP.

The Rights Plan is a long-term incentive plan aimed at advancing the interests of the Company by creating
a stronger link between employee performance and reward and increasing shareholder value by enabling
participants to have a greater involvement with, and share in the future growth and profitability of the
Company. It is an important tool to assist in attracting and retaining talented people.

Share Rights are granted under the plan for no consideration. Share Rights are rights to receive fully paid
ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (Shares) in the future if certain individual and/or corporate
performance metrics (Performance Conditions) are met in the measurement period.

The Board is cognisant of general shareholder concern that long-term equity based reward for staff should
be linked to the achievement by the Company of a performance condition. Share Rights granted under the
Rights Plan are subject to performance conditions as determined by the Board from time to time.

The Share Rights issued are subject to a combination of Performance Conditions:-

e Time-based Performance conditions which prescribe a period of time that the employee must stay
employed by the Company prior to automatic vesting.

e The Total Shareholder Return (TSR) measure which represents the change in the Company’s Share
price over the relevant period, plus dividends (if any) notionally reinvested in the Company’s Shares,
expressed as a percentage of the opening value.

The TSR of the Company from the date of the offer to the measurement date will be compared with
the TSR of all mining companies in the ASX S&P 200 Index for the same period excluding, for such
time as Paladin does not pay a dividend, all companies that paid a dividend during any year of the
measurement period.

The number of Share Rights that vest depends on the TSR percentile ranking of the Company, as set

out below:
Relative TSR Percentile Ranking Percentage of share rights that may vest if the relative
TSR performance condition is met
Less than 50th percentile 0% of the Share Rights subject to the TSR condition
at 50th percentile 50% of the Share Rights subject to the TSR condition
Greater than the 50th percentile but less Pro-rated vesting between 51% and 99% of the Share
than the 75th percentile Rights subject to the TSR condition
At 75th percentile or greater 100% of the Share Rights subject to the TSR condition

The Market Price Performance condition measures the increase in share price of the Company. Share
Rights subject to the Market Price Performance Condition will vest if, at the end of the measurement period,
the Share price of the Company is 25% above the market price as at the date of the offer.

The Earnings Per Share (EPS) Performance condition, which is determined by dividing the operating
profit attributable to members of the Paladin Group by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

outstanding during the financial year. Growth in EPS will be measured by comparing the EPS in the base
year and the measurement year.

Vesting will only occur if the Company achieves average compound growth in EPS of at least 10% per
annum over the three year performance period, calculated from the date of the grant of the Share Rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Types of Share-Based Payment Plans (continued)

Employee Performance Share Rights Plan (continued)
The vesting schedule of the Share Rights subject to the EPS conditions is as follows:

Average compound growth EPS Percentage of share rights that may vest if the EPS
over the performance period condition is met

Less than 10% pa 0% of the Share Rights subject to the EPS condition

At 10% pa 50% of the Share Rights subject to the EPS condition

More than 10% pa but less than 20% pa Pro-rated vesting between 51% and 99% of the Share
Rights subject to the EPS condition

At 20% pa or greater 100% of the Share Rights subject to the EPS condition

When a participant ceases employment prior to the vesting of their Share Rights, the Share Rights lapse
unless cessation of employment is due to retirement, total and permanent disablement, redundancy or
death. In the event of a change of control all the Share Rights will vest.

Contractor Performance Share Rights Plan

The Company has also implemented a plan to reward a small number of key individual contractors, who
provide similar services to employees. This plan and the Rights Plan applicable to employees, as detailed
above, differ only in respect of the class of individuals who are eligible for participation. This Plan was
approved by shareholders on 25 November 2009.

Summaries of Options Granted Under EXSOP

The following table illustrates the number (No.) and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of and
movements in share options issued during the year:

2011 2011 WAEP 2010 2010 WAEP
Number A$ Number A$

. ' _________________________]
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,768,755 5.26 15,227,455 5.25
Granted during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year (1,841,734) 4.13 (1,458,700) 5.02
Exercised during the year® (960) 4.50 - -
Expired during the year (2,694,270) 8.77 (1,000,000) 5.50
Outstanding at the end of the year 8,231,791 4.36 12,768,755 5.26
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,032,078 4.55 - -

" The weighted average share price at the date of exercise is A$5.35 (2010: N/A).

The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2011 is represented by:

Exercise price Number under

Date options granted  Exercisable Expiry date of options option
. _________________________________________________________]
29 January 2008 29 January 2011 29 January 2013 4.50 6,706,791
15 February 2008 15 February 2011 15 February 2013 5.37 300,000
18 April 2008 18 April 2011 18 April 2013 4.59 475,000
14 October 2008 14 October 2011 14 October 2013 2.54 750,000
Total 8,231,791

Please refer to Outstanding Share Information table in the Management Discussion & Analysis for
movements since the year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

(9)

Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at 30 June 2011 is 1.7
years (2010: 2.5 years).

Range of Exercise Price

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was A$2.54 — A$5.37 (2010:
A$2.07 — A$8.77).

Weighted Average Fair Value

There were no options granted during 2010 or 2011.

Option Pricing Model: EXSOP

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted under the option plan is estimated as at the date
of grant using a Black-Scholes model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. There were no options granted during 2010 or 2011.

Summaries of Performance Share Rights Granted Under the Rights Plans

The following table illustrates the number (No.) of and movements in share rights issued during the year:

CONSOLIDATED

'_

(a4

2011 2010 S

w

ussm Us$M o

. _____| -

=

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,014,500 - =

Granted during the year * 4,292,117 5,026,900 <Zc

Forfeited during the year (1,058,700) (12,400) T
Vested during the year" (1,300,580) -
Outstanding at the end of the year 6,947,337 5,014,500

*

Includes 490,000 rights granted under the Contractor Performance Share Rights Plan (2010:
520,000).

" The weighted average share price at the vesting date is A$3.80 (2010: N/A).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT PLANS (continued)

(h)

U]

)

(k)

Summaries of Performance Share Rights Granted Under the Rights Plans (continued)

The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2011 is represented by:

Date
rights

granted  Vesting date

Vesting Performance Conditions
. _________________________________________________________________________________ ______]

Number

26 March 2010 26 March 2013 Relative total shareholder return 150,000
26 March 2010 26 March 2013 Earnings per share 150,000
26 March 2010 1 September 2011 Time based 594,270
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Time based 990,450
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Relative total shareholder return 792,360
26 March 2010 1 September 2012 Market price 1,188,540
5 November 2010 5 November 2013 Earnings per share 250,000
5 November 2010 5 November 2013 Relative total shareholder return 250,000
5 November 2010 1 September 2011 Time based 202,170
5 November 2010 1 September 2012 Time based 303,255
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Time based 505,425
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Relative total shareholder return 404,340
5 November 2010 1 September 2013 Market price 606,510
15 February 2011 15 February 2012 Time based 155,336
15 February 2011 15 February 2013 Time based 178,838
15 February 2011 15 February 2014 Time based 225,843
Total 6,947,337

Please refer to Outstanding Share Information table in the Management Discussion & Analysis for
movements since the year end.

Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share rights outstanding as at 30 June 2011 is 1.5
years (2010: 1.9 years).

Weighted Average Fair Value

The weighted average fair value of share rights granted during the year was A$3.86 (2010: A$3.17).

Rights Pricing Model

The fair value of the equity-settled share rights granted under the plan is estimated as at the date of grant
using either the Black-Scholes model for rights with non-market based performance conditions (time based
and EPS), the Monte-Carlo simulation model for rights that contained a relative TSR performance condition
or an Asset or Nothing Digital Option valuation model for rights subject to the market price condition.

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010.

2011 2010
. ______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
Dividend vyield (%) Nil Nil
Expected volatility (%) 39% 49%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.77% - 5.03% 4.55% - 5.42%
Expected life of right (years) 0.8 - 4 years 0.5 - 4 years
Closing share price at grant date (A$) A$4.48 A$3.88

The expected volatility was determined using an historical sample of 1 years historic data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 26.
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS
Joint Venture Details

Bigrlyi Joint Venture

The Bigrlyi Joint Venture is involved in the identification of and exploration for uranium resources in the
Northern Territory, Australia. The joint venture is between Energy Metals Ltd 53.29%, Southern Cross
Exploration NL 5.0% and Northern Territory Uranium Pty Ltd (NTU) 41.71% (NTU is 100% owned by
Paladin) with Energy Metals Ltd as manager and operator of the joint venture.

Angela Joint Venture

The Angela Joint Venture is involved in the identification of and exploration for uranium resources on
tenements to the south of Alice Springs in the Northern Territory, Australia. The joint venture is between
Cameco Australia Pty Ltd (Cameco) 50% and Paladin NT Pty Ltd (PNT) 50% (PNT is 100% owned by
Paladin) with Cameco as manager and operator of the joint venture.

Other Joint Ventures

The Group also has a number of other interests in joint ventures to explore for uranium and other minerals.
The Group’s share of expenditure in respect of these exploration activities is expensed in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 2(s) and no revenue is generated. The Group’s share of the assets and
liabilities in respect of these joint ventures is not material.

'_

Assets Utilised in the Bigrlyi and Angela Joint Ventures g
The Group’s share of the assets utilised in these jointly controlled assets, which are included in the 5
Consolidated Financial Statements, is as follows: =
—J

<

CONSOLIDATED =

=2

2011 2010 <ZE

US$M US$M w

Non Current Assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure 36.3 26.0

Total assets 36.3 26.0

The interest of NTU in the Bigrlyi Joint Venture was acquired on 7 September 2006 and includes the
allocation of the acquisition value.

The interest of PNT in the Angela Project joint venture was acquired on 20 February 2008.

Commitments Relating to the Joint Venture

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
US$M US$M
| Y
Share of tenement commitments (Note 22) 2.7 2.6
Impairment

No assets employed in the jointly controlled assets were impaired during the year (2010: US$NIl).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 27. ASSET ACQUISITION

Acquisition of NGM Resources Limited

Paladin Energy Ltd acquired a controlling interest on 25 October 2010 of the voting shares of NGM, a public
company based in Australia involved in the exploration for uranium resources in Niger. The takeover was
completed on 10 December 2010 with the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital for the issue

of 7,155,938 Paladin shares for a cost of US$30.1M and direct cost of US$1.8M. In addition the existing
available for sale investment and investment revaluation reserve of US$2.4M was transferred to form part of
the investment.

The acquisition was treated as an acquisition of an asset as the transaction involved the acquisition of
exploration licences, the intellectual property surrounding these licences and research performed to
date only.

Ussm
.|

The cash outflow on acquisition is as follows

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary 0.6
Direct cost relating to acquisition (1.8)
Net consolidated cash outflow (1.2)
—
g Assets acquired
S Cash and cash equivalents 0.6
f Other assets 0.2
< Exploration and evaluation expenditure 34.0
= Other liabilities 0.5)
=
T Net assets 34.3

Acquisition of Aurora Uranium Assets

On 1 February 2011, Paladin Energy Ltd acquired the uranium assets of Aurora Energy Resources Inc.
(“Aurora”) from Fronteer Gold Inc. (“Fronteer”).

The transaction was completed for a total consideration of US$260.6M via the issuance of 52,097,937
ordinary shares in Paladin at A$5.04 and direct cost of US$2.3M.

With completion of this transaction, Fronteer held approximately 6.7% of Paladin’s ordinary shares, subject
to a four-month hold period under Canadian securities laws. Fronteer also entered into an agreement

that set out procedures designed to ensure that any disposition of shares by Fronteer will occur in an
orderly fashion. Following the announcement of the takeover of Fronteer by Newmont Mining Corporation
(Newmont) this shareholding transferred to Newmont, which will assume all obligations under the
agreements.

The acquisition was treated as an acquisition of an asset as the transaction involved the acquisition of
exploration licences, the intellectual property surrounding these licences and evaluation performed to
date only.

Us$M
.|

The cash outflow on acquisition is as follows
Net cash acquired -
Direct cost relating to acquisition (2.3)

Net consolidated cash outflow (2.3)

Assets acquired

Other assets 1.5
Exploration and evaluation expenditure 261.8
Other liabilities (0.4)
Net assets 262.9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 28.

NOTE 29.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Since the end of the financial year, the Directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not
otherwise dealt with in this report or the Financial Statements, that has significantly or may significantly
affect the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group in
subsequent years with the exception of the following, the financial effects of which have not been provided
for in the 30 June 2011 Financial Report:

Uranium Sales Agreement Signed

On 22 August 2011, the Company announced the signing of a series of term uranium sales agreements
for output from the Langer Heinrich Stage 3 expansion. The agreements have been signed with three new
customers in the United States and further strengthens Paladin’s already significant presence within the
U.S. nuclear market. Production commitments from the new agreements total more than 2.8Mlb U,O, with
deliveries beginning in 2012 and extending through to 2016. Contractual pricing provisions incorporate both
fixed and base (escalated) mechanisms ranging from the low- to -mid-$60’s per pound U,O,.

Langer Heinrich Mine, Namibia
Execution of US$141M Project Finance Facility for Stage 3 Expansion

On 26 August 2011, the Company announced that the financing documentation required for the Stage
3 expansion had been finalised and executed. The Stage 3 expansion of LHM in Namibia will increase
production to 5.2Mlb pa from its current capacity of 3.7Mlb pa.

The initial development funding for the project has been via Paladin’s existing cash reserves. The Langer
Heinrich Stage 3 expansion is now fully financed and is on track to reach nameplate capacity in the 1st
quarter of 2012.

Paladin and a syndicate of banks executed a US$141M Project Financing Facility, consisting of a 6 year
Project Finance Facility of US$135M with a Costs Overrun Facility of US$6M. The facility is being provided
without a parent company guarantee from Paladin. The facilities are being provided by Société Générale (as
Agent), Nedbank Capital, Standard Bank Plc, Barclays Capital (the investment banking division of Barclays
Bank PLC) and Rand Merchant Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited (RMB). Drawdown on the
financing is subject to fulfilment of conditions precedent usual for this type of facility.

NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
us$m UsS$M
. _______________'______|
Issue of shares to acquire 100% of NGM Resources Ltd 30.1 -
Issue of shares to acquire the Aurora uranium assets 260.6 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 30. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(i)  Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

(i) Diluted Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after income tax effect associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted
average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential
ordinary shares. Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share in 2011 and 2010 as
the Group is in a loss position.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share

computations:
CONSOLIDATED
2011 2010
Us$Mm UsS$Mm

Net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent from

— continuing operations (82.3) (45.6)
(a4

o

Q-

I~ 2011 2010
<—(’ Number of Number of
= Shares Shares
()

=2 . ________________________]
<ZE Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic and diluted

w

earnings per share 744,054,692 697,428,692

Weighted average number of securities issuable under the Company’s
option and rights plans that could be potentially dilutive 4,124,583 1,766,058

Total number of securities not included in weighted average calculation
due to non-dilutive nature 113,145,440 96,054,056

NOTE 31. PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED

2011 2010

US$M US$M
L' ________________/ |

(a) Information Relating to Paladin Energy Ltd

Current assets 146.2 341.3
Total assets 1,768.6 1,455.4
Current liabilities 12.7 14.0
Total liabilities 613.9 582.2
Issued capital 1,768.1 1,474.6
Retained earnings (734.3) (683.9)
Option application reserve 0.1 0.1
Share based payments reserve 49.5 38.0
Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve 10.9 15
Convertible bond non-distributable reserve 60.4 38.9
Total shareholders’ equity 1,154.7 873.2
Net loss after tax from operations (50.4) (88.5)
Total comprehensive loss (45.0) (107.3)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 31.
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U]

PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION (continued)

Details of Any Guarantees Entered Into by the Parent in Relation to the Debts of its Subsidiaries

As part of the Project Finance Facility for the construction of the Kayelekera Mine, Paladin Energy Ltd has
provided a guarantee for the loan outstanding to the lenders until satisfaction of the Bankers Completion
Test.

Details of Any Contingent Liabilities of the Parent Entity
There are no contingent liabilities of the parent entity as at reporting date.

Details of Any Contractual Commitments by the Parent Entity for the Acquisition of Property,
Plant and Equipment

There are no contractual commitments by the parent entity for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment as at reporting date.

Tax Consolidation

Paladin and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated group (the Group)
with effect from 1 July 2003. Paladin is the head entity of the Group. Members of the Group have entered
into a tax sharing agreement that provides that the head entity will be liable for all taxes payable by the
Group from the consolidation date. The parties have agreed to apportion the head entity’s taxation liability
within the Group based on each contributing member’s share of the Group’s taxable income and losses.

Investments in Material Controlled Entities

COUNTRY OF
INCORPORATION

NAME INVESTMENT PERCENTAGE INTEREST HELD
2011 2010
% %

. ___________'______|
Paladin Finance Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Paladin Energy Minerals NL Australia 100 100
Eden Creek Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Paladin (Africa) Ltd Malawi 85 85
Kayelekera Holdings SA Switzerland 100 100
Paladin Netherlands BV Netherlands 100 100
Paladin Netherlands Co-Op Holdings Netherlands 100 -
Langer Heinrich Mauritius Holdings Ltd Mauritius 100 100
Langer Heinrich Uranium (Pty) Ltd Namibia 100 100
Valhalla Uranium Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Northern Territory Uranium Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Mount Isa Uranium Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Paladin Nuclear Ltd Australia 100 100
Summit Resources Ltd Australia 82 82
Summit Resources (Aust) Pty Ltd Australia 82 82
Pacific Mines Pty Ltd Australia 82 82
Paladin NT Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
Fusion Resources Pty Ltd Australia 100 100
NGM Resources Pty Ltd Australia 100 -
Indo Energy Ltd Australia 100 -
Paladin Energy Canada Ltd Canada 100 =
Michelin Uranium Ltd Canada 100 -
Paladin Canada Investment (NL) Ltd Canada 100 -
Paladin Canada Holdings (NL) Ltd Canada 100 -
Aurora Energy Ltd Canada 100 -

All investments comprise ordinary shares and all shares held are unquoted, with the exception of Summit’s
shares which are quoted on the ASX and Paladin Netherlands Co-Op Holdings which issues membership
equity.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Paladin Energy Ltd, | state that:
In the opinion of the Directors:

(@) the financial statements and notes of the Company are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2011 and of its performance for the
year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 20017,
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note
2(a);
(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable; and

(d) this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance
with section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ending 30 June 2011.

On behalf of the Board

s

Mr John Borshoff
Managing Director/CEO
Perth, Western Australia
31 August 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Paladin Energy Ltd

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Paladin Energy Ltd, which comprises the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2011, the consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration
of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time
during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2007 and for such internal controls as the
directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements
relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 20071. We have
given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the
directors’ report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PALADIN ENERGY LTD
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Opinion
In our opinion:
a. the financial report of Paladin Energy Ltd is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2011 and of its performance
for the year ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2007; and
b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 2.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 71 to 85 of the directors’ report for the year ended 30
June 2011. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Paladin Energy Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2011, complies with section
300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

O

Ernst & Young

G H Meyerowitz
Partner

Perth

31 August 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Paladin Energy Ltd

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Paladin Energy Ltd, prepared for the purposes of complying with
Canadian securities regulatory requirements, which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2011 and
30 June 2010 and the consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and cash flow statement for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010, a summary of significant
accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the
company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance
with the International Accounting Standards (including the Interpretations). This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have met the independence requirements of the Australian professional accounting bodies.
We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included
in the directors’ report.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PALADIN ENERGY LTD
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Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion:
1. the financial report of Paladin Energy Ltd, prepared for the purposes of complying with Canadian securities regulatory

requirements, presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the consolidated entity at 30 June 2011
and 30 June 2010 and of their performance for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010; and

2. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

NSO

Ernst & Young
Perth
31 August 2011
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Paladin Energy Ltd

Comments by auditor for Canadian readers

Reporting standards under Canadian generally accepted auditing standards may differ from those under International
Standards on Auditing in the form and content of the auditor’s report, depending on the circumstances.

Mk

Ernst & Young
Perth
31 August 2011
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Pursuant to the Listing Requirements of ASX as at 16 September 2011:

(a) Distribution and number of holders
Range Total Holders
. ________________]
1 = 1,000 11,910
1,001 - 5,000 12,317
5,001 - 10,000 3,114
10,001 - 100,000 2,307
100,001 - maximum 192

29,840
3,094 shareholders hold less than a marketable parcel of shares.

(b) Top twenty shareholders
The twenty largest shareholders hold 77.35% of the total shares issued.
Holder No. of Shares %
. ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
= CDS & Co 155,339,182 19.95
S HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 125,693,742 16.13
'<ZT: National Nominees Limited 71,247,901 9.156
o JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 66,001,928 8.48
g CEDE & Co 36,463,548 4.68
> Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 33,761,726 4.34
<ZE Mr J Borshoff* 21,877,394 2.81
=) JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited <Cash Income A/C> 19,198,143 2.81
E HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited — A/C 2 18,666,209 2.40
2 UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Ltd 7,766,299 1.00
Share Direct Nominees Pty Ltd <26885 Account> 7,370,000 0.95
AMP Life Limited 6,045,554 0.78
Mr Rick Crabb* 4,881,528 0.63
Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 4,591,643 0.59
Queensland Investment Corporation 4,525,891 0.58
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd 4,011,447 0.52
Share Direct Nominees Pty Ltd <10026 A/C> 3,573,077 0.46
UBS Nominees Pty Ltd <PB SEG A/C> 3,093,091 0.40
HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited — A/C 3 2,842,013 0.37
Australian Reward Investment Alliance 2,638,824 0.34
602,189,140 77.35

* Aggregates all associated holdings

Substantial shareholders as disclosed in substantial shareholder notices given to the Company are as
follows:

Newmont Mining Corporation 52,097,937 6.699%

(c) Voting rights
For all shares, voting rights are one vote per member on a show of hands and one vote per share in a poll.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Tenements held

URANIUM PROJECTS
NAMIBIA - AFRICA

Project Tenements Interest % JV Partner/s Operator Note
! /' ' ________________________________________________________________ _______|
Langer Heinrich 1 ML 100.00% = LHU

Gawib 1 EPL 100.00% - LHU

NIGER - AFRICA

Tagait 4 1 EPL 100.00% - IEL
Terzemazour 1 1 EPL 100.00% - IEL
Toulouk 1 1 EPL 100.00% - IEL

MALAWI - AFRICA

Kayelekera 1 ML 100.00% - PAL 1
Chilumba 1 EPL 100.00% > PAL 1
Chilongo 1 EPL 100.00% - PAL 1 =
Mpata 1 EPL 100.00% . PAL 1 2
Mapambo 1 EPL 100.00% - PAL 1 =
Chitsu 1 EPL (A 100.00% = PAL 1 =
[V
=
LABRADOR/NEWFOUNDLAND - CANADA »
I e ) <
Central Mineral Belt 33 MLC 100.00% = AUR =
=
QUEENSLAND 2
I e ) <
Isa North 5 EPMs 82.05% (see Note 3) SRA 2,3
3 MDLs (A 82.05% (see Note 3) SRA 2,3
Valhalla North 2 EPMs 100.00% > FSN

NORTHERN TERRITORY

Angela and Pamela 1 EL 50.00%  Cameco Australia Pty Ltd Cameco
1 EL A) 50.00%  Cameco Australia Pty Ltd Cameco
Bigrlyi 10 ERLs 41.71% ) Energy Metals Limited EME
20 MCs (A 41.71% ) Southern Cross Exploration NL EME
2 MLs A 41.71% ) EME
Walbiri 1 ERL A) 58.13%  Energy Metals Limited EME
Malawiri 1 ERL A 47.96%  Energy Metals Limited EME
Minerva 12 ERLs (A 100.00% NTU
Beatrice South 1 EL A) 33.33%  Afmeco Mining and Exploration Pty Ltd  Afmeco
)

Mount Gilruth 1 EL (A 33.33%  Afmeco Mining and Exploration Pty Ltd  Afmeco

WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Manyingee 3 MLs 100.00% - PEM
Spinifex Well 1 EL 100.00% = PEM
Oobagooma 4 ELs A) 100.00% = PEM

SOUTH AUSTRALIA

Petermorra 1 EL 20.00% Quasar Resources Pty Ltd Quasar

Mt Yerila 1 EL 15.00% Quasar Resources Pty Ltd Quasar
J E Risinger
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Tenements held (continued)

NON-URANIUM PROJECTS

QUEENSLAND

Project Tenements Interest % JV Partner/s Operator Note
. ! ! ! ' ______________________________________________________________ _______]

Western Isa Joint Venture (See Note 4)
(Summit Resources (Aust) Pty Ltd, Pacific Mines Pty Ltd)

Isa South 4 EPMs 20.00% MM Mining (Qld) Limited MMM 4
4 EPMs (A 20.00% MM Mining (Qld) Limited MMM 4
1 EPM 18.00% MM Mining (Qld) Limited MMM 4

Centaurus Metals Limited
May Downs 3 EPMs 20.00% MM Mining (QId) Limited MMM 4
Mount Kelly 1 EPM 20.00% MM Mining (Qld) Limited MMM 4

@]

Constance Range EPMs 20.00% MM Mining (Qld) Limited MMM 4

SOUTH AUSTRALIA
- __________________________________________________________|

Reaphook JV 1 EL 7.50% Perilya Limited Perilya
Signature Resources NL
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Tenements held (continued)

Operators Paladin Equity Note

(direct and indirect)

EME Energy Metals Limited 0%

FSN Fusion Resources Pty Ltd 100%

LHU Langer Heinrich Uranium (Pty) Limited 100%

MIU Mount Isa Uranium Pty Ltd 100%

MMM MM Mining (Qld) Limited 0%

NTU Northern Territory Uranium Pty Ltd 100%

PAC Pacific Mines Pty Ltd 100%

PAL Paladin (Africa) Ltd 100% 1
PEM Paladin Energy Minerals NL 100%

SRA Summit Resources (Aust) Pty Ltd 82.05% 2
AUR Aurora Energy Ltd 100%

IEL Indo Energy Ltd 100%

Notes

1.

Ten
EL

Paladin holds 85% equity in Paladin (Africa) Limited (“PAL”) with 15% equity having been issued to the Government
of Malawi pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement for KM between the Government of Malawi, PAL and
Paladin Energy Minerals NL.

Paladin’s interest in these tenements is held by virtue of Paladin’s 82.08% equity holding in Summit Resources Limited
which in turn holds 100% equity interest in Summit Resources (Aust) Pty Ltd (“SRA”) and Pacific Mines Pty Ltd.

The Vallhalla and Skal uranium deposits lie within the Isa North tenement block within defined blocks of land (17 km?
and 10 km? respectively) subject to the Isa Uranium Joint Venture between SRA (50% and Operator) and Mount Isa
Uranium Pty Ltd (50%).

The Western Isa Joint Venture tenements are held by SRA/Pacific Mines Pty Ltd. MM Mining (Qld) Limited earned
80% equity in the Western Isa Joint Venture tenements through expenditure of A$8M within three years of
commencement (10 December 2007). Transfer documents have been lodged with the Department of Employment,
Economic Development and Innovation, which assigns 80% of SRA's interest to MMM.

ement Types
Exploration Licence (Australia)

EPL  Exclusive Prospecting Licence (Africa)

EPM  Exploration Permit for Minerals (Australia)

ERL  Exploration Retention Licence (Australia)

MC
ML
MLI

Mineral Claim (Australia)
Mining Lease (Australia)
Mining Licence (Africa)

MLC Mineral Licence (Newfoundland/Labrador)

Pending Application
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LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

A$ Australian dollars M million
bcm bank cubic metres Mib million pounds
BFS Bankable Feasibility Study m metres
CCD Counter Current Decantation Ma million years
DFS Definitive Feasibility Study MIK Multiple Indicator Kriging
DIFR disabling incident frequency rate mm millimetres
ft feet MMI Mobile Metal lon
g gram mSv millisiverts
g/m3 grams per cubic metre Mtpa million tonnes per annum
o/t grams per tonne NOSA National Occupational Safety Association
hr hours NPV net present value
ISO International Organisation for Standardisation pa per annum
2 ISR in situ recovery PAL Paladin (Africa) Limited
S JORC Joint Ore Reserves Committee ppb parts per billion
% K thousand ppm parts per million
§§ kg kilogram QC quality control
i kg/t kilogram per tonne RC reverse circulation
; km kilometres RIP resin-in-pulp
= KM Kayelekera Mine t tonnes
km?2 square kilometres t/m3 tonnes per cubic metre
kW kilowatts tpa tonnes per annum
Ib pounds tph tonnes per hour
LHM Langer Heinrich Mine U uranium
LHUPL  Langer Heinrich Uranium (Pty) Ltd U0, Uranium Oxide
LTI lost time injury Us$ US dollars
LTIFR lost time injury frequency rate W:0 waste to ore ratio
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SHAREHOLDER REPORTING TIMETABLE

Important Dates
28 October 2011

14 November 2011
15 November 2011
24 November 2011
31 January 2012
14 February 2012

16 February 2012
30 April 2012

15 May 2012

17 May 2012

31 July 2012

31 August 2012

4 September 2012
28 September 2012
31 October 2012
14 November 2012
15 November 2012
22 November 2012

September Quarterly Activities Report (ASX)

September Quarterly Financial Statements including MD&A (TSX)
Conference Call and Investor Update

Annual General Meeting to be held in Perth, Western Australia
December Quarterly Activities Report (ASX)

Half Yearly Financial Statements incorporating December Quarter and MD&A
(Appendix 4D — ASX)

Conference Call and Investor Update (proposed date)
March Quarterly Activities Report (ASX)

March Quarterly Financial Statements including MD&A (TSX)
Conference Call and Investor Update (proposed date)

June Quarterly Activities Report (ASX)

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011 including MD&A

(ASX/TSX) & (Appendix 4E — ASX)

Conference Call and Investor Update (proposed date)

Annual Information Form (TSX)

September Quarterly Activities Report (ASX)

September Quarterly Financial Statements including MD&A (TSX)
Conference Call and Investor Update (proposed date)

Annual General Meeting to be held in Perth, Western Australia

PLEASE NOTE THE ABOVE LODGEMENT DATES ARE DEADLINES AND

REPORTS MAY BE RELEASED EARLY
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Directors

Non-executive Chairman
Mr Rick Crabb

Managing Director/CEO
Mr John Borshoff

Non-executive Directors

Mr Sean Llewelyn
Mr Donald Shumka
Mr Peter Donkin
Mr Philip Baily

Registered Office

Level 4, 502 Hay Street
Subiaco Western Australia 6008

Telephone: (+61 8) 9381 4366
Facsimile: (+61 8) 9381 4978

Email: paladin@paladinenergy.com.au
Web: www.paladinenergy.com.au

Share Registries

Australia

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
Level 2, 45 St Georges Terrace
Perth Western Australia 6000

Telephone: (+61 8) 9323 2000
Facsimile: (+61 8) 9323 2033
Canada

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd
100 University Avenue, 11th Floor
Toronto Ontario M5J 2Y1

Telephone: (+1) 416 263 9200
Facsimile: (+1) 416 263 9261

Paladin Energy Ltd is a company limited by shares,
incorporated and domiciled in Australia. Its registered office

and principal place of business is:

Paladin Energy Ltd
Level 4, 502 Hay Street
SUBIACO WA 6008

Investor Relations
Australia - Corporate Office

Ms Gillian Swaby

Level 4, 502 Hay Street
Subiaco Western Australia 6008
(PO Box 201, Subiaco, 6904)

Telephone: (+61 8) 9381 4366
Facsimile: (+61 8) 9381 4978

Email: gillian.swaby@paladinenergy.com.au
North America

Mr Greg Taylor

Toronto, Ontario, Canada

Telephone: (+1) 905 337 7673
Mobile: (+1) 416 605 5120
Facsimile: (+1) 905 844 6532

Email: greg.taylor@paladinenergy.com.au

Auditors

Ernst & Young
11 Mounts Bay Road
Perth Western Australia 6000

Stock Exchange Listings

Australian Securities Exchange
and Toronto Stock Exchange
Code: PDN

Munich, Berlin, Stuttgart
and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges
Code: PUR

Namibian Stock Exchange
Code: NM-PDN

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that
our corporate reporting is timely, complete, and available
globally at minimum cost to the Company. All press
releases, financial statements and other information are
available on our website

www.paladinenergy.com.au.
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The Friends & Employees of Paladin for African
Children (FEPAC) charity was established in October
2008, The aim of FEPAC is to raise money to
support projects in Africa, particularly Malawi and
Namibia, that assist children with their everyday
educational needs.

FEPAC holds an annual Quiz Night and Corporate
Golf Day which have proved to be extremely
popular and FEPAC would like to thank all the
supporters of these events. As well as this, sales of
chocolate in the Perth and Mount Isa offices, raffles
and Christmas and Easter hampers raise much
needed funds.

To date we fund six projects in Malawi; Mkakatavu

Child Care, Mkakatavu \Vocational Training, Nyungwe
Blind Hostel, Karonga School for the Deaf, Ngaramu
Child Care and Ngaramu Vocational Training.

If yvou would like more information on FEPAC please
go to page 52 of this report, alternatively please visit
the FEPAC pages at www.paladinenergy.com.au or
email joanne.mcdonald@paladinenergy.com.au.
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